17.1008.04000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council
03/28/2017

Amendment to: HB 1436

1 A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds
Revenues
Expenditures $80,000 $1,561,006 $1,787,273 $1,561,006 $1,967,273
Appropriations $1,561,006 $1,707,273 $1,561,006 $1,707,273

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political

subdivision.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium
Counties $409,098 $409,098
Cities $341,798 $341,798
School Districts $207,729 $207,729
Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

A bill to require the NDPERS Health Plan to be self-insured instead of fully insured.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Section 5 of the bill required the NDPERS Health Plan be self-insured as of January 2018.
3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

N/A



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

Expenditures are associated with consulting services to assist with the preparation, distribution, analysis, actuarial
and other work efforts associated with a full bid process identified in the NDCC. Last time PERS used an actuarial/
technical consultant and Pharmacy consultant. The cost for the actuarial/technical consultant was about $200,000
and the pharmacy consultant approximately $60,000. Since the proposed bid is less complex the actuarial/technical
review is estimated at $100,000 in 2017, for a total cost of $160,000. The bid would start spring of 2017. A full bid
would be required after four years in 2021 at an approximate cost of $260,000.

PERS would request contingent appropriation authority and 2 FTE so a self-insured plan could be fully considered.
PERS has included this in its budget request for the last full bid and the renewal in case the plan moved from fully
insured to self insured. Requested dollars needed for this is $428,139 per biennium.

The prior fiscal note had a 2.00% premium increase. The changes result in a 0.58% premium increase needed to
build the required contingency reserves required in NDCC 54-52.1-04.3. This would be $7.36 per active contract per
month ($1,561,006 general fund and $1,279,134 other funds).

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing
appropriation.

The appropriations are not included in the executive budget. PERS would request contingent appropriation authority
and 2 FTE so a self-insured plan could be fully implemented. PERS has included this in its budget request for the
last full bid and the renewal in case the plan moved from fully insured to self-insured. Requested dollars needed for
this is $428,139 per biennium.

The prior fiscal note had a 2.00% premium increase. The changes result in a 0.58% premium increase needed to
build the required contingency reserves required in NDCC 54-52.1-04.3. This would be $7.36 per active contract per
month ($1,561,006 general fund and $1,279,134 other funds).

Name: Bryan Reinhardt
Agency: NDPERS
Telephone: 701-328-3919
Date Prepared: 03/13/2017



2017-2019 NDPERS Health Plan $7.36
Executive Budget

2017-2019 Monthly 15-17 Funding Adjustments
Department FTE Change General Other Total
101 Office of the Governor 18.00 $7.36 $3,179.52 $0.00 $3,179.52
108 Office of the Secretary of State 33.00 $7.36 $5,652.73 $176.39 $5,829.12
110 Office of Management and Budget 119.00 $7.36  $17,280.82 $3,739.34  $21,020.16
112 Information Technology Department 349.30 $7.36 $11,027.20 $50,673.16 $61,700.35
117 Office of the State Auditor 53.80 $7.36 $7,211.16 $2,292.07 $9,503.23
120 Office of the State Treasurer 8.00 $7.36 $1,413.12 $0.00 $1,413.12
125 Office of the Attorney General 234.00 $7.36  $37,865.41 $3,468.35  $41,333.76
127 Office of the Sate Tax Commissioner 133.00 $7.36 $23,493.12 $0.00 $23,493.12
140 Office of Administrative Hearings 5.00 $7.36 $0.00 $883.20 $883.20
150 Legislative Assembly 141.00 $7.36 $24,906.24 $0.00 $24,906.24
160 Legislative Council 36.00 $7.36 $6,359.04 $0.00 $6,359.04
180 Judicial Branch 354.50 $7.36  $62,618.88 $0.00  $62,618.88
188 Legal Counsel of Indigents 40.00 $7.36 $6,894.53 $171.07 $7,065.60
190 Retirement and Investment Office 19.00 $7.36 $0.00 $3,356.16 $3,356.16
192 Public Employees Retirement System 34.50 $7.36 $0.00 $6,094.08 $6,094.08
201 Department of Public Instruction 97.75 $7.36 $5,329.55 $11,937.01 $17,266.56
226 Department of Trust Lands 32.00 $7.36 $3,957.22 $1,695.26 $5,652.48
250 State Library 29.75 $7.36 $0.00 $5,255.04 $5,255.04
252 School for the Deaf 45.61 $7.36 $3,107.92 $4,948.63 $8,056.55
253 N.D. Vision Senices 29.50 $7.36 $2,273.97 $2,936.91 $5,210.88
270 Dept of Career and Technical Ed 25.50 $7.36 $1,908.15 $2,596.17 $4,504.32
215 ND University System 148.40 $7.36 $6,858.71 $19,354.66  $26,213.38
227 Bismarck State College 358.35 $7.36  $15,520.90  $47,778.04  $63,298.94
228 Lake Region State College 129.61 $7.36 $5,612.72 $17,281.59 $22,894.31
229 Willliston State College 100.75 $7.36 $8,796.45 $9,000.03 $17,796.48
230 University of North Dakota 2218.07 $7.36  $218,552.26  $173,247.63  $391,799.88
232 UND Medical Center 435.75 $7.36 $25,335.67 $51,635.21 $76,970.88
235 North Dakota State University 1895.66 $7.36  $146,148.23 $188,701.15 $334,849.38
238 ND State College of Science 345.04 $7.36 $29,616.95 $31,330.92 $60,947.87
239 Dickinson State University 168.90 $7.36 $13,950.33 $15,884.17 $29,834.50
240 Mayville State University 210.53 $7.36 $37,188.02 $0.00 $37,188.02
241 Minot State University 441.65 $7.36 $68,119.29 $9,893.77 $78,013.06
242 Valley City State University 202.75 $7.36 $34,773.15 $1,040.61 $35,813.76
243 Dakota College Bottineau 84.30 $7.36  $14,878.40 $12.35  $14,890.75
244 ND Forest Senice 27.00 $7.36 $4,769.28 $0.00 $4,769.28
301 North Dakota Department of Health 381.00 $7.36 $34,800.98 $32,498.86 $67,299.84
305 Tobacco Prevention 0.00 $7.36 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
313 Veterans Home 120.72 $7.36 $7,272.66 $14,051.32 $21,323.98
316 Indian Affairs Commission 4.00 $7.36 $706.56 $0.00 $706.56
321 Department of Veterans Affairs 9.00 $7.36 $1,380.23 $209.53 $1,589.76
325 Department of Human Senices 2204.23 $7.36  $326,679.16 $62,676.03  $389,355.19
360 Protection and Advocacy Project 27.50 $7.36 $4,857.60 $0.00 $4,857.60
380 Job Senice North Dakota 181.61 $7.36 $214.93 $31,864.66 $32,079.59
401 Office of the Insurance Commissioner 47.00 $7.36 $0.00 $8,302.08 $8,302.08
405 Industrial Commission 105.25 $7.36  $17,477.04 $1,114.32  $18,591.36
406 Office of the Labor Commissioner 14.00 $7.36 $2,472.96 $0.00 $2,472.96
408 Public Senice Commission 45.00 $7.36 $4,827.79 $3,121.01 $7,948.80
412 Aeronautics Commission 7.00 $7.36 $0.00 $1,236.48 $1,236.48
413 Department of Financial Institutions 30.00 $7.36 $0.00 $5,299.20 $5,299.20
414 Office of the Securities Commissioner 9.00 $7.36 $0.00 $1,589.76 $1,589.76
471 Bank of North Dakota 181.50 $7.36 $0.00 $32,060.16 $32,060.16
473 North Dakota Housing Finance Agency 46.00 $7.36 $0.00 $8,125.44 $8,125.44
475 North Dakota Mill & Elevator Association 153.00 $7.36 $0.00 $27,025.92 $27,025.92
485 Workforce Safety & Insurance 260.14 $7.36 $0.00  $45,951.13  $45,951.13
504 Highway Patrol 206.00 $7.36 $29,079.99 $7,307.85 $36,387.84
530 Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 846.29 $7.36  $139,840.39 $9,648.28  $149,488.67
540 Adjutant General 234.00 $7.36  $16,578.99  $24,754.77  $41,333.76
601 Department of Commerce 66.40 $7.36 $9,183.23 $2,545.67 $11,728.90
602 Department of Agriculture 75.00 $7.36 $7,279.71 $5,968.29  $13,248.00
627 Upper Great Plains Transportation Institute 43.88 $7.36 $1,951.05 $5,799.92 $7,750.96
628 Branch Research Centers 110.29 $7.36 $14,224.33 $5,257.29 $19,481.63
630 NDSU Extension Senvice 252.98 $7.36 $22,771.51 $21,914.88 $44,686.39
638 Northern Crops Institute 11.80 $7.36 $1,761.48 $322.87 $2,084.35
640 NDSU Main Research Center 336.12 $7.36 $38,321.43 $21,050.81 $59,372.24
649 Agronomy Seed Farm 3.00 $7.36 $0.00 $529.92 $529.92
670 Racing Commission 2.00 $7.36 $353.28 $0.00 $353.28
701 State Historical Society 77.00 $7.36 $12,437.89 $1,163.39 $13,601.28
709 Council on the Arts 5.00 $7.36 $883.20 $0.00 $883.20
720 Game & Fish Department 163.00 $7.36 $0.00  $28,792.32  $28,792.32
750 Department of Parks & Recreation 65.00 $7.36 $11,050.96 $430.64 $11,481.60
770 State Water Commission 96.00 $7.36 $0.00  $16,957.44  $16,957.44
801 Department Of Transportation 1054.01 $7.36 $0.00 $186,180.33 $186,180.33

State Total 16078.69 $7.36 $1,561,006 $1,279,134 $2,840,140



17.1008.03000

Revised

Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1436

FISCAL NOTE

Requested by Legislative Council

03/09/2017

1 A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.
2015-2017 Biennium

2017-2019 Biennium

2019-2021 Biennium

General Fund

Other Funds

General Fund

Other Funds

General Fund

Other Funds

Revenues
Expenditures $80,000 $5,378,385 $4,915,588 $5,378,685 $5,095,588
Appropriations $5,378,685 $4,835,588 $5,378,685 $4,835,588

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political

subdivision.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium
Counties $1,409,610 $1,409,610
Cities $1,177,718 $1,177,718
School Districts $715,761 $715,761

Townships

having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

A bill to require the NDPERS Health Plan to be self-insured instead of fully insured.

Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Section 5 of the bill required the NDPERS Health Plan be self-insured as of January 2018.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

N/A




B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

Expenditures are associated with consulting services to assist with the preparation, distribution, analysis, actuarial
and other work efforts associated with a full bid process identified in the NDCC. Last time PERS used an actuarial/
technical consultant and Pharmacy consultant. The cost for the actuarial/technical consultant was about $200,000
and the pharmacy consultant approximately $60,000. Since the proposed bid is less complex the actuarial/technical
review is estimated at $100,000 in 2017, for a total cost of $160,000. The bid would start spring of 2017. A full bid
would be required after four years in 2021 at an approximate cost of $260,000.

PERS would request contingent appropriation authority and 2 FTE so a self-insured plan could be fully considered.
PERS has included this in its budget request for the last full bid and the renewal in case the plan moved from fully
insured to self insured. Requested dollars needed for this is $428,139 per biennium.

A 2.00% premium increase would be needed to build the required contingency reserves required in NDCC 54-52.1-
04.3. This would be $25.36 per active contract per month ($5,378,685 general fund and $4,407,449 other funds).

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing
appropriation.

The appropriations are not included in the executive budget. PERS would request contingent appropriation authority
and 2 FTE so a self-insured plan could be fully implemented. PERS has included this in its budget request for the
last full bid and the renewal in case the plan moved from fully insured to self-insured. Requested dollars needed for
this is $428,139 per biennium.

A 2.00% premium increase would be needed to build the required contingency reserves required in NDCC 54-52.1-
04.3. This would be $25.36 per active contract per month ($5,378,685 general fund and $4,407,449 other funds).
Name: Bryan Reinhardt
Agency: NDPERS
Telephone: 701-328-3919
Date Prepared: 03/13/2017



2017-2019 NDPERS Health Plan $25.36
Executive Budget

2017-2019 Monthly 15-17 Funding Adjustments
Department FTE Change General Other Total
101 Office of the Governor 18.00 $25.36 $10,955.52 $0.00 $10,955.52
108 Office of the Secretary of State 33.00 $25.36 $19,477.34 $607.78 $20,085.12
110 Office of Management and Budget 119.00 $25.36  $59,543.70  $12,884.46  $72,428.16
112 Information Technology Department 349.30 $25.36 $37,995.88  $174,602.07 $212,597.95
117 Office of the State Auditor 53.80 $25.36 $24,847.16 $7,897.67 $32,744.83
120 Office of the State Treasurer 8.00 $25.36 $4,869.12 $0.00 $4,869.12
125 Office of the Attorney General 234.00 $25.36  $130,471.04 $11,950.72  $142,421.76
127 Office of the Sate Tax Commissioner 133.00 $25.36  $80,949.12 $0.00  $80,949.12
140 Office of Administrative Hearings 5.00 $25.36 $0.00 $3,043.20 $3,043.20
150 Legislative Assembly 141.00 $25.36 $85,818.24 $0.00 $85,818.24
160 Legislative Council 36.00 $25.36 $21,911.04 $0.00 $21,911.04
180 Judicial Branch 354.50 $25.36 $215,762.88 $0.00 $215,762.88
188 Legal Counsel of Indigents 40.00 $25.36 $23,756.17 $589.43 $24,345.60
190 Retirement and Investment Office 19.00 $25.36 $0.00 $11,564.16 $11,564.16
192 Public Employees Retirement System 34.50 $25.36 $0.00  $20,998.08  $20,998.08
201 Department of Public Instruction 97.75 $25.36  $18,363.76  $41,130.80  $59,494.56
226 Department of Trust Lands 32.00 $25.36 $13,635.20 $5,841.28 $19,476.48
250 State Library 29.75 $25.36 $0.00 $18,107.04 $18,107.04
252 School for the Deaf 45.61 $25.36 $10,708.81 $17,051.26 $27,760.07
253 N.D. Vision Senices 29.50 $25.36 $7,835.33 $10,119.55 $17,954.88
270 Dept of Career and Technical Ed 25.50 $25.36 $6,574.83 $8,945.49 $15,520.32
215 ND University System 148.40 $25.36 $23,632.73 $66,689.44 $90,322.18
227 Bismarck State College 358.35 $25.36 $53,479.63 $164,626.52 $218,106.14
228 Lake Region State College 129.61 $25.36 $19,339.48 $59,546.35 $78,885.83
229 Willliston State College 100.75 $25.36 $30,309.50 $31,010.98 $61,320.48
230 University of North Dakota 2218.07 $25.36 $753,055.07 $596,951.06 $1,350,006.12
232 UND Medical Center 435.75 $25.36 $87,297.91 $177,916.97 $265,214.88
235 North Dakota State University 1895.66 $25.36 $503,575.97 $650,198.54 $1,153,774.50
238 ND State College of Science 345.04 $25.36  $102,049.69 $107,955.45 $210,005.15
239 Dickinson State University 168.90 $25.36 $48,067.98 $54,731.32  $102,799.30
240 Mayyville State University 210.53 $25.36  $128,136.98 $0.00 $128,136.98
241 Minot State University 441.65 $25.36  $234,715.38 $34,090.48 $268,805.86
242 Valley City State University 202.75 $25.36  $119,816.19 $3,685.57 $123,401.76
243 Dakota College Bottineau 84.30 $25.36 $51,265.80 $42.55 $51,308.35
244 ND Forest Senice 27.00 $25.36 $16,433.28 $0.00 $16,433.28
301 North Dakota Department of Health 381.00 $25.36  $119,912.07 $111,979.77 $231,891.84
305 Tobacco Prevention 0.00 $25.36 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
313 Veterans Home 120.72 $25.36 $25,059.07 $48,415.95 $73,475.02
316 Indian Affairs Commission 4.00 $25.36 $2,434.56 $0.00 $2,434.56
321 Department of Veterans Affairs 9.00 $25.36 $4,755.78 $721.98 $5,477.76
325 Department of Human Senvices 2204.23 $25.36 $1,125,622.74 $215,959.80 $1,341,582.55
360 Protection and Advocacy Project 27.50 $25.36  $16,737.60 $0.00  $16,737.60
380 Job Senice North Dakota 181.61 $25.36 $740.56  $109,794.55 $110,535.11
401 Office of the Insurance Commissioner 47.00 $25.36 $0.00 $28,606.08 $28,606.08
405 Industrial Commission 105.25 $25.36 $60,219.80 $3,839.56 $64,059.36
406 Office of the Labor Commissioner 14.00 $25.36 $8,520.96 $0.00 $8,520.96
408 Public Senice Commission 45.00 $25.36 $16,634.87 $10,753.93 $27,388.80
412 Aeronautics Commission 7.00 $25.36 $0.00 $4,260.48 $4,260.48
413 Department of Financial Institutions 30.00 $25.36 $0.00 $18,259.20 $18,259.20
414 Office of the Securities Commissioner 9.00 $25.36 $0.00 $5,477.76 $5,477.76
471 Bank of North Dakota 181.50 $25.36 $0.00 $110,468.16 $110,468.16
473 North Dakota Housing Finance Agency 46.00 $25.36 $0.00 $27,997.44 $27,997.44
475 North Dakota Mill & Elevator Association 153.00 $25.36 $0.00 $93,121.92 $93,121.92
485 Workforce Safety & Insurance 260.14 $25.36 $0.00 $158,331.61 $158,331.61
504 Highway Patrol 206.00 $25.36  $100,199.54 $25,180.30 $125,379.84
530 Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 846.29 $25.36 $481,841.33  $33,244.62 $515,085.95
540 Adjutant General 234.00 $25.36 $57,125.43 $85,296.33  $142,421.76
601 Department of Commerce 66.40 $25.36 $31,642.20 $8,771.49 $40,413.70
602 Department of Agriculture 75.00 $25.36 $25,083.36 $20,564.64 $45,648.00
627 Upper Great Plains Transportation Institute 43.88 $25.36 $6,722.62 $19,984.50 $26,707.12
628 Branch Research Centers 110.29 $25.36 $49,012.10 $18,114.80 $67,126.91
630 NDSU Extension Senice 252.98 $25.36 $78,462.69 $75,511.06  $153,973.75
638 Northern Crops Institute 11.80 $25.36 $6,069.46 $1,112.49 $7,181.95
640 NDSU Main Research Center 336.12 $25.36  $132,042.32 $72,533.75  $204,576.08
649 Agronomy Seed Farm 3.00 $25.36 $0.00 $1,825.92 $1,825.92
670 Racing Commission 2.00 $25.36 $1,217.28 $0.00 $1,217.28
701 State Historical Society 77.00 $25.36  $42,856.64 $4,008.64  $46,865.28
709 Council on the Arts 5.00 $25.36 $3,043.20 $0.00 $3,043.20
720 Game & Fish Department 163.00 $25.36 $0.00 $99,208.32 $99,208.32
750 Department of Parks & Recreation 65.00 $25.36 $38,077.75 $1,483.85 $39,561.60
770 State Water Commission 96.00 $25.36 $0.00  $58,429.44  $58,429.44
801 Department Of Transportation 1054.01 $25.36 $0.00 $641,512.65 $641,512.65

State Total 16078.69 $25.36 $5,378,685 $4,407,449 $9,786,134
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2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Peace Garden Room, State Capitol

HB 1436
3/14/2017
29263

0 Subcommittee
] Conference Committee

O

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Employee benefits program committee, public employee uniform group insurance health
benefits coverage & provide for a retirement board line of credit.

Minutes: Attachment 1, 2, %

Chairman Keiser: Opens the hearing of HB 1436.

Al Carlson ~ District 41- South Fargo: Attachment 1. Your house passed out HB 1406 &
1407 with significant amendments as to the changing of the board & the committee structure
for the operation of PERS. This is none of those. Below will be key points from his testimony.

This is self-funded public employee health insurance plan that sets the state for the future for
health benefits for the future. This is by far, 49 out of the 50 states has some version of a
self-funded plan.

Itis time. We tried it once in the past & the legislature at that point in time was not willing to
put money into the reserves because it probably an opportunity for the premiums to not cover
the claims to begin with as you go through this. This bill takes care of that.

It simply means that insurance is not purchased but rather the state insurance contributions
are pooled into state owned reserve fund to pay claims, administrative expenses & any
money that isn’'t used to pay claims or administrative expenses, stay in the fund.

In a fully insured state plan, the state will pay premiums based projected claims. In the last
biennium it's amazingly high about what those total claims were. Claims paid were 255
million dollars.

The key is, what is the value of self-funding? Is there a benefit for the state to do this in the
long run? These are not our dollars; these are the tax payer’'s dollars. We made a
commitment years ago to our state employees when we didn’t offer raised, that we would
stay 100% funded on their health insurance. The governor came over & asked, why didn’t
you take off 5% dissipation by the public employees.



House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
HB 1436

Mar 14, 2017

Page 2

What this bill does is doesn’t change anybody’s benefits during the next biennium but it does ‘
change on a designated date, which would be the first day of the year in 2018, it will change
ours to a self-funded plan.

The key is, how does it work & what happens to these 477 million dollars’ worth of premiums
we pay as a state; which 220 million dollars of premiums are general fund dollars. What
happens to those, how does this work & the benefit down the road. This bill is going to have
reinsurance.

At this time, there is a health insurance tax of 2.5% which applies to a fully insurance plan &
does not apply to a self-insured plan. Do the math on what we are paying on that tax as well
& it's about 11 million dollars.

This bill is also going to require that there is reinsurance to make sure that our catastrophic
loss is covered. It also has a fee that is allowed when the bids that are put out to reimburse
the person who is going to do the claims for us.

This is the end result that is affordable for the state as we go into the future. If you read the
bill, it does not cut our benefits.

Section 5, page 6 of the bill, it says may not shall. The same plan & benefits coverage. Also,

the retirement board shall use available monies that fund created, the reserve fund which

has about 36 million dollars in it of which 18 million dollars of that was taken to buy down our ‘
premium.

Lines 14-23 above, we have the Bank of ND to back us up if we do exceed our premium in
the short term. (See attachments & the bill for further details).

If we extend the contract for 6 more months, is that time to bid that new self-insurance plan?
Whoever bids it, the records are available what our claims history is. I'm not sure what the
response would be by those people involved but | anticipate whether they will find the
problem. That problem | believe should be able to be handle by those people who effectively
did that in that amount of period of time.

Instead of a 6-year contract it's a 4-year contract with a 2-year renewal or it could be rebid if
the board calls for that. This does not strip the board’s ability to control but it directs the
retirement board to use the reserve fund & talks about the affect to what happens to a bill
during the session.

Our rules now, our employee benefits standing committee, has to receive or take possession

of that various bill & it can be taken away from the policy committee. This bill says that they

have control of those issues if we are not in session but when we are in session, the policy
committee that it is assigned to has possession of that bill will have control. That is a
procedural change. Now, the whole legislative body has the opportunity through this
committee in bringing it before the floor to vote on those issues. It's not meant to strip the ‘
authority but to involve us, the policy & spending branch into this process.




House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
HB 1436

Mar 14, 2017

Page 3

The executive recommendation was for $112.49 a month premium & this is a combined rate.
It also talks about the 18 million that would be taken from our reserve funds. This has gone
from $400 premium in 2001 to a $1,249 premium in 2017-2019.

This is an issue that we must address. This doesn’t take away everybody’s benefits; it means
we control our own destiny. We don’t know what the repeal is for the Affordable Care Act
because we need to know what effect that will have on us & we need to be able to control
our destiny on this.

If this is successful, our temp would also be not to take those reserves but to add the numbers
back into each budget, instead of taking the reserves away, to leave available, this would be
our first backstop for our insurance policy.

16:45

Chairman Keiser: Where are we going get the dollars that would have been used with the
18 million that would have been transferred from July 1 to January 1?

Rep Carlson: Right now we don’t have a plan that says we have it setting in a pot, when we
have to cover it. If one of those bills we passed says we can’t use those reserves, right there
is 18 million dollars. We have to put that back into those budgets & cover those 18 million
dollars, whether it would be from options that we have. We have to come up with those
dollars. When it's on the table, we have to discuss it & right now we have nothing on the
table. The Bank of ND is our back drop. If you did a minimum reserve of 3%, that’s 64 million
dollars. You need availability of 64 million dollars to make sure that this plan works. We will
have to find it if we move forward with this.

Rep Boschee: The claims history, what was that number? Was it for the year or for the
biennium?

Rep Carlson: | have the note that came from council that says your reserve balance for 1%
& 3 months’ claims paid during the past year was 255 million dollars for the year. You have
to understand that Sanford had a negative balance of 65 million where their claims exceeded
their premiums. That led to the increase that we have of premium that we have today that
went up plus it required an 18-million-dollar injection into that fund as well. It went from
$1,130 to $1,249, which is 10.6% plus 18 million dollars. The number | have is 255 million &
assuming you use that same number, means that we need to have a reserve of 64 million
dollars.

Rep Beadle: On the fully insured plan that we have now, did our current provider lose in this
last biennium due to the cost being higher than they anticipated. If we profit off of it &
expenditures are less than what we allocated, we split the profits 50/50 with the provider. If
we lose money based on the fully insured, they end up absorbing it? That takes away a lot
of the risk & liability for the state. Have we actually studied, making the adjustment to the
self-insured plan in terms of what it would do towards our liability exposure?
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Rep Carlson: That's why we buy the reinsurance to limit your liability. The reinsurance is
absolutely crucial to the success of the self-insured plan. I'm sure they do it as well. A
wellness program & self-insured plan is fiscal management for the future, it's time.

Chairman Keiser: We can ask Sparb Collins to go through plans. | do know that currently
we have a modified fully insured plan with the risk corridor, I'm not sure if that’s what we have
in the next biennium.

Rep Kasper ~ District 46: Talks about how you obtain a self-funded insurance bid.
28:30

Rep Boschee: The primary concern about the employees & in our districts, many have the
co-pays & deductibles. That is set up through a plan design, so regardless of what we are
seeing here in SB 1436, based on current benefits, it won’'t change because the plan design
has to be the same.

Rep Kasper: That's exactly right. There should be no fear, everything is the same except
how it's funded.

Rep Lefor: Can you expand on what a 3rd party administrator is?

Rep Kasper: A third party administrator is a company that has a business of providing claims
processing, negotiating with the providers for a claim & providing the record keeping. It's an
insurance plan not an insurance company. The administrator is paid by a per employee/per
month fee, which is negotiated in the contract. In a fully insured plan it's a hidden fee.

Rep Lefor: A 3" party administrator handles the claims but you still use another company
for the reinsurance aspect of it?

Rep Kasper: That's correct.

Rep Beadle: By switching to self-insured, would that do anything in terms of who handles
negotiations?

Rep Kasper: The 3™ party administrator, almost have all availability to networks that are
providers. The plan specifications would require to have the network availably under the new
plan or they could rent a network that companies have in ND & nationwide. You would have
a network that is vast & available in ND.

Chairman Keiser: We will have Jennifer Clark come up. | will start off, on tax savings, the
2.53% hit tax, is that going away?

Jennifer Clark ~ Legislative Legal Counsel: I'm neutral of this bill. | was just reading a
report about the federal plan & the proposal to revise/repeal on the ACA. | don't recall what
that tax provision was. My recollection is most of the changes that are anticipated under that
plan, they phase in over time. So, most are taking place in 2019-2020.
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Rep Kasper: What are the key things, when you are fully insured, you pay a premium tax in
the state of ND as well, that also goes away on a self-insured plan & we don’t pay premium
tax, except on the stop loss premium? As far as the ACA, that a different issue, that’s about
a 1% - 2 percent saving for ND.

35:23

Pat Bellmore ~ Chief Marketing Officer-Blue Cross Blue Shield ND: | would like to make
myself available as a resource in terms of what is happening out in the market place with
these types of programs. We have a large presence in representing large companies. The
employee would not see a change & they would have a different card. Over all, it a good
idea to put forth.

37:36

Rep Kasper: In your book of business, what is the average size of your employer/employee
self-funded group?

Bellmore: We are licensed to do partial self-funded, meaning self-funding with stop loss all
the way down to 26 employee lives. Any large employer we have that exceeds 750, is self-
insured.

Rep C Johnson: The self-insured plans, are they with private companies. Are there any
public entities, like a city or county? What is the difference between private & public?

Bellmore: There is no difference in the way the plans are structured. The basics are the
same.

Rep Boschee: Can you talk about the experience you have seen with self-insured
increases, are you talking about we don’t see go as high year to year or biennium to biennium
or is that not a factor?

Bellmore: | never dealt with a self-insured entity that went self-funded, turned back & went
fully insured.

Chairman Keiser: Anyone else here to testify in support of HB 1436, opposition, neutral
position.

Sparb Collins ~ Executive Director of the ND Public Employees Retirement System
(NDPERS): Attachment 2. | will appear in the neutral position because | haven't been able
to talk to our board.

48:30

Rep Kasper: The fund for the fully-insured is deposit, owned by the plan & could be an
interest bearing account?
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Collins: There are fully insured as well as self-insured, yes. In fully insured we get interest ‘
at the 5 years bill rate.

Rep Kasper: Which I'm sure you would negotiate for a self-insured plan?
Collins: Yes.

49:00 ~ Continues testimony.

52:40

Rep Kasper: How much are we getting in a refunded premium for a buy down in the
biennium on our health plan?

Collins: That's in the next paragraph.
Rep Kasper: The other positives the previous years were with a different insurance carrier?

Collins: We have basically the same contract in place, yes there is differences in terms of
performance.

53:20 ~ Continues testimony.

53:50 ‘

Rep Kasper: This is disingenuous to say that if we would have been self-insured, we might
have had the same 15-million-dollar loss because we don't know where the stop loss
premiums would have kicked in.

Collins: That’'s what | meant to say if | didn’t.

Rep Kasper: You really can’t compare.

Collins: Yes.

54:20 ~ Continues testimony.

1:04:30

Rep Kasper: Have you asked the AG for an opinion on whether or not the contract you have
with Sanford would violate section 18, article 1?

Collins: You brought that up with the one meeting & | asked someone from the AG’s office

to talk to you. Did they? ‘
Rep Kasper: You have not asked for an AG'’s opinion?

Collins: No.
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Rep Kasper: Why not?

Collins: | would like the AG’s office answer that for you.

Rep Kasper: This is the 3™ or 4t" time | heard that there is a potential constitutional issue, |
would assume as a ND PERS, you would want clarification from the AG opinion so we know

what we are dealing with.

Rep Boschee: You said that we were just under 22% average increase when we self-
funded, just 14% average when fully-funded, any assumptions why we see a 7% difference.

Collins: We can’t draw any specific conclusions there about which is better. What I'm
pointing out with those numbers is there nothing in those numbers that says that one is in
fact better than the other.

Rep Beadle: Most of the conversation is with the increases in the premiums. Have you
pulled any analysis from other states in terms of their increases?

Collins: In the testimony on page 2 are some comparisons.

Rep Kasper: Did you also compare the benefits?

Collins: No.

Chairman Keiser: Could you give the committee a copy of RFP for the coming biennium?
Also, both the response to the fully insured, risk corridor insured, modified program & also
the self-insured. We can see the RFP’s as well as the bids.

Collins: | gave it to you last time, | can'’t give you the bid.

Chairman Keiser: You just went through a process.

Collins: We went through a renewal & the renewal followed the procedures that you adopted
in statue.

Lisa Carlson~Senior Director of Market Strategy at Sanford Health Plan: Attachment 3.
We believe is the due date of section 5, unconstitutionally impairs our existing contract. We
would be happy to discuss the due dates & if that section was changed.

1:12:40

Rep Kasper: What is the date your legal council is saying the date would have to be change
to where you would see no threat under the potential constitutionality issue?

Carlson: Our council has said that after our contract expires, June 30, 2021.

Chairman Keiser: Eric, can you come up?
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Eric-Bank of ND: We have a small amendment that deals with the line of credit. Our desire .
would be to change the rate. You have a fixed rate of 1%%, typically how we deal with state
agencies, we give them the same rate across the board which is 1%2% over the 3 month

liable, a floating rate. Rather than a fixed rate of 1 %% which may last. That is our suggestion

to make a small change in the interest rate to make floating like we do with all other state
agencies.

Rep Boschee: Can tell us what the 3-month LIBOR rate is today?
Eric: Itis 1.13.

Rep Becker: Doesn’t that give some instability to the actuarial aspect. | imagine that the
LIBOR rate is going to up based on what we’ve been hearing through the feds.

Eric: It would certainly may. When you draw from a line of credit from the bank’s perspective
is locking you in a rate of 1%% for | don’'t know for how long. As you suggested, it does
appear that rates are going to go up. The Bank of ND on a 50 million line could be lock in to
a rate, which under our cost of funding. That's how the bank looks at it & is to protect the
bank from interest credit risks. Those 2 have to be balanced.

Rep Kasper: If we put a 4-year sunset rate on the interest rate, could you live with that?
Eric: We would have to look at a different rate. ‘
Rep Kasper: Are we able under current statue to do that, even though you do not like it?
Chairman Keiser: The answer is yes.

Rep Ruby: This is the rate you charge per year, an annual rate & this is a percentage of
insuring is a line of credit? If it's ever accessed & it's called in, then there is an interest rate
that is different, is that right?

Eric: No, this is an interest rate on a loan, when the loan is taken down.

Rep Ruby: Otherwise no.

Eric: This would be the loan rate.

Chairman Keiser: You are right, Rep Ruby, the rate would not go into effect.

You are not borrowing the money until you need, it's a line of credit. There is no interest until

you use it.

Chairman Keiser: Closes the hearing. .
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Explanation or reason for introduction. of bill/resolution:

]
Employee benefits program committee, public employee uniform group insurance health
benefits coverage & provide for a retirement board line of credit.

Minutes: Attachment 1

Chairman Keiser: Reopens the hearing of HB 1436.

Todd Steinwand ~ Chief Business Development Officer of the Bank of ND:
Attachment 1. We want to offer the following amendment to HB 1436. It relates to section
4, number 3, talks about the interest rate charges on the line of credit.

(Reads the amendment).

Rep Becker: It seems to me that this insures that the Bank of ND is the cost for you?
Steinwand: It does provide a return for the bank. When we have lent money to other
agencies, normally it's been at variable rates. Most likely, interest rates are going It makes
sense to lock in the rate. We expect interest rates to rise 3 times over this coming year. We
are able to do some match funding if we know what the dollar amount & lock in some rates.
We tried to be competitive.

Yes, we will get a return on this.

Chairman Keiser: Further questions?
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Employee benefits program committee, public employee uniform group insurance health
benefits coverage and provide for a retirement board line of credit.

Minutes: Attachment 1a & b

Chairman Keiser: Opens the hearing of HB 1436.

Rep Carlson, Sponsor ~ District 41: (Attachment 1a & b). | have always had a concern
that we do not have enough tie between the PERS Board and our Employee Benefits
Committee which is a standing committee. A lot of these amendments deal with trying to tie
those together.

The amendments maintain the current membership of the board. It limits the activities of the
board to the interim between regular legislative sessions. When all us are here at the
legislature, we should all be hearing and voting on those issues.

The bill takes away the draft reviewing process. Instead it limits review to the executive and
judicial branch. It expands the role of the employee benefits policy committee to quarterly
meetings during the interim. We see the budget the day the Governor gives his report to us
in the pre-session. That is too late. We should be engaged in the process. But when we
are backed in with a contract and told this is what is to be paid, it takes us out of the picture
of the job we are supposed to do. This tries to tie them together.

There are concerns on the retirement side. There are fiduciary relationships that are
established on the retirement plans that we don’t want to be in the middle of. It codifies in
PERS law that all PERS uniform group plan contracts and terms are subject to legislative
appropriation and changes. All other contracts and leases are subject to the legislature
appropriating the money.

(6:00)
| believe we are on solid ground saying that we have to put into law that everything that is
signed is subject to our review and ability to appropriate.
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It clarifies under a self-funded health plan that it may include consideration of funds extended
to the board by the Bank of North Dakota. It clarifies the January 1, 2018 directive to
transition to self-funded plan doesn'’t include the PERS retiree plan or the Medicaid Part D
plan.

If we are spending $477 million of taxpayer money, we need to be engaged. The way this is
written, the contract that we have today extends for the entire biennium the same benefits,
copays, and deductibles. \We become the risk taker and we become liable for anything over
the insurance loss amount. There are people who provide the third party services to
administer the claims. They bid it on a regular basis. They have an established fee. They
have said that those who have gone from fully funded to self-funded have not reverted back
over the years. Forty-nine out of fifty states have done this. North Dakota should be able to
also.

Rep Beadle: In discussion on the original hearing on this bill, we learned that we were the
ones that went from self to fully insured. When we are dealing with a $500 million contract,
why wouldn’t we want to study this change before doing it?

Rep Carlson: We have studied this in the past. There was an opportunity to have a bid for
self-funded. In the last two rounds those bids were not accepted. In both cases they were
cheaper. This is about money management for the State of North Dakota. Why study when
we know the facts?

Rep Ruby: (Attachment 1b) Page 3, line 9--This is talking about the plan and in current law
would have to be accompanied by a report of the Employee’s Benefit Committee. Are we
okay to make a change without that process happening?

Rep Carlson: We still have actuarial reports that we get. The PERS Board is still in place.
This just deals with the action we take in the interim.

Chairman Keiser: This section is similar to what we did in the Worker's Compensation
section of the code where every bill that is introduced has to have a fiscal note.

Jennifer Clark ~ Attorney at Legislative Council: Page 3, line 9, subsection 5, that law is
in place today. The difference is now it applies to the introduction of every legislative
measure regardless of who the sponsor is. The change is that we are not applying that
limitation to measures introduced by individual legislators. We are limiting it to legislative
management bills because they are done early, executive branch, and judicial branch bills.
Those are the pre-filed.

(15:00)
Rep Ruby: By moving to a self-funded program, are we allowed to do that without the
requirements under existing law that is under subsection 5?

Jennifer Clark: Your concern is that this bill doesn’t have a report on it. On page 8 of the
markup, there is an exemption so that is an attempt to acknowledge the fact that this doesn’t
have a report on it. When it is in code that the executive branch needs to do something,
there is no getting around it. In this instance, you are tying your own hands as a legislative
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assembly. When you as a group take an action that counters what you had told yourselves
what you wanted to do, that new action trumps what code says. In practice, it hard to stop
somebody who wants to introduce a bill.

Chairman Keiser: Currently we are on a modified fully-funded program until July. The
proposed contract for the next two-year period, is it a modified fully insured or a fully insured
plan?

Sparb Collins: It's modified. We have negotiated one change. Currently we share 50/50
in the first $6 million of loss. The contract in place for July 1, there will be no risk on the top
end. Itis all shifted to the carrier.

Chairman Keiser: Is there a division on the profit?
Sparb Collins: On the bottom end it would be the same and that is 50/50 on the first $3
million. After that all of it comes back as a refund to PERS. That includes the rebates and

interest.

Chairman Keiser: We will reconvene on Monday morning at 9:00 a.m.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Employee benefits program committee, public employee uniform group insurance health
benefits coverage and provide for a retirement board line of credit.

Minutes: Attachment 1a & b and Attachment 2

Chairman Keiser: Opens the hearing of HB 1436.

Chairman Keiser: The purpose of reopening the hearing is to give anyone in the audience
a chance to comment on the amendment proposed last week? (Attachment 1)

Lisa Carlson, Sanford Health Plan: \We are in opposition to HB 1436 because in
Section 5 it is our belief that it unconstitutionally impairs our existing contract.

Chairman Keiser: There is also an amendment from the Bank of North Dakota.
(Attachment 2) If you have the amended bill page 7, line 7. The Bank suggested that on
line 7 it would be “million dollars at an annual rate not to exceed three percent” vs. the “one
and three-quarters” percent. “Not to exceed three percent for a two-year term or four percent
for a five-year term.” Continues reading from amendment.

Rep Ruby: Moved both amendments. | think the Bank of North Dakota’s amendment is
prudent. If you get a loan, it is generally a better rate if it is a shorter term.

Rep Sukut: Second.

A Roll Call vote was taken: Yes 13 ,No 0 , Absent 1

Motion to adopt both amendments carries.
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Rep Lefor: Moved to amend page 1, line 17, correct second word from end to “public.”
Also on page 3, line 23 add “or measure” after the word “amendment.”

Rep Boschee: Second.

Voice Vote taken. Motion to correct wording carries.

Rep Beadle: Move to change on page 7, line 18, replace “2018” with “2020.”

The PERS committee just went through the reauthorization of the contract. That would give
additional time to implement the policy.

Rep Becker: Second.

A Roll Call vote was taken: Yes 7 ,No 6 , Absent 1

The motion to change the date to 2020 carries.

Rep. Ruby: Moved Do Pass as amended.
Rep Laning: Second.

Rep Boschee: | will resist the motion. | know there has been frustration in the past with the
PERS board. | see them as an independent body who has spent the time studying these
issues. My concern is the short time that we had to study this. This is not a good path
forward. It shows another overreach that the legislative branch continues to make toward
the executive branch.

A Roll Call vote was taken: Yes 10 ,No 3 , Absent 1

Do Pass as amended carries.

Representative Lefor will carry the bill.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Employee benefits program committee, public employee uniform group insurance health
benefits coverage and provide for a retirement board line of credit.

Minutes:

Chairman Keiser: We had a request to reconvene. Is there an intention to reconsider any
of our actions from this morning on HB 14367

Rep Becker: Moved to reconsider. Rep Beadle’s amendment is worthy of discussion. We
should avoid having concerns about contracts. The timing defeats the purpose because the
legislature will be back in session before 2020. We should keep the original date.

Rep Bosch: Second.

Chairman Keiser: This is in reference to the amended bill page 7, line 18 where we
amended the date from 2018 to 2020. | talked to the Attorney General. It is the Attorney
General’s position that if a lawsuit is mentioned in testimony that they don’t comment because
they would have to defend the State of North Dakota.

Rep Beadle: I'm going to stand by my amendment. It would behoove us to look at history.
We are in a costly plan. The idea that a self-funded plan will be cheaper might not be true
when we look at the fact that we are so expensive that our current provider is absorbing over
$50 million worth of loss in a biennium. If we don’t do this, we will have the Bank of North
Dakota stop gap. The fact that pushing this onto another legislative session would give us
two years to study a half billion-dollar adjustment worth of liability exposure to the state when
currently we don’t have liability or risk exposure. We can adjust funding levels any time we
want. The terms and conditions of the contract are adjusted. We have control, security, little
risk, and little liability. By pushing it out two years, it gives us the ability to study all of what
brought us into the circumstance we are now and make sure we are not jumping in and
hoping it is a better policy.

Voice Vote taken. Motion to reconsider carried.
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Rep Ruby: Moved to amend to change the date from 2020 to 2018 on page 7, line 18. ‘
Rep Sukut; Second.

A Roll Call vote was taken: Yes 10 ,No 3 , Absent 1

Motion to amend carries.

Rep Ruby: Moved Do Pass as amended.
Rep Bosch: Second.

A Roll Call vote was taken: Yes 10 ,No 3 , Absent 1

Do Pass as amended carries.

Representative Lefor will carry the bill.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1436

Page 1, line 12, overstrike "consider" and insert immediately thereafter "

Meet at least quarterly at the discretion of the chairman.

i

Receive quarterly reports from the public employees retirement
system on the activities of the public employees retirement system,
including the status of and any proposed changes to its retirement
system plans and uniform group insurance plans. Before each regular
legislative session, the pubic employees retirement system shall
present to the committee the executive budget proposals, including
any anticipated changes, relating to retirement plans and uniform
group insurance plans administered by the public employees
retirement system. The committee shall consider and report on these
activities and executive budget proposals.

[c

Investigate the feasibility and desirability of making changes to the
retirement plans and uniform group insurance plans administered by
the public employees retirement system. The committee may request
actuarial reports on the actuarial impact of possible changes and of
plan design options.

|©

d. Consider"
’ Page 1, overstrike "measures and"
Page 1, line 17, remove "a"
Page 1, line 18, overstrike "measure or" and insert immediately thereafter "a legislative"
Page 1, line 19, overstrike "The committee shall take" and insert immediately thereafter:

e. Take"

Page 1, line 19, remove "such"

Page 1, line 19, overstrike "measure or" and insert immediately thereafter "such legislative"
Page 1, line 23, overstrike "The committee shall report its" and insert immediately thereafter:

“f.  Report the committee's"

Page 2, line 16, overstrike "measures and" and insert immediately thereafter "legislative"
Page 2, line 20, remove "If 2"

Page 2, line 21, remove "legislative"

Page 2, line 21, overstrike "measure"

Page 2, line 21, replace "or" with "If a legislative"

. Page 3, line 1, after "committee" insert "takes action on a legislative measure sponsored by a
legislator or" '

Page No. 1 17.1008.03001




Page 4, after line 14, insert:

"4, A contract and the terms of a contract entered by the board under this
chapter are subject to legislative appropriation and legislative changes." .

Page 6, line 11, after the period insert "Such plan may include consideration of funds extended -
to the board from the Bank of North Dakota."

Page 6, line 27, after "54-52.1-04.2" insert ", except for benefits for retirees and for Medicare
part D"

Page 7, line 3, after "plan" insert "under subsection 1"

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 2 17.1008.03001




Amendment to House Bill 1436

The Bank of North Dakota shall extend to the board a line of credit not to exceed fifty million dollars at
an annual rate not to exceed three percent for a two year term or four percent for a five year term. The
board shall repay the line of credit from health insurance premium revenue or from other funds, as
appropriated by the legislative assembly. The board may access the line of credit, as necessary, to
provide adequate reserve funds, to purchase stop-loss coverage, and to defray other expenditures of
administration of the self-insurance plan.
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Title.04000 Committee
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. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1436

Page 1, line 12, overstrike "consider" and insert immediately thereafter ";

Meet at least quarterly at the discretion of the chairman.

|

b. Receive quarterly reports from the public employees retirement
system on the activities of the public employees retirement system,
including the status of and any proposed changes to its retirement
system plans and uniform group insurance plans. Before each regular
legislative session, the public employees retirement system shall
present to the committee the executive budget proposals, including
any anticipated changes, relating to retirement plans and uniform
group insurance plans administered by the public employees
retirement system. The committee shall consider and report on these
activities and executive budget proposals.

Investigate the feasibility and desirability of making changes to the
retirement plans and uniform group insurance plans administered by
the public employees retirement system. The committee may request
actuarial reports on the actuarial impact of possible changes and of
plan design options.

|©

d. Consider"
Page 1, line 12 overstrike "measures and"
' Page 1, line 17, remove "a"
Page 1, line 18, overstrike "measure or" and insert immediately thereafter "a legislative"

Page 1, line 19, overstrike "The committee shall take" and insert immediately thereafter "e.
Take"

Page 1, line 19, remove "such"

Page 1, line 19, overstrike "measure or" and insert immediately thereafter "such legislative"

Page 1, line 23, overstrike "The committee shall report its" and insert immediately thereafter "f.
Report the committee's"

Page 2, line 16, overstrike "measures and" and insert immediately thereafter "legislative"
Page 2, line 20, remove "If 8"

Page 2, line 21, remove "legislative"

Page 2, line 21, overstrike "measure"

Page 2, line 21, replace "or" with "If a legislative"

Page 3, line 1, after "committee" insert "takes action on a legislative measure sponsored by a
legislator or"
. Page 3, line 7, after "amendment" insert "or measure"

Page No. 1 17.1008.03002
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Page 4, after line 14, insert: 2 J;E“i

"4. A contract and the terms of a contract entered by the board under this
chapter are subject to legislative appropriation and legislative changes."

Page 6, line 11, after the period insert "Such plan may include consideration of funds extended
to the board from the Bank of North Dakota."

Page 6, line 18, replace "one and three-quarters percent" with "three percent for a two year
term or four percent for a five year term"

Page 6, line 27, after "54-52.1-04.2" insert ", except for benefits for retirees and for Medicare
part D"

Page 7, line 3, after "plan" insert "under subsection 1"

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 2 17.1008.03002




Date: _ 3/27/17

Roll Call Vote #: 1

2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB __ 1436

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee

[0 Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or 17.1008.03001 and Bank of North Dakota amendment
Description:

Recommendation
X Adopt Amendment

] Do Pass (0 Do Not Pass ] Without Committee Recommendation

] As Amended [ Rerefer to Appropriations
[J Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions (] Reconsider O
Motion Made By _Rep Ruby Seconded By Rep Sukut
Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Keiser X Rep Laning X
Vice Chairman Sukut X Rep Lefor X
Rep Beadle X Rep Louser X
Rep R Becker X Rep O’Brien X
Rep Bosch X Rep Ruby X
Rep C Johnson X Rep Boschee X
Rep Kasper AB Rep Dobervich X
Total (Yes) 13 No O
1
Absent
Floor

Assignment




Date: 3/27/17

Roll Call Vote #:

. 2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE

BILL/RESOLUTION NO.

ROLL CALL VOTES

HB 1436

House Industry, Business and Labor

Amendment LC# or
Description:

[0 Subcommittee

Committee

Recommendation

Adopt Amendment

(] Do Pass

] Do Not Pass
[0 As Amended

[J Place on Consent Calendar

Other Actions (] Reconsider

Motion Made By Rep Lefor

a

1 Without Committee Recommendation
(] Rerefer to Appropriations

Seconded By Rep Boschee

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Keiser Rep Laning
‘ Vice Chairman Sukut Rep Lefor

Rep Beadle Rep Louser
Rep R Becker Rep O’Brien
Rep Bosch Rep Ruby
Rep C Johnson Rep Boschee
Rep Kasper Rep Dobervich

Total (Yes) No

Absent

Floor Voice vote ~ Motion carried

Assignment

Word corrections:
Page 1, line 17—"“public”

‘ Page 3, line 23—add “or measure”




Date: 3/27/17

Roll Call Vote #: 3

2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB __ 1436

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee

[0 Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or
Description:

Recommendation
Adopt Amendment

(] Do Pass [J Do Not Pass ] Without Committee Recommendation

] As Amended L1 Rerefer to Appropriations
[J Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions (] Reconsider O
Motion Made By _Rep Beadle Seconded By Rep Becker
Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Keiser X | Rep Laning X
Vice Chairman Sukut X | Rep Lefor X
Rep Beadle X Rep Louser X
Rep R Becker X Rep O’Brien X
Rep Bosch X | Rep Ruby X
Rep C Johnson X Rep Boschee X
Rep Kasper AB Rep Dobervich X
0
Total (Yes) 7 No 6
1
Absent
Floor

Assignment

Page 7, line 18 replace “2018” with “2020”



Date: _ 3/27/17

Roll Call Vote #: 4
. 2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB __1436
House Industry, Business and Labor Committee

O Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or
Description:

Recommendation
[ Adopt Amendment

X Do Pass [0 Do Not Pass ] Without Committee Recommendation

As Amended [ Rerefer to Appropriations
[ Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions [0 Reconsider O
Motion Made By _Rep Ruby Seconded By Rep Laning
Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Keiser X Rep Laning X
Vice Chairman Sukut X Rep Lefor X
Rep Beadle X | Rep Louser X
Rep R Becker X Rep O’Brien X
Rep Bosch X Rep Ruby X
Rep C Johnson X Rep Boschee X
Rep Kasper AB Rep Dobervich X
0
Total (Yes) 10 No 3
1
Absent
Floor
Assignment Rep Lefor




Date: 3/27/17

Roll Call Vote #: 1

2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB 1436

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee

OO Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or
Description:

Recommendation
] Adopt Amendment

[J Do Pass [0 Do Not Pass J Without Committee Recommendation

] As Amended [ Rerefer to Appropriations
[ Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions Reconsider O
Motion Made By___Rep Becker Seconded By Rep Bosch
Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Keiser Rep Laning
Vice Chairman Sukut Rep Lefor
Rep Beadle Rep Louser
Rep R Becker Rep O'Brien
Rep Bosch Rep Ruby
Rep C Johnson Rep Boschee
Rep Kasper Rep Dobervich
Total (Yes) No
Absent
Floor Voice vote ~ Motion carried

Assignment




Date: 3/27/17

RollCallVote #: _ 2

. 2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB __1436

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee

0 Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or
Description:

Recommendation
X Adopt Amendment

] Do Pass ] Do Not Pass ] Without Committee Recommendation

(1 As Amended ] Rerefer to Appropriations
L] Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions (] Reconsider O
Motion Made By Rep Ruby Seconded By __Rep Sukut
Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Keiser X Rep Laning X
Vice Chairman Sukut X Rep Lefor X
Rep Beadle X | Rep Louser X
Rep R Becker X Rep O'Brien X
Rep Bosch X Rep Ruby X
Rep C Johnson X Rep Boschee X
Rep Kasper AB Rep Dobervich X
Total (Yes) 10 No 3
Absent 1
Floor

Assignment

Page 7, line 18, change date from 2020 to 2018.
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Roll Call Vote #: 3

2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB ___ 1436

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee

[0 Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or
Description:

Recommendation
(1 Adopt Amendment

X Do Pass (] Do Not Pass ] Without Committee Recommendation

As Amended [] Rerefer to Appropriations
(1 Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions [J Reconsider O
Motion Made By Rep Ruby Seconded By _ Rep Bosch
Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Keiser X Rep Laning X
Vice Chairman Sukut X Rep Lefor X
Rep Beadle X | Rep Louser X
Rep R Becker X Rep O’'Brien X
Rep Bosch X Rep Ruby X
Rep C Johnson X Rep Boschee X
Rep Kasper AB Rep Dobervich X
Total (Yes) 10 No 3
Absent 1
Floor

Assignment Rep. Lefor




Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: h_stcomrep_56_005
March 28, 2017 12:09PM Carrier: Lefor
Insert LC: 17.1008.03002 Title: 04000

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1436: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Rep. Keiser, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (10 YEAS,
3 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1436 was placed on the Sixth order on
the calendar.

Page 1, line 12, overstrike "consider" and insert immediately thereafter ":

Meet at least quarterly at the discretion of the chairman.

|

b. Receive quarterly reports from the public employees retirement
system on the activities of the public employees retirement system,
including the status of and any proposed changes to its retirement
system plans and uniform group insurance plans. Before each
reqular leqgislative session, the public employees retirement system
shall present to the committee the executive budget proposals,
including any anticipated changes, relating to retirement plans and
uniform group insurance plans administered by the public employees
retirement system. The committee shall consider and report on these
activities and executive budget proposals.

Investigate the feasibility and desirability of making changes to the
retirement plans and uniform group insurance plans administered by
the public employees retirement system. The committee may
request actuarial reports on the actuarial impact of possible changes
and of plan design options.

|©

d. Consider"
' Page 1, line 12 overstrike "measures and"
Page 1, line 17, remove "a"
Page 1, line 18, overstrike "measure or" and insert immediately thereafter "a legislative"

Page 1, line 19, overstrike "The committee shall take" and insert immediately thereafter "e.
Take"

Page 1, line 19, remove "such"
Page 1, line 19, overstrike "measure or" and insert immediately thereafter "such legislative"

Page 1, line 23, overstrike "The committee shall report its" and insert immediately thereafter
“f. Report the committee's"

Page 2, line 16, overstrike "measures and" and insert immediately thereafter "legislative"
Page 2, line 20, remove "If 8"

Page 2, line 21, remove "legislative"

Page 2, line 21, overstrike "measure"

Page 2, line 21, replace "or" with "If a legislative"

Page 3, line 1, after "committee" insert "takes action on a legislative measure sponsored by

. a legislator or"
Page 3, line 7, after "amendment" insert "or measure"

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_56_005




Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: h_stcomrep_56_005
March 28, 2017 12:09PM Carrier: Lefor
Insert LC: 17.1008.03002 Title: 04000

Page 4, after line 14, insert:

"4. A contract and the terms of a contract entered by the board under this
chapter are subject to legislative appropriation and legislative changes."

Page 6, line 11, after the period insert "Such plan may include consideration of funds
extended to the board from the Bank of North Dakota."

Page 6, line 18, replace "one and three-quarters percent" with "three percent for a two year
term or four percent for a five year term"

Page 6, line 27, after "54-52.1-04.2" insert ", except for benefits for retirees and for Medicare
part D"

Page 7, line 3, after "plan" insert "under subsection 1"

Renumber accordingly

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_56_005
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REQUEST
REP. VIGESAA REQUESTED that the remarks of Rep. Trottier be printed in the Journal,
which request was granted on a voice vote.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS
SPEAKER BELLEW DEEMED approval of the amendments to HB 1436, SB 2099,
SB 2141, Engrossed SB 2189, and SB 2196.

HB 1436, as amended, was rereferred to the Appropriations Committee.

SB 2099, SB 2141, Engrossed SB 2189, and SB 2196, as amended, were placed on the
Fourteenth order of business on today's calendar.

MOTION
REP. VIGESAA MOVED that HB 1436, which had amendments passed on the previous
Sixth order, not be rerefered to the Appropriations committee and be placed on the Eleventh
order of today's calendar, in accordance with HR 329, which motion prevailed on a voice
vote.

CONSIDERATION OF VETOED MEASURE
HB 1153: AN ACT to amend and reenact section 54-06-31 of the North Dakota Century
Code, relating to state employee recruitment and retention bonus programs.

ROLL CALL
The question being on the final passage of the enrolled bill, over the Governor's veto, which
has been read, the roll was called and there were 84 YEAS, 7 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED,
3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, B.; Anderson, D.; Beadle; Becker, Rich S.; Becker, Rick C.; Blum;
Boehning; Bosch; Boschee; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore;
Delzer; Devlin; Dobervich; Dockter; Ertelt; Grueneich; Guggisberg; Hanson;
Hatlestad; Headland; Heinert; Holman; Howe; Johnson, C.; Johnson, D.; Jones;
Kading; Karls; Keiser; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klemin; Koppelman, B.; Koppelman, K;;
Kreidt; Laning; Lefor; Longmuir; Louser; Magrum; Marschall; Martinson; McWilliams;
Meier; Mitskog; Mock; Monson; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Oliver; Owens; Paur;
Pollert; Porter; Pyle; Roers Jones; Rohr; Ruby, D.; Ruby, M.; Sanford; Satrom;
Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Schobinger; Seibel; Simons; Skroch; Steiner; Streyle;
Sukut; Toman; Trottier; Vetter; Vigesaa; Weisz; Westlind; Zubke; Speaker Bellew

NAYS: Anderson, P.; Hogan; Johnson, M.; Johnston; Maragos; O'Brien; Schreiber-Beck
ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Boe; Kasper; Olson

The House overrode the Governor's veto of HB 1153, as enrolled.

kkkkkkkhhkkkkkkkkkkk

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL
HB 1436: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 54-35-02.4, 54-52.1-04,
54-52.1-04.2, and 54-52.1-04.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the
employee benefits program committee, public employee uniform group insurance
health benefits coverage, and to provide for a retirement board line of credit; to
provide a continuing appropriation; to provide for application; and to provide
statements of legislative intent.

ROLL CALL
The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has
committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 71 YEAS,
19 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, B.; Anderson, D.; Becker, Rich S.; Becker, Rick C.; Blum; Boehning;
Bosch; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delzer; Devlin; Dockter;
Grueneich; Hatlestad; Headland; Heinert; Howe; Johnson, C.; Johnson, D.;
Johnston; Jones; Kading; Karls; Keiser; Kiefert; Klemin; Koppelman, B.;
Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Laning; Lefor; Longmuir; Louser; Magrum; Maragos;
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2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Sheyenne River Room, State Capitol

HB 1436
4/3/2017
Job Number 29897

O Subcommittee
] Conference Committee

/]
Committee Clerk Signature /WV//\/, ./W

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 54-35-02.4, 54-52.1-04, 54-52.1-04.2,
and 54-52.1-04.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the employee benefits
program committee, public employee uniform group insurance health benefits coverage,
and to provide for a retirement board line of credit; to provide a continuing
appropriation; to provide for application; and to provide statements of legislative intent.

Minutes: Attachments: 1-2

Chairman Poolman: Opened the hearing on HB 1436.

Representative Carlson, District 41: See Attachment #1 for testimony as sponsor and in
support of the bill. This is a delayed bill out of the House. The other bills you have seen on
this subject dealt with the mechanics of the board, how we deal with the board issues, and
whether or not the interim committee should be more engaged in this. Most of the bill deals
with our ability to self-insure. Self-insurance is a concept that is used in 49 of the 50 states.
We are the one that has not chosen that. This bill sets up a timeline and guidelines about
how you go about self-insuring and how you buy reinsurance to cover catastrophic loss. It
also deals with issues of who bids and how they can bid. How they are paid and what the
contract would say about their administrative fees. It is not any more complicated than that.
The complication of the issue seems to be, from those people against i, is if the plan is going
to change and if it is a back door way to get at the public employees and take away their
benefits. The answer is emphatically no. For the next two years, the plan will be exactly the
same. Every session we come in, there is a chance to adjust the plan. This time, as you know
when it came to us from PERS board and the Governor, it had increased co-pays and co-
insurance costs so it cost each one of our members more money this time than last time.
That was done to help keep the cost of this plan in line because it escalated another 17%,
and with that they have taken away some of the reserves that we built up. It is taking $15
million of the $35 million in reserve. As they recalculated, they also found that the bid had
gone down some. Within the budget bill that you will see, we are lowering that another $1.5
million. You will not see that on the premium, you will see that as a credit back into each
agency budget. The question is why reinsure? What are the long term benefits? | am looking
down the road. | am not looking at just today. The long term benefits are that it gives you
much more flexibility when you are done. It allows you to do more health initiative type things.
It allows you to have HMOs. It allows you to have various plans that you offer. There is a risk
factor, because instead of our plan being fully insured by someone like Sanford or the blues,
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where if your claims outrun your premiums, they take the difference. In the last two years, '

when they renewed the plan, Sanford lost a significant amount of money because our
premiums did not match up to our claims. Therein part of the reason why the premiums had
to go up. They said they couldn’t do it for that. Included in that was raising the premium $120
plus $16 million out of our reserves. You can say; is that paying them back for the claims?
You could look at it that way. That is not how | look at it, but that is what happens if they are
going to offset the costs in two places. The debate should be centered on whether this is a
smart move for the state or not. i think it is a great move for the state iong term. Some wouid
say that we have a signed contract and that we cannot break the contract. Unless something
has changed, the contract is not signed yet.

(5:32) Refers to last page of provided attachment.

(6:04) We have the ability to adjust the contract, because it is subject to our appropriations.
We could say the appropriation is 0 just to get out of it. The intent is and what my amendments
were going to do is to have the start date for self-insurance to change from January 2018 to
June 30 of 2019, and then start our official date for self-insurance, it would reduce the
amount of money that we need to take from our reserve fund to fund that one year extra
premium and then our decision would be whether or not to fund the rest of that out of general
fund or we continue to take the reserves out to keep our premium in the line where it is. The
more we discussed that option, the more we said that may be a logical way to approach this.
There is not a boogie man in here. This is a matter if we believe we can be a risk taker, but
also a reward taker. Those that have done it have found that it has been very successful.
There is no question; we cannot continue to fund $477 million a biennium on our health
insurance between federal funds and state funds. Of that $477 million, $221 million is general
fund dollars. We have to look ahead and we have to make a decision of what we are going
to do here. | think the flexibility of us controlling it, running it, and us being the reward receiver,
we have the advantage of having some reserves to start with. By the way, good business
practices tell you that you should have between 1.5 to 3 months of premiums in reserve.
Depending on what we do with our implementation date and our reserves, we could have as
much as $36 million or we could have as little as $18-$20 million to start our reserves. Plus,
we have the advantage of the ability to go to BND and if the premiums do not cover our
expenses we take out a line of credit. You have to pay it back, but once you get stable and
have built the reserves it should not be necessary. There were a number of years that we
had no money for raises, so in turn we gave full coverage of medical. We also pay 11.12%
of the retirement of our public employees and they pay 3%. In a normal business situation,
that is 50/50. So, we have a fully funded plan of $1200+ a month and we also pick up a
majority of the retirement costs that they are having. We have worked hard in the last 4 or 5
sessions to raise those employees up to the midpoint. We have done numerous studies
where we looked at getting the salaries up to a competitive level. We can never be fully
competitive with the private sector, but these things have all been done because we value
our public employees. This is not a threatening thing to them. In the end this should allow us
to provide as good or better coverage for less money to the state. This bill also says that
when we are in session bills will not go to the employee benefits committee. It will go to the
standing committee assigned to the bill and it will also require that all of the same actuarial
statements would go to the standing committee that would have gone to the employee
benefits committee. When we are here, there are 94 in the House and 47 in the Senate to
vote on things.

(12:35) Refers to attachment — self-funded vs. fully funded. It is important to look at the tax
saving in not being a part of the Affordable Care Act.

®
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(13:39) There have been self-insurance proposals brought forward the last two biennia and
both of them have been lower than the plan they took. There might be a lot of reasons as to
why they did not want to make the change. Currently Sanford is charging $11.60 per member,
per month for administration, and the renewal proposes and increase of 44.5% to $16.76 per
member, per month. There is 17.4% increase in this budget, as well as changes to the plan.
Governor Burgum proposed a 5% employee contribution, and that was not received really
well in your chamber. We would have probably attached it on the House, but | am not sure
of that. We did not think that was the right discussion at the right time. | think it is a discussion
for another day. | think the public employees and those that work for the state should
understand that we had every opportunity to change this plan as we funded it and we did not.
To say in any way, shape, or form this is endangering what they have is not true. They will
receive the same benefits but it will be the same cost to the state for the next biennium. My
recommendation is to allow me to bring you the different numbers of what it does to change
the date. There is a lot of stuff in the bill and if there are any technical questions, we can bring
Jennifer Clark down here for all of the technical details. The most important part is to go self-
insurance. It gives us the ability to buy reinsurance, hire an administrator to do it. We are not
going to run it. It does not lay off anyone at PERS. It does not lay off any state employee.
What it does do is put us as risk and reward taker in the process.

(16:20) Senator Bekkedahl: On the handout from Legislative Council (reads from
attachment 1, page 4, 8.2), is the 60 days’ notice in writing from one party or the other or is
it mutually agreed upon that they each have letters to agree? | don’t understand that.

Representative Carlson: | don't either and that is the way it is written. | am assuming that
within a 60 day time frame from the first one saying that we are out, and the other one would
have to agree and then you have both within 60 days. That is the way | would interpret it.
One of the two would have to make that move and then the other one would have to agree
within 60 days the way | read it. We need an attorney to tell us.

Senator Bekkedahl: Is it ok with you if we ask Legislative Council for that interpretation?

Representative Carlson: Absolutely. Everything we do is subject to legislative
appropriation. If that bill is not passed and signed, and there is no money in it, | don’t care
what the paper does it cannot be done. There has to be funding for it. | would hope that we
could reach some agreement with these folks if you go forward with this. By putting it off
another two years we are saying that hopefully our financial situation is that we can do it two
years from now. | think the farther this goes down the road we are going to have some real
issues with the ACA. When Congress changes plans they take away grandfathering, and all
those things can adversely affect how we do business here.

Vice Chairman Davison: | think that probably 90% of legislators in both houses agree that
the self-insurance is an excellent way to take a little more risk and reduce health insurance
costs etc. | don’'t know that is the issue with the bill. | think there is some timing issues. When
we talk about the Bank of North Dakota and borrowing $50 million from them to help with the
reserve, do you think there is an issue from the insurance standpoint that that isn’t really our
money with the Bank of North Dakota and that it is a line of credit. Do you think that an issue
as far as building up our reserves for the self-insurance? Are there other ideas besides the
line of credit from BND?
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Representative Carlson: Everything at the Bank of North Dakota is our money. We could ‘
take more of the reserves and have them put the $50 million in. It is a matter of what your
appetite is for. We may or may not need any part of it. It says up to $50 million, so it could be
$5 million we needed one month and then pay it back the next. We are going to go into this
with $20 million up to $36 million already in the bank. The key is timing here. If we spend all
of this reserve down, and we come back next year and decide to do it in 2021, no matter
when you do it you will have the same renewal issue with less reserve. We can take the
money right out of the profits if we want to move it from one hand to another — it is our money.
The way the books are, and we are trying to balance them let me tell you today we are still If
$55 million to $60 million short even if we moved all of the money around we wanted to.

Vice Chairman Davison: Could you give me more detail on how you see the changes in the
bill with the employee benefits committee?

Representative Carlson: | think it is very important that elected officials like us, that have to
make the funding decisions, should also be making the decisions on the policy design and
the other things that go with it. We have two legislative members that are on that board and
seven other members that are not elected by anyone. In our chamber, our one representative
member is a minority member of 13 and 81 of my people are not represented on the board.
That is an issue that bothers me a little bit. (Reads the duties of the PERS board from a
document not provided to the committee.) All of that is done by 7 unelected members, of
which most of them have or do work for the state of North Dakota. | just don’t know that
anyone else would do that besides this state. Therefore, those amendments are that we
should be more in control of those decisions that are made. It doesn’t say that we have to
sign every contract, and it doesn't say that PERS goes away. You still the fiduciary
relationship and the help, but | do say that the legislature should be more involved when you
listen to that list of things that they are entitled to do. We gave them those by the legislature
in statute. There is no one to blame but us if we don'’t like the way it is done, and the only
way to do it is to ask to change it a little bit. Every time that contract gets signed, we are
obligated. Then they say we are going to be sued if any modifications are made, so where is
our role in this? Think about that as you deliberate on this. This is the future of 10 years from
now how our plan is going to look. Can we afford to pay the same benefits tomorrow that we
did for our public employees today? If we continue on the spiral we are on, the answer is no.

(25:48) Vice Chairman Davison: | appreciate you bringing the PERS contract down relating
to the escape clauses. Do you have any concerns that Sanford could pull out and decide to
not do the insurance for one more year?

Representative Carlson: Anyone can be sued including the state of North Dakota. | would
hope that they would want to be the administrator for this plan and not have the risk. They
could take the administrative fee and do something they have already established. Could
they sue us; could they feel they need another four years? It wouldn’t be two years. It would
be four years to recoup their losses at $65million that they were short. You have to ask them
that question. What is our responsibility to the taxpayers of North Dakota? This is not free
money. We extracted this from someone’s pocket. We are going to have to pay it back in
terms of a good benefit.
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Vice Chairman Davison: | think there would be some concern by them, but | was just more
concerned that they would just say the heck with this whole thing. We don’t even want to be
the administrator moving forward and then we are left out that one year trying to figure out
what to do.

Representative Carlson: That would be a question for legal staff. My staff attorneys tell me
that is not the case by the language. Can we argue? That is something for court. | would
hope that they would want to stay with us and that they would want to be our administrator
and get that 16% figure off of each and every premium without having any risk. That is a lot
of cash. It is not like they are doing it for free. As to us being without coverage, | know for a
fact that we could find coverage and have someone fill that gap if we had to.

Vice Chairman Davison: As we deliberate, | am more comfortable that we could go another
year. You don’t think that waiting till the next biennium would be better?

Representative Carlson: We will be in the same situation at that point.

Vice Chairman Davison: Previously, when the bid went out before the legislative session in
2015, was there not any discussion on going self-insurance?

Representative Carlson: That has always been an option for the PERS board, but they
have not picked that option any time. | do not have the answer to that. They can tell you that.
This has nothing to do with last session. It does highlight the point that when we got here, if
it had not been for word of mouth, we would not have known that we were changing providers.
All we wanted to do is make sure the coverage is the same. Several retirees have emailed
me and said they are paying more today. That is water under the dam. We agreed to two
members on the board and we went forward. This has to do with looking ahead. | think this
is the right thing to do at the right time.

Senator Bekkedahl: Looking at the PERS board and standing committee, as | read the bill,
there is still a PERS board that has to provide reports to the standing committee. Is that
correct?

Representative Carlson: Yes. The PERS board does not go away. The bill attempted to tie
those two closer together so that we don’t get this information the day we see the Governor’s
budget address on the floor. This quarterly ties those together so they don't get separated
and we get up to date information.

Senator Bekkedahl: The PERS board retirement oversite responsibilities that you
mentioned versus health plan system; is there ever any consideration of further separation
of those duties from the PERS board so they become more of a retirement board and less of
a health plan system board or are they still going to have responsibilities in both areas?

Representative Carlson: One of my bills in the first half did more of that because there is a
fiduciary responsibility on the retirement side. | am not sure the legislature should be in
charge of that because of the ways thing change every two years. If there is better language
to that, | think that is crucial.
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Senator Bekkedahl: In Williston we used to be self-insured but after the 80’s boom and bust,
we went from 245 employees in our pool to under 100. We suffered under the smaller
numbers but then we came back into PERS. | do not think that is an issue with the size of
the employee base for the state, but my question is if we could do an actuarial review of the
current employee base? We are facing some employee downsizing as well.

Representative Carlson: That is easy information to find. There are about 630 less public
employee positions and over 700 less in higher education. By far thought, this would be the
largest self-insured plan in the state. There are reasons why states are self-insured. They
found the benefits that it creates to them cost wise in the long run. Our services have not
gone away. We just shrunk the size of our workforce, and in some ways services have
become more demanding. This time we had a 0/0 for salary increase. We still have a fully
funded health plan and we are still paying 11% to 3% of the retirement. We have a very solid
package for our employees. If we wait, what is the benefit? Do we have another 2 year bid
that is all ready to sign, or do we make the move now and try and lengthen this out a little bit
and give them more time to recover and go forward from there?

Chairman Poolman: | am very much in agreement on the concept of having more legislative
oversight since the taxpayer has to pay the bill, but in your amendments here you are having
the PERS board report out but it doesn’t seem to give us any teeth in terms of saying for
them to go back to the drawing board and choose something else. Did you think about doing
anything like that?

Representative Carlson: | was thinking about coming over here so | didn’t. Even though |
am in complete agreement with that. Everything we do should have an end result, because
in the end we are responsible for the laws and for the money. | think it should have more
teeth but | was not sure how to get it done. | tried to do an advisory board but that did not go
over in the Senate. There is an opportunity to do this better but | just haven't got all of the
logistics figured out yet.

Chairman Poolman: Have you thought about increasing the amount of legislators on
Employee Compensation Commission?

Representative Carlson: That is probably be a good way to do it. They should be elected
legislators and voting members. If you can think of wording this better, | am all for it.

(39:30) Lisa Carlson, Senior Director, Market Strategy, Sanford Health Plan: Testified in
opposition to the bill. We believe that the bill amounts to an unconstitutional impairment of
our existing contract. However, if the date were to change to the expiration of our contract to
June 30" of 2021, we would be happy to support this bill. Sanford Health Plan stands neutral
on whether the state chooses to self-fund or not. In fact, we operate in 3 other states and it
is common place for state public employee plans to self-fund. Our 2015 bid with PERS
included a self-funded bid as well as a fully insured bid. We would be happy to continue to
bid on that after the expiration of our current proposal. After our initial two year, we met our
prescribed performance guarantees in the satisfaction standards pursuant to our contract
and the board began their renegotiations with us in August of 2016 as they are required.
They concluded in September of 2016, at which point the PERS board voted to renew the
contract for another two-year term beginning July 1, 2017 — June 30%, 2019. Likewise, the
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PERS board has another option to renew the contract effective July 1, 2019.If this bill passed,
we believe Section 5 of the current bill draft does impair our existing contract. Representative
Carlson did make note that Sanford Health Plan is going to try to recover our cost and that
is why we are trying to extend the contract. We would like to clarify a very important part of
our existing contract. Our contract with PERS is set so that 50% of the profits of the first $3
million are split 50/50 with the state. The most Sanford Health Plan can make on this contract
moving forward is $1.5 million. There is not recouping the cost that we have incurred on this
contract. Therefore, the state then actually has only up side benefit to this contract. Any
profits above the $3 million belongs to PERS and the state. Any losses are not owned by the
state at all. They are completely Sanford Health Plans losses going forward. The state is in
a very unique position having a fully self-funded model but a hybrid model, in which they get
to have their cake and eat it too. That is a very important factor about Sanford Health Plan
not wanting to preserve the contract because we are trying to recover costs. We are not
going to recover our costs because of the current terms of our contract. Our desire to keep
this contract lies in our initial investment in the state. We bid because we thought that we
could make a positive impact on the health and infrastructure of the state employee benefit
plan. We have invested time and effort with providers in every corner of the state to develop
the infrastructure needed to do the best care coordination of the employees that we can
possibly do. We need time to effectuate many of these changes. We spoke last time about
the investments of care management. If the state wants to transition to their own self-funded
model, it is in the state’s best interest to have plenty of time to do that, because the state
then will take on the burden of care management. The state will need the time to get the
infrastructure to be able to manage a self-funded system, because once you pass the baton
to become fully self-funded plan the risk becomes all yours. It only benefits the state to use
the subsequent years and the current run out of the contract through 2021 to set up the
infrastructure you will need so that you protect yourself from losses.

(44:15) Vice Chairman Davison: Do you remember the difference of the two bids offhand?

Lisa Carlson: | do not recall what the difference was but we can get that for you because it
is public information.

Vice Chairman Davison: In this process | think there is some agreement that self-funding
is a good option for North Dakota. Your testimony does have an impact on my thinking
regarding the risk and the changes of what could be coming from the ACA and just our
national healthcare program. It looks like we are fairly protected for any of those changes
because we know what it is going to cost us. Our job here is to try and figure out a solution
to this as opposed to fight over it. | am wondering if we went out two years on this and tried
to figure out something in 2019, is there any flexibility to that?

Lisa Carlson: Our immediate concern is that we have a contract that is place today and we
have not discussed anything beyond that.

(46:50) Senator Dever, District 32: Testified in opposition to the bill. | am not opposed to
consideration of a self-insured contract, but | am in support of consideration and not just
implementation without that conversation. | think the amendments in HB 1023 accomplish
that. | think we should make that consideration going forward. Today is day 60 of what some
had hoped would be 70 legislative days, and we are supposed to put that together? $477
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million in premiums. | think we should include that in the study. | would also like to comment
on a couple of other things. One is the Employee Benefits Committee. It has taken a beating
in the last couple of years because some think their proposals should not stand up to this
group. | think Section 7 of this bill is an example of that. It says that this act is not subject to
consideration of the Employee Benefits Committee. | think that we should all play by the
same rules. | think statutory committees should serve purpose and | always thought the bills
and parts of bills did not go into effect until they go through the process; passed by both
houses, signed by the Governor, and past the date of effectiveness. The Employee Benefits
committee is statutory, and it does not exist just in the interim. It exists even through the
session and we have had a few meetings even on this bill. In this session, it is made up of 7
House members and 6 Senators. If it has responsibility in some sense in a fiduciary
responsibility, as the PERS board does, then | don’t think you pass that responsibility off to
someone else just because we are in the session. Any proposals that will effect employee
benefits should be submitted by April 15t so that the Employee Benefits Committee can
submit them to actuaries. That is not true in this case and not true with some of the other
proposals that have come forward here. It also says that if you do not follow that process that
it has no effect. | think that is problematic. New members come into the session and they
have a right to introduce bills and they were not elected on April 1%t. that is something that |
can see setting aside, but that could be part of the study too. (Reviews the members of the
PERS board.) These are all very well qualified members, and | bristle at the suggestion that
these people are acting outside of any authority granted to them by the legislature in making
decisions. If we are going to say that it should be controlled by the legislature, then let's
consider all of different agencies that enter into contracts. Let's consider the boards that
include people that are not elected. | think those are some considerations that should be
made if we are going to go down that road. We need to give it more consideration than to
just have a bill introduced late in the session. We do not have a fully insured plan, we have
a modified fully insured plan. The profits, or overages in the premiums, that are generated
from the plan that were not necessary to support the plan come back to the state. WWhen you
talk about the insurance reserve fund, that is where those profits come from. The risk that
they state has in the current biennium is that we share in the first $6million of any losses
50/50. In the upcoming biennium, Sanford said that we will assume all of the risk. So when
we talk about both, we have the best of both. | don'’t think that is something that we should
set aside in the next 10 to 20 days of the session.

(55:25) Sparb Collins, Executive Director, North Dakota Public Employees Retirement
System: See Attachment #2 for testimony in a neutral capacity on the bill.

(58:15) Senator Bekkedahl: You have in your testimony that the board notes that this bill
would limit that competition to self-insured only and the board further notes that by limiting
competition and unintended consequence may be the limitation of price competition for the
plan. If that is the case, then why has the board not selected the self-insured option since
you have already had that best environment for competing prices?

Sparb Collins: This board has always felt the fully insured was the best choice based on
price and all of the other variables. It has never won out against the modified fully insured
contract. It is not a choice between self-insured and fully insured. | can come back and go
through some of the pricing considerations from last time.
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Vice Chairman Davison: | need to go deeper with that question. Help me to understand
what the discussion is then in why we select the modified plan as the self-insured plan;
outside of the money side of things. What is the discussion then why we would not select the
self-insured plan?

Sparb Collins: We would select the self-insured plan if there was that much difference in
cost. This isn’t a decision of what is better or worse. It comes down to capabilities of being
able to provide the service. Being able to meet the plan specifications that are bid, and they
are extensive. We need to make sure the carrier can replicate the plan that we have in place.
It provides a uniform basis. Third is pricing. Last time it was very close and the board made
the decision to maintain.

(1:01:25) Returns to testimony page 1.

(1:09:25) Chairman Poolman: What is the dollar amount of the fees?

Sparb Collins: This time it was bid at around $14 million. The last biennium with the close
out, BCBS claimed closer to $18 million.

Vice Chairman Davison: In the bid, do we break administrative fees out on those bids so
that we can see the differences?

Sparb Collins: | can tell you those numbers generally. We go through a fairly extensive
process that involves 6-8 meetings. The first time we got bids from BCBS and Sanford both
on fully insured and self-insured. We rejected the fully insured bids and went to bid again.
We got back in fully insured from BCBS and Sanford. As a result of the rebid we were able
to get some more favorable situations there. At the end of that we ended up with bids coming
in and we narrowed it down to the BCBS fully insured and self-insured as well as the Sanford
fully insured. Sanford self-insured was eliminated at that time. As we got down to that next
particular point, the BCBS fully insured came in at about a 19% to 20% increase. The Sanford
came in at a 15% increase. The hard thing about self-insured to peg is the with a million
dollar stop loss on it BCBS was about 14.5%. If you ramp that coverage down, that would
have run us about $3 million a year. You can take those coverages and buy, instead of $1
million individual of stop loss you can ramp it down to $750,000 and that about doubles the
cost, etc. By the time we got down to $500,000 the self-insured with BCBS would have been
about 15%. The two were identical but as we will see here in a minute, the individual stop
loss only covers one risk. We still could have taken substantial losses. At the end of the day
those two proposals were almost identical. One would have had more risk and this one did
not have risk for you.

(1:12:48) Returns to page 5 of testimony.

(1:15:32) Senator Bekkedahl: Is there any way with the history that you could have
calculated what the approximate return would have been under the self-insured?

Sparb Collins: | can tell you that under the type of contract that we have, we share a 50/50
in the first $3 million of gain and after that everything comes back to PERS. At most, it would
have been about $1.5 million difference and that would be each biennium.

(1:16:42) Returns to page 6 of testimony.
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(1:22:00) Senator Bekkedahl: The $30 million increase in reserves, what is the increase
payment from the state in the biennium at the 17.4% increase?

Sparb Collins: Keep in mind that is not what is being put in the budget. 17.4% was the initial
amount that came in to maintain the existing plan. To give you the numbers, about 5.1% is
being reduced as a result of plan design change that were imposed by the Governor. This is
not the PERS board, the board would just assume have the benefits stay the same. We give
the options and the Governor makes the recommendation to you and you guys share those
options with everyone etc.

Senator Bekkedahl: What is that number taking out the 5.1%?

Sparb Collins: That drops us down to 12.3%. About 2.4% the Governor proposed to use our
reserves to buy that down. Where you are at right now is in the budget you have about a
9.8% increase for health insurance premiums in the budget for two years. That averages out
to be about 4.9% a year. Which is pretty low.

Senator Bekkedahl: What is that number?

Sparb Collins: Keep in mind that the state of North Dakota is over 50% of our members is
much higher in terms of the payments that are received because a lot are retirees and their
premiums we pay secondary on. We will get that number for you.

(1:24:30) Sparb Collins: Returns to page 7 of testimony.

(1:35:40) Vice Chairman Davison: Sanford talked about the different kinds of support
services that we would need to have in place that are part of the fully funded hybrid one that
we have now. When you say the plan is the same, you are talking about dollars and cents
and not necessarily quality of services, is that fair?

Sparb Collins: | am talking about the benefits being identical; the deductibles, co-pays, and
the co-insurance. Like we went through last time, the behind the scene things are going to
be different. No two companies offer the same exact thing. (Gave examples.) On self-insured
we can hire a carrier to do this just like Sanford would. We are at risk for them though. We
also know that there would be more internal things. That is why we are requesting the
additional staff.

Vice Chairman Davison: What about customer service support?

Sparb Collins: It would be different.

Chairman Poolman: (Asked Edward Moody to come to the podium.) When you talk about
borrowing money from the Bank of North Dakota, is this something that companies can

typically do? Is a line of credit acceptable for reserves or is this unique?

Edward Moody, Director, Insurance Company Licensing and Examinations, Insurance
Department: That is unique to HB 1436. We do not allow lines of credit.
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. Chairman Poolman: Asked for some additional information for the committee. Closed the
hearing on HB 1436.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 54-35-02.4, 54-52.1-04, 54-52.1-04.2,
and 54-52.1-04.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the employee benefits
program committee, public employee uniform group insurance health benefits coverage,
and to provide for a retirement board line of credit; to provide a continuing
appropriation; to provide for application; and to provide statements of legislative intent.

Minutes: No Attachments

Chairman Poolman: Opened HB 1426 for committee discussion. Senator Heckaman sat in
the committee as a non-voting participant for Senator Marcellais, who was absent. We should
decide what we want to do with the bill today. As | look at the idea of going self-funded, | can
understand why Representative Carlson has an interest of doing that in the long run. |
sympathize with his arguments that we need more legislative oversight. | think he is right in
both of those cases to try to start controlling the cost of health care for the state. We should
study both of those issues with a specific end game in mind. That we would eventually look
to go self-funded and increase legislative oversight; whether it is on the PERS board, or the
employee compensation commission, or if we want to give more authority to the employee
benefits committee. | think there are lots of ways we can do that. | am reluctant to support
this bill at this time simply because we have a number of issues. First and foremost, being
the contractual issue with Sanford. Secondly, | am very uncomfortable with saying that we
have a line of credit for reserves rather than building those up over time in advance. There
are several smaller issues with the bill in terms of gutting some of the employee benefits
committee, responsibilities and some of those changes as well. | personally am reluctant but
would like to know what the rest of the committee thinks.

Vice Chairman Davison: Did Representative Carlson bring any amendments for us to look
at that he suggested.

Chairman Poolman: No, he never did.

Senator Heckaman: | have a couple of thoughts about this. While was not here in the 80’s
when self-insured plans were around, | understand that the cost became a white elephant in
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the room, and | am sure you probably discussed that in committee before. The issue of that
overriding a lot of other needs for the funding that we have right now would be something
that the committee should listen to. Also, do we have a study sitting out there on this?

Chairman Poolman: We did have a study on HB 1023.

Senator Heckaman: | think that is important, and when you look at the line of credit that
would be needed for this, | think it would be hard to get passed through the Senate chamber.

Senator Bekkedahl: | would agree with your earlier concerns. The current is not subject to
review by the employee benefits programs committee, so personally | like to get that input
and | like to see what is happening with the people on the ground. | have a little concern on
that. The timelines don't really fit with where we are at in the contract. | understand that there
is mitigating circumstances to that that could be worked on according to testimony, but | am
not sure of that myself. It does bring some question to my mind on that. On the reserve status,
| think if we are going to be going this way we need to plan our reserve status much sooner
than we are at this point. That is a huge issue. The self-insurance plans that | have seen in
the past that are successful dedicate adequate reserve funds before the plan is in place and
not as the plan is ongoing. | am in favor of self-insurance, but it needs to be properly planned.
| prefer the study that we already have in consideration to this current bill.

Senator Heckaman: In another bill that we had in Human Services, we were visiting with
Sparb Collins, and they can already bid for this plan. | would assume you discussed that in
the past. There is nothing prohibiting that.

Chairman Poolman: | did give the committee a copy of the last bids and when we take a
look at the total projected cost, when we have self-insured options versus what we ended up
taking, even the cheapest self-insured option was only $2 million less than the fully insured
bid that we ended up taking, and we look back and think of all of the millions of dollars’ loss
that we did not take as a result of that. | think that it was a much safer bet. It comes down to
risk to some extent. It is important for everyone to know that we have negotiated no risk going
into the next two years. Which is important considering our fiscal situation. It does not seem
like a great time for us to take a gamble on self-insurance.

Vice Chairman Davison: Moved a Do Not Pass.
Senator Bekkedahl: Seconded.

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent.
Motion Carried.

Chairman Poolman will carry the bill.
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HOUSE BILL NO. 1436 - SELF-FUNDED PUBLIC EMPLOYEE
HEALTH INSURANCE - SUMMARY

This memorandum summarizes 2017 House Bill No. 1436. The two primary elements of this bill are prpposed
changes to the duties of the Employee Benefits Programs Committee and a legislative directive the Retirement
Board provide the uniform group health insurance benefits through a self-insurance plan.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PROGRAMS COMMITTEE
Section 1 of the bill amends North Dakota Century Code Section 54-35-02.4, the law providing the powers and
duties of the Employee Benefits Programs Committee. The proposed changes would narrow the duties of the
committee during the interim and during legislative sessions. Current law directs the committee to consider and
report on all legislative measures and proposals that would impact, actuarially or otherwise, the Public Employees
Retirement System. This duty extends to bills introduced during legislative sessions and to amendments made to
legislative measures during legislative sessions.

The changes made in Section 1 of the bill would limit the committee's jurisdiction to the interim and to legislative
measures and proposals of the executive branch, judicial branch, and Legislative Management. The jurisdiction of
the committee would not extend to the regular legislative session, and during the interim would not extend to
legislative measures and proposals of individual legislators. Instead, during legislative sessions, standing
committees would be charged with evaluating the impact of amendments on bills which would impact the Public
Employees Retirement System.

Section 7 of the bill provides a statement of legislative intent, stating it is the intent of the 65" Legislative
Assembly that House Bill No. 1436 not be subject to the jurisdiction of and related review by the Employee Benefits
Programs Committee.

UNIFORM GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE - SELF-INSURANCE

Sections 2, 3, and 4 of the bill amend Sections 54-52.1-04, 54-52.1-04.2, and 54-52.1-04.3, the law authorizing
the Retirement Board, to provide uniform group health insurance through a self-insurance plan. Current law allows
the Retirement Board to provide benefits through a self-insurance plan if the board determines a self-insured plan
is less costly than the lowest bid submitted by a carrier for a traditional health insurance plan. The proposed changes
would retain this provision, plus clarify the board may provide health benefits through self-insurance if self-insurance
costs less than benefits provided through a health maintenance organization (HMO) and clarifies the Legislative
Assembly may direct the board to provide health benefits through a self-insurance plan. The bill retains the provision
that under a self-insurance plan the board is required to limit the term of the contract to 2 years, may renegotiate
for an additional 2 years without soliciting bids, and is required to solicit bids at least every 4 years. The bill clarifies
the board may transition from a self-insurance plan to a traditional plan or an HMO if the self-insurance plan is more
expensive than the other types of plans, and the bill clarifies if the board solicits bids for a self-insurance plan, the
board also is required to solicit bids for a traditional plan or an HMO plan.

The bill retains the requirement that a self-insurance plan include stop-loss coverage and that the Retirement
Board establish and maintain a contingency reserve fund to provide for adverse fluctuations in future charges,
claims, costs, or expenses of the self-insurance plan and maintain an additional balance in the contingency reserve
fund to cover claims incurred but not yet reported. The bill clarifies if the board transitions from a self-insurance plan
to a traditional plan or an HMO, the board shall adopt a plan reasonably calculated to meet the remaining liabilities
of the self-insurance plan. As part of the financial component of the self-insurance plan, the bill establishes a $50
million line of credit at the Bank of North Dakota for the board to use as necessary to provide adequate reserve

funds, to purchase stop-loss insurance, and to defray other expenditures of administration of the self-insurance
plan.

Section 5 of the bill directs the Retirement Board to transition from the traditional coverage to self-insurance. For
the 2017-19 biennium, the board would provide coverage through traditional coverage for the first 6 months and on
January 1, 2018, would transition to self-insurance. This self-insurance would be based on the same plan design
and coverage as the traditional insurance plan in effect July 1, 2017. Passage of this bill would require the board to
limit to 6 months the term of the contract the board is renewing effective July 1, 2017. Additionally, the board would
be required to solicit bids for administration of the self-insurance plan. The initial term of the contract for
administration of the self-insurance plan would be 18 months--January 1, 2018, through June 30, 2019. For the
2019-21 biennium, the board would be subject to the statutory requirements, and could renew the contract for a
2-year term, or could solicit bids for a new contract. If for the 2019-21 biennium the board solicited bids for a new
self-insurance contract, under Section 54-52.1-04.2(3), the board would be required to solicit bids for traditional
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insurance or an HMO, and would be required to transition from the self-

insurance plan if the other plans cost less
than the self-insurance plan.

Section 6 of the bill directs the Retirement Board to use available money in the health insurance reserve fund
for the purpose of financing the self-insurance plan as directed under Section 5 of the bill.

North Dakota Legislative Council 2 March 2017



Self-Funded vs. Fully-Insured state employee health plans

A self-funded health plan means that insurance is not purchased, but rather, the state insurance
contributions are pooled into a state-owned reserve fund to pay claims and administrative expenses.
Any money that isn’t used to pay claims or administrative expenses stays in the fund.

In a fully-insured plan the state will pay premiums based on projected claims, but won’t experience the
benefit if the claims come in lower than expected. North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System
(NDPERS) has for many years participated in the program’s financial results, in most cases by receiving

excess gains and accumulating reserves, and in some cases sharing underwriting losses and funding
these out of accumulated gains.

What is the value of self-funding?

All 50 states provide health insurance coverage for state employees, with 49 of 50 offering self-funded
and/or partially self-funded plans. North Dakota is the only state in the nation that offers only a fully-
insured plan, and doesn’t offer a self-funding option.

Self-funding is a proven, cost-effective method for providing employee benefits and is the preferred
choice of the state’s largest employers. Employers choose self-funding to control costs, save money and

customize benefits. Plans can also keep their grandfathered status when transitioning to a self-funded
plan, as long as they continue to meet grandfathered guidelines.

Tax savings

The Health Insurance Tax (HIT) impact averages 2.5-3% and applies to fully insured plans only. Self-
funded plans do not pay the HIT tax, realizing direct savings.

No profit margin or risk charge

The profit margin and risk charge of an insurance carrier are eliminated through self-funding. Instead of
paying a risk charge to the insurer in a self-funded arrangement, the sponsor will accumulate reserves

by retaining program gains. These gains will provide cushion against occasional higher than expected
claims not covered by stop-loss.

Health savings incentives

With fully-insured plans, wellness initiatives generally do not result in significantly lower health
insurance costs. However, in a self-funding scenario, an overall improvement in employee health can
lead to a reduction in claims, which feeds back into the plan’s reserve funds. If those trends continue,
there may be a reduction in the necessary contributions made by the state.

Risk management stop-loss programs

Managing the risk in self-funded plans is key. Heightened risk occurs when claims are higher than
anticipated or when a plan is underfunded. Managing these risks are especially important with self-
funded plans. Individual stop loss and aggregate stop loss levels can be purchased based on the state’s

comfort level and risk tolerance. The level of risk can be adjusted over time as their tolerance changes
with the premium dependent on their level of tolerance.

Recommended risk management tools to support self-funded options include:

° adequate contributions into the pool
o securing stop-loss coverage
° building adequate reserves

e working with experienced consultants who specialize in self-funded groups



Carlson, Al H.

From: Knudson, Allen H.

Sent: Wednesday, January 25, 2017 8:04 AM
To: Carlson, Al H.; Delzer, Jeff W.

Subject: Health insurance premiums

Rep. Carlson:

The total funding included in Governor Dalrymple’s 2017-19 executive budget for health insurance premiums is $477.3
million, of which $219.2 million is from the general fund. This is an increase of $45.6 million, of which $20.9 million is
from the general fund compared to the 2015-17 biennium budget. Monthly premium rates are increasing by $119.25 or

10.6% from $1,130.22 in 2015-17 to $1,249.47 in 2017-19.
Let me know if you have any other questions.

Allen H. Knudson

ND Legislative Council
(701) 328-4231
aknudson@nd.gov



Percentage Change
from Previous
Biennium Monthly Premium Biennium
2001-03 $409 16.9%
2003-05 $489 19.6%
2005-07 3554 13.3%
2007-09 $658 18.8%
2009-11 $826 25.5%
2011-13 $887 7.4%
2013-15 $982 10.7%
2015-17 $1,130 15.1%
2017-19 executive recommendation $1,249 10.6%

TOTAL COMPENSATION CHANGES COST
The schedule below provides the total cost of major compensation changes
recommended in the 2017-19 executive budget.

General Special
Fund Funds Total
Salary increase of 1 percent, effective $5,447 422 $6,411,108 | $11,858,530
July 1, 2018
Health insurance premium increases 20,924,659 24,626,376 45,551,035
Total $26,372,081 | $31,037,484 | $57,409,565

The percentage increase to maintain the existing health insurance plan
benefits is 17.4 percent for the 2017-19 biennium. To reduce this percentage
increase, the Governor is recommending increasing member out-of-pocket
expenses to reduce plan costs by $49.61 per contract, per month, which would
reduce the overall increase by 4.4 percent.

The Governor is also recommending using Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) health insurance reserves to pay an additional $27.31 of
premiums per contract, per month, which would reduce the overall increase by
2.45 percent. The Governor is using approximately $18.0 million of the
estimated $35.0 million in health insurance reserve funds to reduce the
premium rate increase. Of the $18.0 million utilized, $10.5 million relates to
state employee health insurance plans, $4.4 million relates to political
subdivisions, and $3.1 million relates to retiree health plans.

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
The monthly rate for the employee assistance program remains at
$1.54 per month, or $18.48 annually.

LIFE INSURANCE
The monthly rate for life insurance provided to state employees remains at
$0.28 per month, or $3.36 annually.

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE
Funding is included for unemployment insurance for state employees at a
rate of 1 percent of the first $6,000 of an employee's annual salary ($60 per
year or $120 per biennium maximum). No unemployment insurance was
collected on state employee salaries during the 2013-15 and 2015-17
bienniums.

U\

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT POSITIONS
The 2017-19 executive budget includes a total of 15,937.69 FTE positions,
an increase of 4,100.12 FTE positions from the 2015-17 authorized level of
11,837.57 FTE positions. The total number of FTE positions for the 2017-19
biennium now reflects certain higher education positions that were previously
not reflected in the budget.

The 2017-19 executive budget recommended FTE level of 15,937.69 is an
overall decrease of 551.56 FTE positions compared to the adjusted 2015-17
biennium total, including a decrease of 315.27 FTE positions in higher
education and a decrease of 215.61 FTE positions in all other state agencies.

The reduction of 215.61 FTE positions resulted in a decrease of
$29.0 million, of which $15.9 million is from the general fund.

Major changes in FTE positions, excluding higher education, are as follows:

2015-17
Authorized 201719
FTE Executive
Agency Increases Positions Budget Increase
301 - State Department of Health 365.00 381.00 16.00
530 - Department of Corrections and 836.29 846.29 10.00
Rehabilitation
475 - Mill and Elevator Association 147.00 153.00 6.00
201517
Authorized 2017-19
FTE Executive
Agency Decreases Positions Budget (Decrease)
380 - Job Service North Dakota 237.76 181.61 (56.15)
180 - Judicial branch 391.00 354.50 (36.50)
640 - Main Research Center 361.12 336.12 (25.00)
405 - Industrial Commission 121.75 105.25 (16.50)
125 - Attorney General 250.00 234.00 (16.00)
630 - North Dakota State University Extension 265.98 252.98 (13.00)
Service
627 - Upper Great Plains Transportation Institute 54.98 43.88 (11.10)
628 - Branch research centers ~120.29 110 29 (10.00)




TESTIMONY OF NDPERS Mo 11
HOUSE BILL 1436 ‘

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee my name is Sparb Collins. | am the Executive
Director of the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System (NDPERS). | appear
before you in a neutral position on this bill. | have not yet had the opportunity to review
this bill with the PERS Board and will do so this Thursday. Consequently, today | am not
able to share with you their position on the bill. However, | will be able to share the
information that the PERS staff and its consultants will be sharing with the board this
week for its consideration and hopefully this will be helpful to you in your considerations.
Attachment #1 is the bill summary that will be provided to the board and Attachment #2 is
information from our consultant, Deloitte.

My comments will be in the following areas: 1) Plan history and rates; 2) Fully insured vs.

self-insured compared to the PERS hybrid contract; 3) PERS hybrid contract
performance, and 4) PERS staff observations.

1) Plan history and rates

The health plan has gone through three stages since about 1977. It was a traditional fully
insured plan from 1977-83; it was self-insured from 1983-89 and it has been under the
hybrid fully insured contract since July 1989. The following table shows the rate
increases over this time period.

State Health Premium Percentage Increase
From Previous Biennium
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The 1989 biennium was the transition biennium from self-insured to the hybrid fully
insured plan.

While the plan was self-insured, it ran out of reserves in the 1987-89 biennium and
medical claims could not be paid in a timely manner. The state had to put money into the
plan so that claims could be paid since all reserves were gone and there was no other
source of cash flow. Section 4 (3) of the bill provides a funding mechanism to address
this situation under this proposal, specifically, a line of credit with the Bank of North
Dakota.

As we look at the years the plan was self-insured, the plan’s average increase was
21.7%. If we look at the years the plan was fully insured without the transition biennium,
we see the average increase was 14%. With the transition biennium it was about 16%.
While there are many variables to what causes a rate increase in a given biennium, these
numbers do not indicate on their own that one method is superior over the other.

As we look at other states around us, we see how the family premium rates for PPO
plans compare.

State State Payment Total Family Premium
South Dakota $722 $1047
Idaho $860 $979
Montana $1054 $1381
North Dakota $1130* $1312%**
Colorado $1230 $1783
Minnesota S1467 $1659
Nebraska S$1551 $1963
lowa $1689 51987
Wisconsin $1702 $1911
Wyoming $1714 $1947

*Flat rate payment
** Equivalent Premium

It is our understanding that with the exception of ND, the others are self-insured. Here
again, there are many variables that contribute to costs beside funding method which can
include plan design, open/closed networks, number of providers, etc. But again, we do
not see anything here that makes our unique funding method inferior to other self-insured
plans.

2) Fully Insured vs Self-Insured vs PERS Hybrid Contract

Generally, employers have a choice between being fully insured or self-insured. As a
result all employers fall on one side (fully insured) or the other (self-insured). However,
PERS is unique in that it did not agree to a traditional fully insured contract. Instead it
developed a unique contract that attempts to incorporate the best of both in a hybrid




contract while not disregarding the disadvantages of each. The following will help to
show this:

O Advantages of Fully Insured

Disadvantages to self insurance

1 Risk Employer is not at risk for financial Losses

2 Employer must Additional liability for IBNR ( setNDCCat1to11/2
retain IBNR months of claims or 26.8M to 40.2M )

3 Employer must have Employer must maintain and fund a reserve account
areserve account SetIn ND statute (40.2M to 80.4 M)

4  Employer does not Uneven cash flow due to fluctuation of claims from
have to maintain month to month - Potential that claims may be
cash flow higher than funding

X =, X K

Our present contract captures all of these advantages since it is a hybrid fully insured
contract. If we were self-insured we would not have these advantages.

® Advantages of Self Funding

(Disadvantages of Fully Insured)

1 Reductionin Additional taxes are eliminated (HMO, state premium tax, MCHA) X
taxes

2 Avoid ACAFees The Health Insurer tax from the ACA is not required from self-
insured plans

3  Administrative  Some self funded plans see a decrease in administrative fees due
fees/risk fees to the elimination of built in risk charges

4  Reserves/IBNR  Anyinvestment income generated is retained by the employer

are held by the x
employer
5  Flexibility Allows for greater flexibility in plan design, incentive
arrangements and contractual provisions X
6  Passthrough Employer benefits from provider discounts, rebates and other
savings favorable reimbursement mechanisms with full disclosure X
7 Mandates Do not have to comply with state mandates X

. Mandates: Are directly put into the PERS Statute by the Legislature instead of being handled through the insurance process
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The advantages of self-insuring that are a part of the existing PERS hybrid contract are
shown above. Please note that #2 is likely to go away as a result of the repeal of the
affordable care act and concerning mandates, those are directly provided by the
legislature relating to PERS. As shown, our hybrid contract already incorporates many
of the advantages of self-insurance. Based upon the above, if we were self-insured we
would gain the following:

Avoid ACA The Health Insurer tax from the ACA is not required from
Fees self-insured plans

Administrative Some self-insured plans see a decrease in administrative
fees/risk fees  fees due to the elimination of built in risk charges

But we would lose the following advantages of being fully insured:

1 Risk Employer is not at risk for financial Losses
2 Employer must Additional liability for IBNR ( set NDCCat1to11/2
retain IBNR months of claims or 26.8M to 40.2M )

3 Employer must have Employer must maintain and fund a reserve account
a reserve account Set In ND statute (40.2M to 80.4 M)

4 Employerdoes not  Uneven cash flow due to fluctuation of claims from
have to maintain month to month - Potential that claims may be
cash flow higher than funding

3) PERS Hybrid Contract Performance

As we look at the existing PERS hybrid contract performance since the 1995 biennium,
we can examine how the plan performed when there was positive performance vs when
the plan had negative performance.

Positive Performance

The following table shows the history of the plan since the 1995 biennium.




Proposed

2016 (2017-19) Renewal 105

Proposed: Plan design changes that would shift about 30% of the total increase
to member out of pocket

$18.67 per active
contract Proposed

2014 (2015-17) Full Bid 15.13

2012(2013-15) Partial bid -

10.72
Fully Insured Only s

$20.04 per active
contract

2010 (2011-2013) Renewal 7.40

Additional benefit requirements in the Health Care Reform Bill and the Mental
Health Parity Act.

2008 (2009-2011) Renewal 25.50

Eliminated EPO

$.14 per active

1996 (1997-1999) Renewal

contract
19.00 | d Cost Shari
2006 (2007-2009) Renewal RETRAEN wEE SRR
2004 (2005-07)Full bid 13.00 Plan design changes added $1,000 RX coinsurance maximum i pter ::tlve
contra
X $10.00 per active
19.00 Plan design changes
2002 (2003-05) Renewal ¥ ¢ contract
12. Increased Cost Sharin
2000 (2001-2003) Renewal 00 g
16.00 Increased Cost Sharing ‘$9.35 pErastive
1998(1999-2001) Full bid contract
14.00 Increased Benefits & Lifetime Maximum 320,71 peractive
contract

The shaded bienniums are those in which the plan returned refunds to our participating
employers/members that developed due to the hybrid contract we have and the
boards/vendors management of the program. Of the last 11 bienniums, we have
refunded money back to our employers/members in 7 bienniums through premium buy
downs (including the proposal for this biennium). You can see the amount of premium
buy down that we have provided the state in each of those bienniums. This is a direct
savings that has resulted due to positive plan performance and has been shared with the
state to reduce the cost of our health plan.

In the past 10 years alone, we have received approximately $50 million of returned
premiums under our hybrid contract. Of this amount, $11 million was used to buydown
premiums in the 2013-15 biennium and approximately $17 million is being proposed for
buydown in the 2017-19 biennium. If the plan was self-insured and these gains would
have occurred, they may not have been available to be refunded since they may have
had to be retained for the required reserves as set out in NDCC 54-52.1-04.3.

Negative Performance

The second area to look at is when the plan has negatively performed. In the current
biennium, the plan is projected to lose about $58 million and this could go higher before

the end of the biennium.

Pursuant to our hybrid contract, we will be liable for only $3 million of this loss. For the
next biennium we have negotiated this provision out of the contract and we will be liable
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for no losses. Recognizing that when a plan takes a loss, reserves should be increased,
we have negotiated with Sanford for the next biennium that it will increase its reserves by
$30 million effective July 1 of this year.

If the plan was self-insured, we would have stop loss insurance to offset some of the
above losses. The statute requires that we carry individual stop loss. At the $1 million
deductible level and based upon the estimates in our last bid, the premium would have
been equal to the candidate claims. At the other levels, the cost would have been more
than the candidate claims to date of measurement. Consequently, the individual stop
loss may not have addressed this loss situation.

We could also get aggregate stop loss (see discussion from Deloitte — attachment #2).
This coverage is usually purchased for claims exceeding 115% to 120% of expected
claims. This means we would be responsible for the first $52 million each year at the
15% level or about $104 million for the biennium. Also, please note that if the stop loss
insurers do not accept our estimated claims level, their actuaries do their own calculation
and base the price using their estimate. Consequently, at this level aggregate may not
address this situation. However, this would all be subject to a bid and the responses
received.

Based upon the above, it appears that if the plan would have been self-insured under
Sanford this biennium, a loss would have likely accrued to the state.

2017-19 Business Plan

Using the historical process, PERS has submitted a business plan for contracting going
forward that will assure the State it will not incur any losses for the health plan in 2017-19
and that there will be no required reserving pursuant to NDCC 54-52.1-04.3.

In the proposed legislation, there is no business plan that has been developed and we
will, therefore, rely on the board to develop a plan starting in May. This will be contingent
on the results of the extension and the bidding process for 2017-19. At this point, we
cannot guarantee that we will not have losses in 2017-19 as has been guaranteed with
the existing business plan. We also cannot guarantee coverage for the transition period
(discussed below). We also will have to request from the state additional reserves, as we
have done with Sanford and as directed by the legislature in NDCC 54-52.1-04.3
(discussed below).

4) PERS Staff Observations

Staffin

The PERS board included in the 2015-17 Budget request and in the 2017-19 request,
contingent authority to hire staff if the plan is self- funded. Since we contracted for a fully
insured plan, it was taken out. Please see attachment #3.
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Reserves

NDCC 54-52.1-04.3 requires the board to develop a contingency reserve fund. It also
states “Upon the initial changeover from a contract for insurance pursuant to section 54-
52.1-04 to a self-insurance plan pursuant to section 54-52.1-04.2, the board must have a
plan in place which is reasonably calculated to meet the funding requirements of the
chapter within sixty months”. Preliminary analysis suggests that self-funded premium
rates may need to be increased by.86% to 3.14% in order to build reserves to the
required level. The high end accounts for the use of contingency reserves to buy down
premium. Consequently, it should be noted that this would be an additional consideration
in the bidding process.

If the statute was changed to include the borrowing authority from the BND in this
calculation, then the reserve requirement would be satisfied.

Transition Period

This would require PERS to go to bid and change the plan from the existing arrangement
to a new arrangement. The proposed bill moves the start date of the coverage period to
January 1, 2018. The current renewal offer from Sanford assumes a 2-year coverage
period beginning July 1, 2017. Sanford may require a different premium rate to insure a
six month period than was agreed upon for a 2-year period, or they may be opposed to
insuring the plan for that period. This may require using additional reserves or borrowing
from the BND.

The PERS attorney has also reviewed this provision and indicated that if PERS was
unable to negotiate an extension with the existing carrier, it could not consider self-
insurance for the interim time period under existing statute unless a full bid process was
undertaken. The board would have to start a new bid process upon notification that they
could not extend the contract, which could not be completed by July 1. The result would
be no coverage for any of our members until a new arrangement could be reached,
pursuant to existing statutory requirements. Additional statutory authority is required
to resolve this issue.

Implementation Timeframe

Given the size and complexity of the NDPERS plan, changing carriers is a significant
effort. | have brought along a copy of the implementation plan used most recently and
will leave it with the committee. You will note that it is extensive and takes time to
complete all the steps. As this demonstrates, there are many variables that must be
worked through to ensure that a transition does not create difficulties in the continuity of
care or benefits for participating members. At a minimum, most carriers have indicated
that 90 days is necessary, with the NDPERS preference being 120 days or longer, in
order to ensure continuity of coverage during the course of the transition. Extend the
Implementation/Bid timeframe to 12 months with a July 2018 effective date.
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Bid Timeframe

An effective bid process must allow sufficient time for the following:

1. Preparation of the Request for Proposals (RFP)
2. Marketing the RFP

3.
4
5

Allowing time for interested parties to review the RFP

. Allowing interested parties to submit questions and receive responses

. Allowing the interested parties sufficient time to prepare final proposals once

guestions have been answered
Time for review of the proposals by
a. Consultant
b. NDPERS Staff
c. NDPERS Board
Allowing time to interview the bidders and get best and final offers.

Time for unexpected contingencies. (For example in 2014/15, NDPERS rejected
all fully insured bids and rebid the plan for a second time)

The timeline for the last bid is below. This demonstrates that the process can take over

6 months in the event there is a rebid (this does not include the time to prepare the bid).

July 9, 2014 — Fully-insured Bid issued

August 13th — Self-insured Bid issued for medical and prescription drug plans
September 4th — Fully-insured Proposals Due

October 10" — Self-Insured Proposals Due

October 21° — Staff interview with BCBS and Sanford (Fully-insured)

October 23" — Board Rejects Fully-insured Bids, and issues a new RFP.
October 29" — Fully-insured RFP released

November 19" — Fully-insured Proposals due

November 24™ — Staff interview with BCBS and Sanford (Self-Insured)
November 25th — Staff interview of PBM vendors

December 4" — approved sending PBM contracts

December 18" — NDPERS Board reviewed the Health plan bids

January 2, 2015 — Best and Final Offer (BAFO) responses due

January 5" — NDPERS Board Interviews BCBS and Sanford (fully-insured)
January 15" — NDPERS Board interviews PBM vendors

January 19" — NDPERS Board members and staff conduct a site visit of Sanford
Health Plan

February 5" — NDPERS Board reviews proposals (fully-insured, self-insured, Rx)
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e February 13" — NDPERS Board continues its review of proposails (fully-insured,
self-insured, Rx)
e February 19" — NDPERS Board awards bid

This timeline will be shorter since it is only for self insured bids.

Extend the Implementation/Bid timeframe to 12 months with a July 2018 effective
date.

Legal Issue

There may be concerns with Section 18 of Article | of the North Dakota Constitution
relating to impairment of contract.

Membership
No effect on membership except for the change of vendor if determined in the bid.

Application to other entities.

Does this requirement apply to political subdivisions, retirees and Medicare Part D
program administered by PERS. Clarification is needed in statute relating to these
other programs.

Potential impacts relating to other pending legislation

HB 1023: The changes proposed in Sections 27 and 28 of 1023 increase oversight of
PERS by the employee benefits programs committee as well as communication between
the two entities. While not a conflict in law, the changes proposed in Section 1 of 1436
are a conflict in policy as these changes reduce the impact of such oversight and
communication. The changes proposed in Sections 32 and 33 of 1023 would result in a
sole fiduciary oversight of the PERS office, and as previously indicated there are fiduciary
responsibilities implicated in administration of the health plan. The requirement to initiate
a plan of self-insurance under 1436 increases the potential for conflicts of interests under
the governance structure established by 1023. Sections 5 and 33 of 1023 restrict PERS
from using health reserve funds under 54-52.1-06 to reduce premium cost, while 1436
authorizes PERS to use them for funding a self-insured plan only. In addition, a less
obvious conflict stems from the fact that 1436 requires a self-insured plan beginning
1/1/2018 to have the same benefits available under the plan in effect on 7/1/17. As
previously indicated, if PERS is unable to use the reserves to buy down premiums this will
result in a loss of grandfathered status and a corresponding change in benefits effective
7/11/17. Therefore, the self-insured plan will only be providing the reduced benefits
available under a non-grandfathered plan.




HB 1403: The opening section of this bill indicates that its provisions apply only to an
insurer’s contract with the board if “the prescription drug coverage component of the
health insurance benefits coverage utilizes the services of a pharmacy benefits manager”,
which would only be implicated under the current fully-insured plan structure where the
insurance carrier is contracting with a PBM. Therefore, 1403 would not be implicated or
applicable to a self-insured plan. Given that the primary effect of 1436 is to require the
state to initiate a plan for self-insurance, the provisions of 1403 would not be implicated in
the next biennium or for so long as the state maintained a plan for self-insurance.

HB 1406: The provisions of 1436 contradict two provisions of 1406. 1406 limits a
contract for insurance, whether under a fully-insured, HMO, or self-insured plan to two
years only. Whereas, Section 3 of 1436 permits a 2 year contract and one 2 year
renewal under a self-insured plan. 1406 restricts the group insurance plan design to only
that which can be purchased with funds appropriated by the legislative assembly.
Whereas, Sections 4 and 6 of 1436 permit, under a plan of self-insurance, the board to
have access to a line of credit, and use reserve funds to maintain coverage levels in
effect on 7-1-17.

HB 1407: 1407 restricts the term of the contract for a fully-insured plan to 2 years; it also
indicates it is intended to apply to a fully-insured contract in effect on the bill's effective
date. This contradicts Section 5 of 1436 which restricts such a contract to 6 months

HMO’s: PERS presently has one HMO that is a part of the plan. Not sure if the proposed
wording would allow us to maintain that option or require us to drop it if self-insured.

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee this concludes my testimony and thank you for
providing me this opportunity.
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HB 1436 Testimony
Attachment #1

Short Summary:

Section 1 reduces the role of the Employee Benefits Programs Committee in reviewing
legislation affecting PERS. Section 2 indicates HMO’s may not be contracted with while
the board administers a plan of self-insurance. Section 3 requires the board to initiate a
self-insured plan, increases the frequency and scope of bids, and restricts returning to a
fully-insured plan so long as it is less costly, however, doesn’t speak to failure to fund
issues. Section 4 establishes a line of credit for PERS with BND to pay for expenses
related to a self-insured plan and also creates a presumption the state be the guarantor
on payment for participation by political subdivisions. Section 5 requires the plan be
self-insured as of 1/1/2018, implicates N.D. Constitution Article 1 § 18 and could result
in loss of insurance coverage from 7-1-17 to 12-31-17. Section 6 requires the board to
use the reserve fund to finance to the self-insured plan. Section 7 indicates that this bill
isn’t subject to review by the Employee Benefits Programs Committee.

Long Summary

Section 1: This section reduces the role of the Employee Benefits Programs Committee
during legislative sessions. Currently, regardless of whether a bill is submitted during
the interim or during the session, if it affects public employee benefits it must be
reviewed by the committee. While the committee will still provide review of such
legislation, so may other standing committees pursuant to the changes in subsection
6. Further, the provision in subsection 7 relating to the invalidity of legislation that fails
to procure committee review is removed. The impact of the deletion of this subsection
may be somewhat mitigated by legislative counsels’ opinion that subsection 7 has no
force and effect currently. Finally, it is unclear if the change to subsection 3, which
replaces the solicitation of proposals by the committee from any interested person, to
solicitation of proposals from the executive, judicial branch, and legislative branch, will
result in any significant change as | am unaware of whether the committee sought
legislative proposals outside of the branches of state government. Given the multiple
stakeholders or beneficiaries of the employee benefits programs administered by the
state, and the need to communicate proposed changes to these individuals, there is a
policy concern with reducing the expectation regarding the amount of time that bills
affecting employee benefits spend before the legislature.

Section 2: While the changes in Section 2 are largely cosmetic, there is a slight
concern with use of the word “or” in subsection 3 of Section 2. Currently, the board may
contract with an “HMO” under 54-52.1-04.1. It is my understanding that the ability of the
board to contract with an HMO is independent of whether the board is also contracting
for a fully-insured or self-insured plan. The board currently has one HMO that it has
contracted with for several years that provides services to a specific area of the state.
Subsection 3 of Section 2 states in part “the board may contract with a health
maintenance organization or establish a plan of self-insurance”. Use of the word “or” in
this context would prevent a contract for self-insurance and contract for HMO services
simultaneously. Whereas, replacing the word “or” with the word “and” would permit both
simultaneously. This limitation seems intentional however, as it reappears in subsection
3 in Section 3 more explicitly where HMO’s are offered as an option in lieu of self-
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insurance. If an intended restriction the contract with the existing HMO would need to
be terminated as of 1/1/2018.

Section 3: This section amends 54-52.1-04 .2, the section affecting the board’s authority
to contract on a self-insured basis for hospital, medical, and prescription drug benefits
coverage. The additions to this section require the board to establish a self-insured
plan if directed by the legislative assembly. If passed, the legislature will have provided
such direction in Section 5 of this bill. As an ongoing matter however, this language
doesn't indicate how the legislative assembly will provide such direction in the future,
and if it is through the future enactment of bills requiring the plan to be self-insured, the
language is unnecessary. It appears self-insurance is required if directed by the
legislature, and remains permissive if the board determines it is less costly than a fully-
insured plan. In addition, the contract term under a self-insured plan is reduced,
currently the board could only solicit bids from a third party administrator every other
biennium, whereas the changes require the board to only contract for 2 years with the
option to renew. There is also an additional requirement that any time the board solicits
bids for a third party administrator it must also solicit bids for a fully-insured plan or
HMO. This could result in the board soliciting bids every biennium as opposed to every
other biennium. The regular solicitation of bids for this spectrum of services will result in
increased cost to the plan and increased duties for employees responsible in preparing
and evaluating the bids, however, the timing restrictions for bid solicitation are removed.
Further, while the stop-loss coverage requirement for self-insured plans remains, it
should be noted that as the board was able to observe during the last bid process, stop-
loss coverage for a self-insured prescription drug benefit is not readily available in the
market. It would be beneficial to plan administration and statutory construction if the
requirement for stop-loss coverage were limited to hospital and medical benefits
coverage. Finally, an additional requirement is added that creates a presumption in
favor of maintaining a self-insured plan once established, indicating that the board may
only transition to a fully-insured plan or HMO if the board determines the self-insurance
plan costs more. It is unclear how this provision would be implicated if the reason for
the desired transition is a lack of funding vs. the cost of plan administration.

Section 4: The most notably change in this section is the addition of a line of credit in
the amount of 50 million dollars from BND with an interest rate set in statute, for
payment of adequate reserve funds and other expenditures of the self-insured

plan. The board is responsible for repaying the line of credit from health insurance
premium revenue or other funds appropriated by the legislature. The language of this
bill does not address participation by political subdivisions, therefore it appears political
subdivisions may participate in the self-insured plan. Given the line of credit is from
BND, and the board may only use insurance premiums and funds appropriate by the
legislature to repay the line of credit, this would appear that the state will ultimately be
taking on the responsibility of funding or guaranteeing the funds necessary for
participation by political subdivisions in the self-insured plan.

Section 5: This section contains the legislative mandate that the health plan become
self-insured as of 1/1/2018 and effective for 18 months. It requires that any contract for
fully-insured coverage be terminated effective 12-31-17, and any contract entered into
on 7-1-2017 be limited to a 6 month term. Consequences of Section 5 include
implication of the prohibition of contract impairment set in N.D. Constitution Article 1 §
18 given the board has already voted to renew the current contract under the terms of
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the original contract awarded in 2015; a possible lack of insurance coverage for 6
months if the current carrier declines to agree to a renewal period shorted by 18
months, noting that the board would be unable to bid for a replacement carrier because
it couldn’t comply with the 90 day notice requirement in 54-52.1-04 for fully insured bids
or the January 1 restriction for self-insured bids under 54-52.1-04.2 (which would still
apply because this bill does not contain an emergency clause and would not go into
effect until 8/1), and even if issued the bid would be less attractive to carriers because
of the 6 month contract limitation and the corresponding time and expense required to
transition the plan.

Sections 6: This section requires the board to use the reserve fund to finance to the
self-insured plan.

Section 7: This section indicates that this bill isn’t subject to review by the Employee
Benefits Programs Committee.
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Memo
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To: Sparb Collins, Executive Director Attachment 2
’ NDPERS
From: Josh Johnson and Jon Herschbach, Deloitte Consulting LLP

Subject: ACTUARIAL REVIEW OF PROPOSED BILL 17.1008.03000 (HB1436)

The following summarizes our review of the proposed legislation.
OVERVIEW OF PROPOSED BILL

The proposed bill would require the uniform group insurance program to become self-
insured for an 18-month period beginning on January 1, 2018 and would change the
duration of the coverage period beginning July 1, 2017 to 6 months. The proposed bill
also establishes a $50,000,000 line of credit that the board can use to fund reserves,
purchase stop loss, or pay for other self-insurance expenditures.

STOP LOSS

It is mandated that NDPERS must purchase individual stop loss if the plan becomes self-
insured. Individual stop loss limits the plan’s liability for each members’ cost of medical
and pharmacy claims to a specific deductible amount. The deductible is selected based on
the amount of risk the program wishes to bear. A lower deductible limits the plans
exposure more but also costs more.

NDPERS could also choose to purchase aggregate stop loss. Aggregate stop loss limits
the plans total exposure to a percentage of expected claims, called the attachment point.
Common attachment points are 120% and 125% of expected claims. Expected claim
amount and the attachment point are calculated by the stop loss insurer. The plan
sponsor does not have any input into this process.

Estimated per contract per month (PCPM) rates for stop loss insurance are listed in the
table below:
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Individual Stop Loss
Deductible Estimated Cost (PCPM)

$500,000 $28 - $35
$750,000 $15 - $20
$1,000,000 $7-510

Aggregate Stop Loss
Attachment Point |[Estimated Cost (PCPM)
120% $0.50 - $1.00
125% $0.40 - $0.75

CONTRACTS

Currently NDPERS has contracted health insurance from a single vendor. If NDPERS
becomes self-insured, they will need to contract with different vendors for several
different services based on best-in-class quotes/bids. This would include medical plan
administration, pharmacy benefits management, stop loss insurance, wellness program
and could include additional vendors for other optional services. Increasing the number
of vendors’ contracts will increase NDPERS’ administrative burden and would create
additional consulting fees for RFP analysis assistance. In the past budgets, NDPERS has
included authority for two additional staff to be added to assist with the administration of
self-insurance.

ADDITIONAL RISK

NDPERS would take on additional risk by becoming self-insured. If the plan’s claims cost
exceeds premiums, the plan’s reserves will be spent down. NDPERS is required to
maintain a contingency reserve equal to a minimum of 1.5 months of claims (12.5% of
annual claims). If the contingency reserve is below this level at any point, premiums
must be increased in subsequent biennium periods with a load that will build the reserve
back up to the statutory minimum. Currently, NDPERS contingency reserves hold about
$35M and would require an estimated additional $5-6M to meet the minimum
requirement.

Stop loss insurance mitigates self-insurance risk but the only way to eliminate risk is by
remaining fully-insured. Commonly, the lowest attachment point available for
aggregate stop loss is 120%. As an example, in the event that a 120% aggregate stop
loss claim is made, NDPERS will have lost its entire reserve (12.5% of annual claims) as
well as an additional ~7.5%, which is approximately ~$25M. These scenarios are not
common which is reflected in the pricing (estimated premium for 120% on a group of this
size is $0.50-$1.00 PEPM). However, it is important to illustrate the risk exposure that
remains to NDPERS even with stop loss insurance purchased.
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HB 1436 Testimony
Attachment #3
Self Funded Insurance (2.0 FTEs)

The health insurance environment continues to change and evolve.

If the decision is to go self insured we know that it will have an effect on PERS agency
operations. The following are some of those effects:
¢ ACA compliance — reporting requirements

» Additional audit requirements to ascertain whether PBM has complied with the
term of its agreement with regard to:
o Pricing
o Obligations to satisfy annual guarantees
o Financial benefit guarantees related to subsidies, claims processor fees,
manufacturer discounts, rebates, service fees
o Medicare Part D obligations related to LIS, LIC, and TrOOP
o Accuracy related to the management of NDPERS data
o Satisfaction of average annual guarantees

e Monitoring activities to include:
o Pricing of newly available generic drugs to ensure we are receiving the
lowest cost from PBM
o Attendance at quarterly meetings to negotiate drug additions or deletions,
modify any previously agreed guarantees to capitalize on any
improvements
o Changes in formulary
Financial benefit and DIR guarantees (at least annually)
o Implementation of new programs to improve drug coverage, improve
health of plan participants, reduce costs;
o Develop programs to decrease purchase of specialty drugs and review
responsibility for quarterly prescription drug reports.
o Assess to feasibility of negotiating independent contracts with
pharmaceutical manufacturers to obtain better financial benefits.
o General responsibilities in connection with Medicare Part D Plan to include
CMS compliance.

o

 Liaison responsibilities between member and 3™ party vendors:

o Increased member communications (calls, correspondence, e-mails)

o Assistance with member inquiries (coverage, denials, appeals,
complaints)

o Documenting procedures and policies developed in response to various
issues to ensure consistent operating protocols.

o Mandate requirements

o Plan Design maintenance

Consequently, this optional request proposes two FTE. One would be to oversee the

self insured contracts. Specifically, the Rx contract would require a more active role by

the agency. We would anticipate this would be an individual with a medical background

and a particular expertise in Rx. The second position would be for a member service

specialist in the health insurance area. This individual would be responsible for working

with our members and employers in explaining and resolving issues with the group

medical plan and Rx plan. Here again we would be looking for someone with a medical “O
background. p



D Task Name % Complete Duration Start Finish Predecessor{Resource Names
1 KDRAFT
2
3 ND Public Employees Retirement System 86% 488 days? Mon 12/22/14 Mon 10/31/16
4 |« Pre-Implementation 100% 53 days? Mon 12/22/14  Tue 3/3/15
6 -
7 T
8 -
9 |«
10 LTl
1 | pleme :
12 |s Communication 100% 99 days? Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/15/15
13 |« NDPERS 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
14 |« Know how to access the Sanford Health Plan NDPERS 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15 NDPERS
15 | Participate in either a virtual or in-person orientation 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15 NDPERS
16 |& Create a myHealthPlan account and sign up for 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15 NDPERS
17 | ND Sanford Family 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
18 |4 Tell them when the Fargo and Bismarck locations are 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
19 |s Ask ND Sanford family members to tell their friends 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
20 | Communicate key hiring milestones and hiring of any 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
21 | Health Plan Employees 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
22 |y Tell them when the Fargo and Bismarck locations are 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
23 |y Ask ND Sanford family members to tell their friends  100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
24 |y Communicate key hiring milestones and hiring of any 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
25 & ND Public Affairs 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
26 |4 Tell them when the Fargo and Bismarck locations are 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
27 |« Ask ND Sanford family members to tell their friends 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
28 |« Communicate key hiring milestones and hiring of any 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
29 |y ND Public Policy 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
30 |« Tell them when the Fargo and Bismarck locations are 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
31 |« Ask ND Sanford family members to tell their friends 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task Manual Task I I Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary p=——=======1 Manual Summary ===  Manual Progress

Page 1




Flg

ID ‘Task Name % Complete Duration Start Finish Predecessor{Resource Names
32 v Communicate key hiring milestones and hiring of any 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15
33 & NDPERS Members 100% 99 days? Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/15/15
34 |y We will continue to update FAQs on the NDPERS 100% 23 days Mon 3/2/15 Tue 3/31/15
35 |4 The reminder of March will be used for ramp up of  100% 23 days Mon 3/2/15 Tue 3/31/15
36 & Mailing #1 (postcard welcoming NDPERS members 100% 24 days Mon 3/30/15 Thu 4/30/15
37 v NDPERS online landing page with contact 100% 24 days Mon 3/30/15 Thu 4/30/15
38 & In-person orientation dates/times/locations in the 100% 24 days Mon 3/30/15 Thu 4/30/15
39 |« A heads-up on the Welcome Packet 100% 24 days Mon 3/30/15 Thu 4/30/15
40 |« NDPERS employers receive flyers to post at worksites 100% 13 days Mon 3/30/15  Wed 4/15/15
41 | Mailing #2 (Welcome Packets including:) 100% 1 day Mon 5/4/15 Mon 5/4/15
42 | Lasermark book 100% 1 day Mon 5/4/15 Mon 5/4/15
43 | Information regarding the virtual orientation 100% 1 day Mon 5/4/15 Mon 5/4/15
44 | In-person orientation dates/times/locations 100% 1 day Mon 5/4/15 Mon 5/4/15
45 | Community meeting dates, times, locations are sent  100% 30 days Mon 4/20/15 Fri 5/29/15
46 | Onsite meetings are held Apr 18-June 5, two 100% 30 days Mon 4/20/15 Fri 5/29/15
47 |y Mailing #4 (includes a postcard with follow-up 100% 66 days? Wed 4/15/15 Wed 7/15/15
48 | mySanfordHealthPlan/Electronic EOB sign-up call 100% 1 day Wed 7/15/15 Wed 7/15/15
49 |4 More information on health tools, including the  100% 1 day Wed 7/15/15  Wed 7/15/15
50 |« Postcard Mailing 100% 11 days? Wed 4/15/15 Wed 4/29/15
51 |« Schools/Universities 100% 1 day? Wed 4/15/15 Wed 4/15/15
52 & Active/Political Subdivisions 100% 1 day? Fri 4/24/15 Fri 4/24/15
53 |& Retirees 100% 2 days Tue 4/28/15 Wed 4/29/15
54 || Marketing 88% 153 days Mon 12/22/14 Mon 7/20/15 Lisa C
55 |« Prep Work/Communication For Onsite Meetings 100% 53 days Fri3/6/15 Mon5/18/15
56 |& Powerpoint Presentation 100% 30 days Fri3/6/15 Wed 4/15/15 Jennie/Jimmy
57 |« Trinkets (Pens and Notepad) 100% 11 days Wed 4/1/15  Wed 4/15/15 Jennie
58 |& Postcard Communication regarding 100% 29 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 5/11/15 Jennie/Brandi
59 & Draft Initial Email to NDPERS employers re: 100% 23 days Wed 4/1/15 Fri 5/1/15 Jennie/Tammy
60 |« Draft F/U Email to NDPERS employers re: 100% 31 days Wed 4/1/15 Wed 5/13/15 Jennie/Tammy
61 |« Draft Flyer to NDPERS employers to post onsite for  100% 24 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 5/4/15 Jennie
62 |v Postcard Communication for Retirees / online 100% 34 days Wed 4/1/15  Mon 5/18/15 Jennie/Brandi
63 |« Prep Work/Materials For Onsite Meetings 100% 30 days Mon 4/20/15 Fri 5/29/15
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task Manual Task | I Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary =—========1 Manual Summary [=========={  Manual Progress
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ID ‘gName % Complete Duration Start Finish Predecessor{Resource Names
64 |v Informational Booklet 100% 30 days Mon 4/20/15 Fri 5/29/15 Tammy
65 |v Processing NDPERS Changes 100% 30 days Mon 4/20/15 Fri 5/29/15 Marley
66 v Informational Meetings 100% 30 days Mon 4/20/15 Fri 5/29/15
67 v Webinar 100% 30 days Mon 4/20/15 Fri 5/29/15
68 | Video 100% 30 days Mon 4/20/15 Fri 5/29/15
69 | In Person 100% 30 days Mon 4/20/15 Fri 5/29/15 Jennie/Jimmy
70 |v Employee Onsite Meetings 100% 30 days Mon 4/20/15 Fri 5/29/15 SHP/NDPERS
71 |s Misc 100% 88 days Tue 3/3/15 Wed 7/1/15
72 |« Sample ID Card Template 100% 43 days Thu 3/5/15 Fri 5/1/15 Tammy/Mark
73 |« Determination of ID Card Material (Plastic or Paper) 100% 46 days Mon 3/9/15 Fri 5/8/15 Lisa/NDPERS
74 |« Finalized ID Card Layout/Design 100% 50 days Tue 3/3/15 Fri 5/8/15 Lisa/NDPERS
75 |~ Release of ID Cards from Lasermark to NDPERS 100% 10 days Thu 6/18/15 Wed 7/1/15 Lasermark
76 |« Health Savings Account Benny Cards Released to 100% 10 days Thu 6/18/15 Wed 7/1/15 Tammy
77 s Appeals & Greivances on EOB 100% 71 days Mon 3/9/15 Fri 6/12/15 Tami H/Gail
78 & Deductible & Cost-Sharing Credits (where to find?)  100% 72 days Mon 3/9/15 Mon 6/15/15
79 |~ Website 100% 84 days Mon 3/9/15 Wed 7/1/15
80 |v NDPERS PPO Network Demo Video for onsite 100% 30 days Mon 4/20/15 Fri 5/29/15
81 |« mySanfordHealthPlan 100% 1 day Wed 7/1/15 Wed 7/1/15
82 | setup programs/services on myHP specific to 100% 62 days Fri3/20/15  Mon 6/15/15
83 & NDPERS links to our portals on their page 100% 62 days Mon 3/9/15 Mon 6/1/15
84 Wellness Program 19% 153 days Mon 12/22/14 Mon 7/20/15
85 |E SHP receives electronic file for Health Club 23% 153 days Mon 12/22/14 Mon 7/20/15
86 | ID SHP for Wellness Committee 1% 36 days Mon 6/1/15  Mon 7/20/15
87 & HSA 100% 87 days Mon 3/2/15 Mon 6/29/15
88 |« Design communication/brochure, etc 100% 56 days Mon 3/16/15 Mon 6/1/15
89 |« Brochure/communication 100% 87 days Mon 3/2/15  Mon 6/29/15
90 |+ Approval of Carrier Paper Template 100% 40 days Mon 3/9/15 Thu 4/30/15 Tammy
91 |« Finalize Benny Card Labeling 100% 41 days Mon 3/9/15 Fri 5/1/15 Tammy
92 || DataRequirements 95% 155days? Mon3/2/15 Thu 10/1/15 Wyatt Y
93 & Business Configuration 100% 14 days Wed 3/4/15 Fri3/20/15 IT/Finance
94 |y J g )
95 |« Premium Type = Contract 100% 14 days Wed 3/4/15 Fri 3/20/15 IT/Finance
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task Manual Task BES I Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary === Manual Summary === Manual Progress
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ID ‘Task Name % Complete Duration Start Finish Predecessor{Resource Names
96 | New Payer (SHP-NDPERS) 100% 14 days Wed 3/4/15 Fri 3/20/15 IT/Finance
97 | Prog# = NP 100% 14 days Wed 3/4/15 Fri 3/20/15 IT/Finance
98 |« Line of Business - confirm with NDPERS 100% 14 days Wed 3/4/15 Fri 3/20/15 IT/Finance
99 | NPS - Active Members, State Employees (Panel 100% 14 days Wed 3/4/15 Fri 3/20/15 IT/Finance
100 |+ NPP - Active Members; Political Subdivisions 100% 14 days Wed 3/4/15 Fri 3/20/15 IT/Finance
101 |« NPR - PreMedicare Retirees (Panel 005) 100% 14 days Wed 3/4/15 Fri 3/20/15 IT/Finance
102 |« NPM - Retiree Medicare Supplement (Panel 001) 100% 14 days Wed 3/4/15 Fri 3/20/15 IT/Finance
103 | Business Build 100% 9 days Wed 3/11/15 Fri 3/20/15 IT/Finance
104 |« Tapestry LOB build 100% 9 days Wed 3/11/15 Fri 3/20/15 IT/Finance
105 |« Data Warehouse Setup 100% 9 days Wed 3/11/15 Fri 3/20/15 IT/Finance
106 | Express Scripts Configuration 96% 87 days Wed 3/4/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT/Finance
107 | . Preauthoization file - Rx Formulary - Provider 85% 84 days Mon 3/9/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT/Finance
108 |« Separate Carrier and File 100% 22 days Wed 3/4/15 Wed 4/1/15 IT/Finance
109 || Plan Type 99% 46 days Wed 3/4/15 Tue 5/5/15 IT/Finance
110 |« NPAND - Active members - state employees 100% 46 days Wed 3/4/15 Tue 5/5/15 IT/Finance
111 | NPPND - Active members - Political Subdivions 100% 45 days Wed 3/4/15 Mon 5/4/15 IT/Finance
112 |« NPRND - Pre Medicare Retirees 100% 45 days Wed 3/4/15 Mon 5/4/15 IT/Finance
113 |« NPMND - Retiree MedSup 100% 45 days Wed 3/4/15 Mon 5/4/15 IT/Finance
114 |« New BPL definitions 100% 34 days Wed 3/4/15 Fri4/17/15 IT/Finance
115 |« Which Plans have integrated MOOPs 100% 34 days Wed 3/4/15 Fri4/17/15 IT/Finance
116 | Define ID card requirements 100% 43 days Wed 3/4/15 Thu 4/30/15
117 | RxBIN/PCN. ESI dependency (separate contract) 100% 27 days Thu 3/19/15 Fri4/24/15 IT/Comm
118 |4 Logos; wrap network logos 100% 43 days Thu 3/19/15  Mon 5/18/15 IT/Comm
119 |« Claim filing, MS & UM contact info 100% 43 days Thu 3/19/15 Mon 5/18/15 IT/Comm
120 |« Other specific front/back language. 100% 37 days Thu 3/19/15 Fri 5/8/15 IT/Comm
121 |« Lasermark 100% 44 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 6/1/15
122 |« Template setup 100% 44 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 6/1/15 IT/Comm
123 | Packet setup? 100% 44 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 6/1/15 IT/Comm
124 |« Planning/lead time for this volume (use to 100% 23 days Wed 4/1/15 Fri 5/1/15 IT/Comm
125 |« Enrollment Eligibility 100% 91 days Thu 3/12/15 Wed 7/15/15
126 |« Group Setup Task Force 100% 49 days Thu 3/12/15 Mon5/18/15 IT/Finance/Enrolli
127 & Defining the Group Structure 100% 4 days Thu 3/12/15 Mon 3/16/15 IT/Finance/Enrolh
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task Manual Task i I Progress
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ID ‘Task Name % Complete Duration Start Finish Predecessor{Resource Names
128 |« Reporting drivers (Finance) 100% 4 days Thu 3/12/15  Mon 3/16/15 IT/Finance/Enrolln
129 | Premium Billing drivers (Finance) 100% 4 days Thu 3/12/15 Mon 3/16/15 IT/Finance/Enrolin
130 |« Benefit package drivers (Enrollment) 100% 4 days Thu 3/12/15 Mon 3/16/15 IT/Finance/Enrolin
131 |« Networks (may force separate LOB) 100% 4 days Thu 3/12/15 Mon 3/16/15 IT/Finance/Enrolln
132 |y Communicate Group structure to NDPERS (by 100% 4 days Thu 3/12/15  Mon 3/16/15 IT/Enrollment

133 | Loading Methodology 100% 49 days Thu3/12/15 Mon5/18/15 IT/Finance/Enrolli
134 |y Source data 100% 37 days Thu 3/12/15 Thu 4/30/15 IT/Finance/Enrolin
135 |a Imports 100% 37 days Thu 3/12/15 Thu 4/30/15 IT/Finance/Enrolin
136 |4 Custom Attributes (TBD) 100% 37 days Thu 3/12/15 Thu 4/30/15 IT/Finance/Enrolln
137 | Manual updates (IT/Enrollment) 100% 49 days Thu 3/12/15  Mon 5/18/15 IT/Finance/Enrolln
138 | Express Scripts BPL information 100% 26 days Thu 3/12/15  Wed 4/15/15 IT/Finance/Enrolin
139 |4 Eligibility File Task Force 100% 76 days Wed 4/1/15 Wed 7/15/15 IT/Enroliment
140 |« Define default Panel(s) driven by Provider 100% 13 days Wed 4/1/15 Fri4/17/15 IT/Enroliment

141 | Initial file receipt 100% 34 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 5/18/15 IT/Enroliment
142 | Test load to SUP 100% 34 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 5/18/15 IT/Enrollment

143 |« Small scale SUP loads 100% 3 days Wed 4/1/15 Fri4/3/15 IT/Enroliment

144 | Identify corrections 100% 34 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 5/18/15 IT/Enrollment

145 |« Communicate corrections to NDPERS 100% 34 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 5/18/15 IT/Enrollment

146 |« Determine scrubber components needed. 100% 34 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 5/18/15 IT/Enrollment
147 |« Test scrubber build in SUP 100% 34 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 5/18/15 IT/Enrollment

148 | Small scale TAP loads 100% 19 days Wed 4/22/15 Mon 5/18/15 IT/Enroliment

149 | EMPI load 100% 29 days Wed 4/22/15 Mon 6/1/15 IT/Enroliment

150 TAP Clarity/Data Warehouse testing (from small 100% 54 days Fri5/1/15 Wed 7/15/15 IT/Enroliment

151 Generate test Indemnity Coverage 100% 29 days Fri5/1/15 Wed 6/10/15 IT/Enroliment

152 | Test termination file in SUP 100% 29 days Fri 5/1/15 Wed 6/10/15 IT/Enrollment

153 |« Test ID card request/interface 100% 29 days Fri 5/1/15 Wed 6/10/15 IT/Enroliment

154 |4 Sample ID cards 100% 29 days Fri 5/1/15 Wed 6/10/15 IT/Enrollment

155 | ESI Eligibility files 100% 54 days Fri5/1/15 Wed 7/15/15 IT/Enroliment
156 |4 Generate internal test files. 100% 29 days Fri5/1/15  Wed 6/10/15 IT/Enroliment

157 |« Submit test files to ESI mirror system 100% 29 days Fri5/1/15  Wed 6/10/15 IT/Enroliment

158 | First ESI Production file (20 days prior to 100% 13 days Mon 6/29/15  Wed 7/15/15 IT/Enrollment

159 | Production Eligibility file processing — received 100% 20 days Tue 4/21/15  Mon 5/18/15 IT/Enrollment

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task Manual Task SN Progress
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ID Task Name % Complete Duration Start Finish Predecessor{Resource Names
160 |« Production ID Cards (Stagger mailing ID Cards) 100% 9 days Mon 6/8/15 Thu 6/18/15 IT/Enroliment
161 Accumulator Task Force 99% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT/Enroliment/Cla
162 File layout from BCBS 100% 77 days Mon 3/2/15 Mon 6/15/15 IT/Enrollment/Cla
163 When can a test file be obtained? 100% 47 days Mon 3/2/15 Mon 5/4/15 IT/Enrollment/Clai
164 Frequency 100% 1day Mon 6/15/15 Mon 6/15/15 IT/Enrollment/Cla
165 | First Production file 100% 1 day Mon 6/15/15 Mon 6/15/15 IT/Enrollment/Clai
166 | Scrubbing 100% 67 days Mon 3/2/15 Mon 6/1/15 IT/Enrollment/Clai
167 |+ Validation steps 100% 67 days Mon 3/2/15 Mon 6/1/15 IT/Enrollment/Clai
168 |« Error reporting 100% 67 days Mon 3/2/15 Mon 6/1/15 IT/Enrollment/Clai
169 |4 Test Import to SUP 100% 66 days Tue 3/3/15 Mon 6/1/15 IT/Enroliment/Clai
170 |« Test Import to TAP 100% 67 days Mon 3/2/15 Mon 6/1/15 IT/Enrollment/Clai
171 |, Production Accum Import 100% 1 day Mon 6/29/15 Mon 6/29/15 IT/Enroliment/Clai
172 |« ESI 100% 89 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT/Enroliment/Cla
173 |« Validate ESI accumulator configuration. 100% 66 days Mon 3/2/15 Fri 5/29/15 IT/Enroliment/Clai
174 | ESI Inbound (load to Tapestry) production file 100% 1 day Wed 7/1/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT/Enrollment/Clai
175 |« ESI Outbound (extract from Tapestry) production 100% 1 day Wed 7/1/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT/Enrollment/Clai
176 |« Provider/Vendor Extract-Import Team 100% 45 days Wed 4/1/15 Tue 6/2/15 IT/Provider
177 | Panel/Network Import 100% 45 days Wed 4/1/15 Tue 6/2/15 IT/Provider
178 | Create new Panel/network 005 100% 22 days Fri 5/1/15 Mon 6/1/15 IT/Provider
179 |« Test import to SUP 100% 44 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 6/1/15 IT/Provider
180 |« Test import to TAP 100% 45 days Wed 4/1/15 Tue 6/2/15 IT/Provider
181 |« Provider Contract Import 100% 44 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 6/1/15 IT/Provider
182 |4 Preauth Import 100% 54 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 6/15/15 Tony T/Lonny
183 | Premium Billing 99% 98 days? Wed 4/1/15 Fri 8/14/15 IT/Finance
184 1 Reporting Needs 99% 98 days? Wed 4/1/15 Fri 8/14/15 IT/Finance
185 |« NDPERS 100% 98 days Wed 4/1/15 Fri 8/14/15 IT/Finance
186 | Discrepancy Report 100% 1 day? Wed 7/1/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT/Finance
187 |« Internal SHP 100% 66 days Wed 4/1/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT/Finance
188 |« 820 Processing 100% 54 days Wed 4/1/15  Mon 6/15/15 IT/Finance
189 1 HSA — Healthcare Savings Account 79% 98 days Wed 4/1/15 Fri 8/14/15 IT/Flex
190 |« Evolution1 HSA build 100% 33 days Wed 4/1/15 Fri 5/15/15 IT/Flex
191 |« Eligibility Load process 100% 51 days Wed 4/1/15 Wed 6/10/15 IT/Flex
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192 Demographics 100% 41 days Wed 4/15/15  Wed 6/10/15 IT/Flex

193 Submit files to Evolution1 100% 34 days Fri 5/15/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT/Flex

194 | Benny Card mailing 25% 50 days Mon 5/25/15 Fri 7/31/15 IT/Flex

195 1 Periodic Contribution File 83% 88 days Wed 4/15/15 Fri 8/14/15 IT/Flex

196 |« Test 100% 44 days Wed 4/15/15 Mon 6/15/15 IT/Flex

197 | Monthly 75% 88 days Wed 4/15/15 Fri 8/14/15 IT/Flex

198 1 Flexible Spending Interface file 96% 53 days Mon5/4/15 Wed 7/15/15 IT/Flex

199 | Define Interface file 100% 53 days Mon 5/4/15  Wed 7/15/15 IT/Flex

200 | Send Test file to Administrator 100% 31 days Mon 5/4/15  Mon 6/15/15 IT/Flex

201 |« Determine production file frequency. 100% 31 days Mon 5/4/15 Mon 6/15/15 IT/Flex

202 | Send first Production file 50% 11 days Wed 7/1/15  Wed 7/15/15 IT/Flex

203 | Section 111 Setup 98% 89 days Mon 6/1/15 Thu 10/1/15 IT/Flex

204 | Transmitter/ID configuration. 100% 89 days? Mon 6/1/15 Thu 10/1/15 IT/Flex

205 | Plan/Group TINs 100% 89 days? Mon 6/1/15 Thu 10/1/15 IT/Flex

206 |, Incorporation into existing Section 111 processing.  95% 89 days? Mon 6/1/15 Thu 10/1/15 IT/Flex

207 |1 Other Files — details TBD 25% 76 days Mon 4/20/15 Mon 8/3/15 IT/Flex

208 1 Health Club Credit 25% 76 days Mon 4/20/15 Mon 8/3/15 IT/Flex

209 |, File source/format determination. 25% 76 days Mon 4/20/15 Mon 8/3/15 IT/Flex

210 | Existing balances? 25% 36 days Mon 6/15/15 Mon 8/3/15 IT/Flex

211 1 Integration/External functions 99% 56 days Wed 4/15/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT

212 |« Healthx — myHealthPlan 100% 56 days Wed 4/15/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT

213 | Potential separate instance 100% 56 days Wed 4/15/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT

214 |4 Specialized requirements/ branding 100% 56 days Wed 4/15/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT

215 | Initial file feed timing (dependency upon 100% 56 days Wed 4/15/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT

216 |« SocialWellth 100% 56 days Wed 4/15/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT

217 |« Single-Sign-On (SSO) testing/validation 100% 56 days Wed 4/15/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT

218 | Verisk 100% 34 days Wed 4/15/15 Mon 6/1/15 IT

219 |« Determination of Report grouping. 100% 34 days Wed 4/15/15 Mon 6/1/15 IT

220 Contracts 89% 139 days Mon 12/22/14 Tue 6/30/15

221 |, Facility Contracts (Essentia, Trinity, etc) 75% 82 days Tue 3/10/15 Tue 6/30/15 Contracting/PR

222 || Provider 95% 139days Mon 12/22/14 Tue 6/30/15 Contracting/PR

223 1 Physicians 95% 139 days Mon 12/22/14 Tue 6/30/15 Contracting/PR
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task Manual Task I IS Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary -1 Manual Summary [==========]  Manual Progress
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224 | Chiros 95% 139days  Mon 12/22/14 Tue 6/30/15 Contracting/PR
225 | PPO Network Development 88% 139days Mon 12/22/14 Tue 6/30/15 Contracting/PR
226 |« Draft NDPERS PPO Provider Contract Amendment 100% 84 days Mon 1/5/15 Tue 4/28/15 Contracting/PR
22T 1. SHP Review Electronic File of PPO Providers 100% 27 days Mon 2/9/15 Sun 3/15/15 NDPERS
228 |y Send NDPERS PPO Contract Amendment to Providers 100% 120 days Mon 12/22/14 Wed 6/3/15 Contracting/PR
229 Mail out Unilateral Agreements 100% 1 day Wed 6/3/15 Wed 6/3/15 Contracting/PR
230 | Mail Out Mutual Agreements 100% 1 day Wed 6/3/15 Wed 6/3/15 Contracting/PR
231 | Provider Relations Conduct follow-up Contract calls 75% 55 days Wed 4/15/15 Tue 6/30/15 Contracting/PR
232 | Configure PPO Network 75% 33 days Fri 5/15/15 Tue 6/30/15 Contracting/PR
233 | Configure Online Provider Directory to Display 85% 81 days Mon 3/2/15 Fri 6/19/15 Contracting/PR
234 || Information Technology 99% 89days Mon3/2/15 Wed7/1/15 Wyatt Y
235 | General 100% 45 days Mon 3/2/15 Thu 4/30/15
236 |& Identify Project Lead and Application Support team 100% 1 day Wed 3/11/15  Wed 3/11/15 Gail S
237 |« Identify Project Team Subject Matter Experts 100% 1 day Mon 3/2/15 Mon 3/2/15 Gail S
238 | Review Overall Build requirements 100% 0 days Thu 4/30/15 Thu 4/30/15 Gail S
239 | Complete Build Document 100% 25 days Fri 3/27/15 Thu 4/30/15 Gail S
240 |« Create and Customize Build Tracker 100% 23 days Tue 3/31/15 Thu 4/30/15 Gail S
241 1' Build 99% 66 days Wed 4/1/15 Wed 7/1/15 Gail S
242 |« Custom Extensions 100% 44 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 6/1/15 Gail S
243 |y Utilization Management 100% 66 days Wed 4/1/15 Wed 7/1/15 Gail S
244 |4 Case Management 100% 44 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 6/1/15 Gail S
245 | Customer Service Module 100% 66 days Wed 4/1/15 Wed 7/1/15 Gail S
246 |y Enrollment File Processing 100% 44 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 6/1/15 Gail S
247 | Emdeon Integration for EOBs and Ras 100% 64 days Wed 4/1/15  Mon 6/29/15 Gail S
248 1 Unit Testing 99% 62 days Wed 4/1/15 Thu 6/25/15 Gail S
249 |« Benefits and Custom Extensions 100% 57 days Wed 4/1/15 Thu 6/18/15 Gail S
250 | Referrals (UM) 100% 62 days Wed 4/1/15 Thu 6/25/15 Gail S
251 |« Case Management 100% 62 days Wed 4/1/15 Thu 6/25/15 Gail S
252 | Inbound and outbound ANSI transactions 100% 62 days Wed 4/1/15 Thu 6/25/15 Gail S
253 |y Custom File Imports 100% 62 days Wed 4/1/15 Thu 6/25/15 Gail S
254 |« Benefit accumulation seed processing 100% 62 days Wed 4/1/15 Thu 6/25/15 Gail S
255 | Emdeon File processing testing 100% 57 days Wed 4/1/15 Thu 6/18/15 Gail S
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256 | Integrated Testing 100% 22 days Mon 6/1/15 Tue 6/30/15 Gail S

257 | Health Plan Operations 100% 22 days Mon 6/1/15 Tue 6/30/15 Gail S

258 |« Identify Term File 100% 22 days Mon 6/1/15 Tue 6/30/15 Gail S

259 |& Health System 100% 22 days Mon 6/1/15 Tue 6/30/15 Gail S

260 |4 Production Go-Live 100% 1 day Wed 7/1/15 Wed 7/1/15 Gail S

261 |y Utilization Management 100% 88days Mon3/2/15 Tue 6/30/15 Tony Tiefenthale

262 |« Advanced Notification 100% 44 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 6/1/15

263 | Preauthorization 100% 44 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 6/1/15 Tony Tiefenthaler

264 |« Referral Process/Precert, etc. 100% 88 days Mon 3/2/15 Tue 6/30/15

265 |« (

266 | UM Team Reviews list of prior-authorizations from  100% 65 days Wed 4/1/15 Tue 6/30/15 SHP/NDPERS

267 | Receive Provider Referrals 100% 62 days Mon 3/9/15 Mon 6/1/15 Dr. Crandell

268 | UM Team Reviews list of referrals from incumbant  100% 65 days Wed 4/1/15 Tue 6/30/15 SHP

269 |4 Transplants 100% 43 days Fri5/1/15 Tue 6/30/15

270 |« Incumbent carrier sends list of patients on transplant 100% 43 days Fri 5/1/15 Tue 6/30/15 SHP

271 || Pharmacy 57% 488 days Mon 12/22/14 Mon 10/31/16 Dr. Crandell

272 | on 1 '

273 |, Disruption 95% 106 days Mon 3/9/15 Fri 7/31/15

274 | Pharmacy Team Reviews list of members on 100% 71 days Wed 3/25/15 Wed 7/1/15 SHP

275 Receive Rx Utilization File from PERS in-house for 100% 27 days Wed 3/25/15 Thu 4/30/15 SHP

276 Receive and Process Formulary Exception Requests; grand 100% 65 days Thu 4/2/15 Wed 7/1/15 SHP

277 | Pharmacvaeam nbtifies members 1) who need to 100% 21 days Thu 6/11/15 Thu 7/9/15 274 SHP

278 | Handbook 100% 63 days Mon 3/9/15 Tue 6/2/15 SHP

279 | Launch Diabetes copay waiver program with NDPhA—-  85% 124 days Mon 4/13/15 Thu 10/1/15 Dr. Crandell

280 Pharmacy Benefits 33% 220 days Mon 3/2/15  Thu 12/31/15

281 |« : . ( ; 100¢ -

282 | ESI Developing Implementation Plan 100% 13 days Tue 3/3/15  Wed 3/18/15 SHP/ESI

283 | Review Enrollment and Eligibility with ESI 100% 1 day Thu 3/19/15 Thu 3/19/15 IT

284 |y Built account, copay and benefit structure (BPL) 100% 43 days Fri 5/1/15 Tue 6/30/15 IT

285 |4 Review Clinical Operation Requirements (standard or 100% 52 days Fri 3/20/15 Mon 6/1/15 SHP/ESI

286 | Transfer of out of pocket maximums 100% 84 days Mon 3/9/15 Wed 7/1/15 IT

287 L. Implementing Medicare Part D effective 1/1/2016 10% 84 days Fri9/4/15 Wed 12/30/15 SHP/ESI
Manual Task IR Progress
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288 | Low Income Subsidy (LIS) - Part D 0% 215 days Mon 3/9/15  Thu 12/31/15 SHP/ESI
289 | Member rebate accounts 10% 215 days Mon 3/9/15  Thu 12/31/15 SHP/ESI
290 || Case Management 96% 106 days? Mon3/9/15  Fri7/31/15 Dr. Crandell
291 | Clarify Disease Management Programs that need to be 100% 23 days Mon 3/9/15 Tue 4/7/15 Barb Vandonslear
292 |« Develop Disease Management Programs that need to 100% 68 days Fri3/13/15 Mon 6/15/15 Barb
293 |« Review Clinical Practice Guidelines for Programsto  100% 30 days Fri3/13/15  Wed 4/22/15 Barb Vandonslear
294 |y Develop Identification Criteria for Programs 100% 37 days Fri 3/13/15 Fri 5/1/15 Barb Vandonslear
295 |« Build Identification Queres 100% 68 days Fri 3/13/15 Mon 6/15/15 Barb Vandonslear
296 |« Identify Risk Stratification Criteria 100% 57 days Fri 3/13/15 Fri 5/29/15 Barb Vandonslear
297 |« Develop Program Toolkits and Materials 100% 37 days Fri 3/13/15 Fri 5/1/15 Barb Vandonslear
298 |« Review Accordant Rare Disease Management 100% 18 days? Wed 4/22/15 Fri 5/15/15 Barb Vandonslear
299 |& Revise Current Programs to Meet State Requirements  100% 57 days Fri 3/13/15 Fri 5/29/15 Barb Vandonslear
300 |, Update Marketing Materials for NDPERS Program 95% 85 days Fri 3/13/15 Wed 7/8/15 Barb Vandonslear
301 | Complete Tapestry Build 100% 80 days Fri 3/13/15 Wed 7/1/15 Barb Vandonslear
302 |« Test Tapestry Build 100% 69 days Fri 3/27/15 Wed 7/1/15 Barb Vandonslear
303 | ND PERS review of DM program materials 100% 63 days Mon 4/6/15 Wed 7/1/15 Barb
304 |« Enter DM cases into Tapestry for program enrollment  100% 15 days Thu 6/25/15 Wed 7/15/15 299 Barb Vandonslear
305 |, Enter CCM/CM/Healthy Pregnancy program cases into  90% 11 days Wed 7/1/15  Wed 7/15/15 310 Barb
306 |« Reporting (build or add ability to run all reports for 100% 68 days Fri3/13/15  Mon 6/15/15 Barb Vandonslear
307 |« Obtain a list of current BCBS Disease management 100% 80 days Fri 3/13/15 Wed 7/1/15 Barb Vandonslear
308 | Obtain a list of current BCBS Case Management and 90% 90 days Fri3/13/15  Wed 7/15/15 Barb Vandonslear
309 | Load DM program members in bWell and Tapestry and 75% 102 days Fri 3/13/15 Fri 7/31/15 Barb Vandonslear
310 |« Rare/Complex COM Program 100% 56 days Wed 4/15/15 Wed 7/1/15 Barb Vandonslear
311 |« Life Advocate (Member Advocacy Program) Program 100% 51 days? Wed 4/22/15 Wed 7/1/15 Barb Vandonslear
312 |« Update and Review program letters 100% 18 days? Wed 4/22/15 Fri 5/15/15 Barb Vandonslear
313 | COI 100% 50 days Mon 4/6/15 Fri 6/12/15 Trixy
314 | Submit to state 100% 50 days Mon 4/6/15 Fri 6/12/15 Kathy
315 || Benefits/Configuration 99% 96 days Tue 3/3/15 Mon 7/13/15 Lisa
316 |« Review SBC and COI to define benefits 100% 34 days Tue 3/3/15 Thu 4/16/15 Jan/Kyle/Trixy
317 |« Overview with IT to explain benefits 100% 1 day Mon 4/6/15 Mon 4/6/15 Jan/Kyle
318 |« Benefit Build 100% 25 days Mon 4/13/15 Fri 5/15/15 317 Jan/Kyle
319 |« Testing/Build Changes 100% 26 days Thu 5/21/15 Thu 6/25/15 318 Jan/Kyle,Pat
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task Manual Task i I Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary p=———========0 Manual Summary [==============4  Manual Progress

~ Page 10

20
P




P poNy |

D gName % Complete Qluration Start Finish Predecessor{Resource Names
320 | Load Accums 100% 1 day Mon 6/29/15  Mon 6/29/15 319 IT
321 | Test 100% 10 days Tue 6/30/15  Mon 7/13/15 320 Diane
322 || Quality Assurance 79% 57 days Fri5/15/15 Mon 8/3/15 Lisa
323 | Group Setup 100% 16 days Fri 5/15/15 Fri 6/5/15 Pat/Peggy/Renae
324 |4 Providers/Vendors 100% 22 days Fri 5/15/15 Mon 6/15/15 Pat/Ronnette
325 |y Contracts/Fee Schedules 100% 22 days Fri 5/15/15  Mon 6/15/15 Pat/Ronnette
326 |a Premium Rate Tables 100% 16 days Fri 5/15/15 Fri 6/5/15 Pat/Peggy/Renae
327 |E Claims — Post Go Live 25% 57 days Fri 5/15/15 Mon 8/3/15 Ronnette/New
328 |y NDPERS conduct a benefit for conifguration review 100% 30 days Fri 5/15/15 Thu 6/25/15
329 |« Policy/Benefit Compare Checklist from Trixy 100% 22 days Fri 5/15/15 Mon 6/15/15 Trixy
330 |« Benefit Schedule Confirmation to BCBS Policy 100% 22 days Fri 5/15/15 Mon 6/15/15
331 | Plan Documents/SPDs 100% 117 days? Mon 12/22/14  Fri5/29/15
332 & ID Cards 100% 117 days? Mon 12/22/14 Fri 5/29/15
333 | Plan Document Review 100% 1 day? Mon 12/22/14 Mon 12/22/14 Kathy,Deb,Rebecc
334 |y ID Card Templated Approved 100% 21 days Fri 4/3/15 Fri 5/1/15 SHP/NDPERS
335 |a Contact Lasermark regarding timeframe for design ~ 100% 11 days Wed 4/1/15  Wed 4/15/15
336 | ID Card Design 100% 22 days Wed 4/1/15 Thu 4/30/15
337 & Send communication to Lasermark informing them of 100% 43 days Wed 4/1/15 Fri 5/29/15
338 | Summary of Benefits & Coverage 100% 21 days Fri 4/3/15 Fri 5/1/15 SHP
339 |, Wellness Program 77% 263 days? Thu1/1/15 Thu 12/31/15 Lisa
340 | Employer based wellness program 100% 84 days Fri 3/6/15 Tue 6/30/15 SHP/NDPERS
341 |« Member education topics 100% 42 days Fri 3/6/15 Fri 5/1/15 SHP
342 | Posters 25% 128 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 8/31/15 SHP
343 |y Emails blasts 100% 128 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 8/31/15 SHP
344 |« Monthly newsletters/coordinators & employee specific 100% 128 days Fri3/6/15  Mon 8/31/15 SHP
345 | Monthly coordinator calls 100% 42 days Fri 3/6/15 Fri 5/1/15 SHP
346 |« Vouchers 100% 150 days Fri 3/6/15 Wed 9/30/15 SHP
347 |, Wellness funding 80% 128 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 8/31/15 SHP
348 | Lt Gov Award for Worksite Wellness 100% 42 days Fri 3/6/15 Fri 5/1/15 SHP
349 |« Coordinate with Healthy ND 100% 42 days Fri 3/6/15 Fri 5/1/15 SHP
350 |, Coordinator Summer workshops 25% 150 days Fri 3/6/15 Wed 9/30/15 SHP
351 |« Coordinator Points — 6000 points on online portal each 100% 42 days Fri 3/6/15 Fri 5/1/15 SHP
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| 1ask Manual Task BEEE =@ Progress
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352 i Employee Wellness Incentives 54% 186 days Mon 3/16/15 Mon 11/30/15 SHP

353 | Health Club Credit 90% 121 days Mon 3/16/15 Mon 8/31/15 SHP

354 | COSE Wellness Day 25% 143 days Mon 3/16/15  Wed 9/30/15 SHP

355 | Retiree Wellness Fair 25% 186 days Mon 3/16/15 Mon 11/30/15 SHP

356 bWell online portal 100% 78 days Mon 3/16/15 Wed 7/1/15 SHP

357 Explore transition/conversion of existing points from 100% 35 days Mon 3/16/15 Fri 5/1/15 SHP

358 |, Health Club Credit Program ($20/month) 90% 175 days Thu 1/1/15 Mon 8/31/15 SHP

359 |y Idenitfy subject Matter Experts 100% 46 days Mon 3/2/15 Fri 5/1/15 SHP/NDPERS

360 | Inventory data on site locations/program types/reward 100% 33 days Tue 11/17/15  Thu 12/31/15 SHP/NDPERS

361 Create Implementation Plan by Site 100% 1 day Tue 5/12/15 Tue 5/12/15 SHP/NDPERS

362 Configure Group (site divisions) for rewards platform  100% 12 days Tue 3/31/15  Wed 4/15/15 SHP

363 | Build Rewards Program with SocialWealth (bWell) 90% 89 days Wed 4/1/15 Mon 8/3/15 SHP

364 | Train Wellness Team Program Users & Assign Wellness 80% 11 days Mon 8/17/15 Mon 8/31/15 SHP/NDPERS

365 | Wellness Coach Meet & Greet Meetings scheduled for 100% 33 days Sat 5/16/15 Tue 6/30/15 SHP/NDPERS

366 | Wellness Coach Conference Calls 100% 44 days? Wed 7/1/15 Mon 8/31/15 358 SHP/NDPERS

367 Health Clubs 91% 121 days Mon 3/16/15 Mon 8/31/15

368 |« Sign NIHCA Agreement 100% 35 days Mon 3/16/15 Fri5/1/15 SHP

369 |, Our IT and NIHCA IT meet to review the operations  90% 66 days Fri 5/1/15 Fri 7/31/15 SHP

370 Marketing plan in place and renrollment form 100% 43 days Fri5/1/15 Tue 6/30/15 SHP

371 Communicate to NDPERS wellness coordinators 100% 53 days Mon 4/20/15 Wed 7/1/15 SHP

372 Wellness coordinators push out info to participants 75% 91 days Mon 4/27/15  Mon 8/31/15 SHP

373 | Open Enrollment 100% 22 days Tue 6/2/15 Wed 7/1/15 SHP

374 ACA/Compliance Activities 59% 402 days Mon 12/22/14 Fri 7/1/16

375 | Reporting minimal essential coverage (6055) 0% 218 days Wed 7/1/15 Fri4/29/16 Lisa C

376 |& ACA required notices upon loss of coverage for 100% 8 days Wed 7/1/15 Fri 7/10/15 Lisa C

377 | Monitor employer lapse in coverage for change to NGF  75% 263 days Wed 7/1/15 Fri7/1/16 Lisa C

378 |

379 |v Provide a stable Grandfathered benefit design by 100% 1 day Wed 7/1/15 Wed 7/1/15 Lisa C

380 | Monitoring of performance guarantees 75% 271days  Mon 12/22/14  Thu 12/31/15 Lisa C

381 |« Monitor and address legislative items 100% 1 day Wed 7/1/15 Wed 7/1/15 Lisa C

382 |« HSA 100% 133 days? Mon 12/29/14 Mon 6/29/15

383 | Communication to members 100% 133 days Mon 12/29/14 Mon 6/29/15 Tammy G
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task Manual Task I I Progress
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384 |a Letter to Members from NDPERS 100% 16 days? Mon 6/8/15 Mon 6/29/15 Tammy G
385 |« Welcome packet to HDHP members from SHP 100% 1 day? Mon 6/29/15 Mon 6/29/15 Tammy G
386 |+ Workout details regarding members wishing to transfer 100% 118 days Mon 1/5/15  Mon 6/15/15 Tammy G
387 Value Added Programs 60% 118 days? Mon 12/22/14 Mon 6/1/15
388 Grant application and contract 100% 1day? Mon 12/22/14 Mon 12/22/14
389 Enrollment 100% 1 day? Mon 12/22/14 Mon 12/22/14
390 Claims processing 100% l1day? Mon 12/22/14 Mon 12/22/14
391 Reporting requirements 50% 1day? Mon 12/22/14 Mon 12/22/14
392 Invoices for grant reimbursement 50% 1day? Mon 12/22/14 Mon 12/22/14
393 |« RX Disease Management Program (About the Patient) 100% 42 days Fri 3/6/15 Fri 5/1/15 Dr. Crandell
394 | Eligibility reporting 0% 42 days Fri 3/6/15 Fri 5/1/15 Tammy G
395 | Cost share incentive reporting 0% 42 days Fri 3/6/15 Fri 5/1/15 SHP
39 |, Administer payment of invoices from NDPERS Cash 0% 42 days Fri 3/6/15 Fri 5/1/15 SHP
397 |« About the Patient need to work with NDPharmacy on  100% 42 days Fri 3/6/15 Fri 5/1/15 SHP
398 |« Prenatal Plus conversion to Sanford Healthy Pregnancy 100% 63 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 6/1/15 Barb Vandonslear
399 |4 Tobacco Cessation Program 100% 42 days Fri3/6/15 Fri5/1/15 SHP
400 | System for enrollment and processing of claims for ~ 100% 42 days Fri 3/6/15 Fri 5/1/15 SHP
401 Facilities 98% 56days Mon3/2/15  Fri5/15/15
402 |« Fargo 100% 37 days Mon 3/2/15 Mon 4/20/15 Trixy/Chris Reiff
403 | Office Space 10( , , Kurt B/Je
404 | Office Build Out 100% 15 days Tue 3/31/15 Mon 4/20/15 Mike E
405 | Data/Phone Network Lines 100% 15 days Tue 3/31/15 Mon 4/20/15 Todd M
406 | Network Switches 100% 32 days Mon 3/9/15 Mon 4/20/15 Todd M
407 | Furniture/Signage 100% 33 days Fri3/6/15  Mon 4/20/15 Justin S
408 | PC 100% 33 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 4/20/15 Todd M
409 | Phones/Headsets 100% 33 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 4/20/15 Todd M
410 | Copiers/Printers/Faxes 100% 33 days Fri3/6/15  Mon 4/20/15 Todd M
411 Bismarck 95% 56 days Mon 3/2/15 Fri 5/15/15 Trixy/Chris Reiff
412 | Office Space 75% 9 days Mon 3/2/15 Thu 3/12/15 Kurt B
413 | Office Build Out 75% 45 days Mon 3/2/15 Thu 4/30/15 Mike E
414 | Data/Phone Network Lines 100% 22 days Wed 4/1/15 Thu 4/30/15 Todd M
415 L. Network Switches 100% 33 days Wed 4/1/15 Fri 5/15/15 Todd M
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task Tl Manual Task IR  Progress
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416 | Furniture/Signage 100% 45 days Mon 3/16/15 Fri 5/15/15 Justin S
417 | PC 100% 33 days Wed 4/1/15 Fri 5/15/15 Todd M
418 | Phones/Headsets 100% 33 days Wed 4/1/15 Fri 5/15/15 Todd M
419 | Copiers/Printers/Faxes 100% 33 days Wed 4/1/15 Fri 5/15/15 Todd M
420 |« Sioux Falls 100% 31 days Mon 3/2/15 Fri4/10/15 Trixy/Chris Reiff
421 | Office Space 100% 1 day Fri 3/6/15 Fri 3/6/15 Jason H
422 | Data/Phone Network Lines 100% 21 days Mon 3/2/15 Fri 3/27/15 Wyatt Y
423 | Network Switch 100% 21 days Mon 3/2/15 Fri 3/27/15 Wyatt Y
424 | Furniture 100% 25 days Tue 3/10/15 Fri 4/10/15 Justin S
425 - PC 100% 31 days Mon 3/2/15 Fri 4/10/15 Wyatt Y
426 | Phones/Headsets 100% 31 days Mon 3/2/15 Fri 4/10/15 Wyatt Y
427 Human Resources 99% 139 days? Mon 12/22/14 Tue 6/30/15 BillG
428 1 Recruiting 99% 75 days? Mon 12/22/14 Wed 4/1/15 HR
429 Hiring % Complete (tracking) 85% 1day? Mon 12/22/14 Mon 12/22/14 HR
430 |« Build job descriptions and post for all jobs in all 100% 1 day Fri3/6/15 Fri 3/6/15 HR
431 | Determine target hire dates for all jobs 100% 1 day Fri 3/6/15 Fri 3/6/15 HR
432 |« Deploy Social Media recruiting tactics 100% 2 days Fri3/6/15 Mon 3/9/15 HR
433 |4 Facebook 100% 2 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 3/9/15 HR
434 |« Linked-in 100% 2 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 3/9/15 HR
435 |4 Twitter 100% 2 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 3/9/15 HR
436 |« Indeed 100% 2 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 3/9/15 HR
437 | Deploy external online postings for all jobs 100% 2 days Fri3/6/15 Mon 3/9/15 HR
438 |a Job HQ, Indeed, Job Service 100% 2 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 3/9/15 HR
439 |4 College Sites/Team ND 100% 2 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 3/9/15 HR
440 |« Sanford Health Careers page 100% 2 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 3/9/15 HR
441 |« GFMEDC online advertising 100% 2 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 3/9/15 HR
442 |4 Bisman Online/Craigslist 100% 2 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 3/9/15 HR
443 |y Deploy external print ads for jobs 100% 7 days Fri3/6/15 Sun 3/15/15 HR
444 |y Fargo Forum 100% 7 days Fri 3/6/15 Sun 3/15/15 HR
445 |4 Grand Forks Herald 100% 7 days Fri 3/6/15 Sun 3/15/15 HR
446 |4 Bismarck Tribune 100% 7 days Fri 3/6/15 Sun 3/15/15 HR
447 | Schedule Career Fairs in Fargo and Bismarck 100% 75 days? Mon 12/22/14 Wed 4/1/15 HR
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448 |« Job Service ND — Bismarck 100% 1 day Wed 4/1/15 Wed 4/1/15 HR
449 | Bismarck — on site Career Fair 100% 1 day? Mon 12/22/14 Mon 12/22/14 HR
450 | Contact area colleges and universities to advertise ~ 100% 8 days Fri3/6/15  Mon 3/16/15 HR
451 Commence sign-on bonus program in Fargo and 100% 2 days Fri3/6/15 Mon 3/9/15 HR
452 Commence referral bonus program in Fargo and 100% 2 days Fri 3/6/15 Mon 3/9/15 HR
453 Onboarding 99% 1 day Thu 1/1/15 Thu 1/1/15 HR
454 | Develop streamlined process for offers of 99% 1 day? Thu 1/1/15 Thu 1/1/15 HR
455 | Develop streamlined process for post-offer 99% 1 day? Thu 1/1/15 Thu 1/1/15 HR
456 | Develop streamlined process for Sanford employee  99% 1 day? Thu 1/1/15 Thu 1/1/15 HR
457 1 Orientation 99% 42 days Mon 5/4/15 Tue 6/30/15 Chris R/Kyle F
458 | Sanford New Employee Orientation dates 99% 41 days Mon 5/4/15  Mon 6/29/15 Chris R/Kyle F
459 | In-person Sanford Health Plan orientation 99% 42 days Mon 5/4/15 Tue 6/30/15 Chris R/Kyle F
460 | In-person Sanford Health Plan, department specific, 99% 42 days Mon 5/4/15 Tue 6/30/15 Kyle F
461 || Training 99% 42 days Mon 5/4/15  Tue 6/30/15 Kyle F
462 | Following successful completion of Sanford’s NEO,  99% 42 days Mon 5/4/15 Tue 6/30/15 Kyle F
463 | Training will include, but not be limited to the 99% 42 days Mon 5/4/15 Tue 6/30/15 Kyle F
464 |v  Financial 100% 88days Mon3/2/15 Tue 6/30/15
465 |« Establish Checking Accounts 100% 24 days Mon 3/2/15 Wed 4/1/15 Debbie H
466 |+ RBC - Review w/ DOI 100% 88 days Mon 3/2/15 Tue 6/30/15 Cecily Tucker
467 | Premium Billing Configuration 100% 54 days Wed 4/1/15  Mon 6/15/15 Stacey D
468 | Secure Reinsurance 100% 67 days Mon 3/2/15 Mon 6/1/15 Sarah D
469 | Submit Rate Filings 100% 21 days Thu 3/5/15 Wed 4/1/15 Sarah D
470 Reporting 32% 285days Mon 6/1/15 Fri7/1/16
471 |E Financial Reporting 95% 23 days Mon 6/1/15 Wed 7/1/15
472 |E Performance Guaratnees 0% 23 days Tue 9/1/15 Thu 10/1/15
473 B Quarterly Executive Summary and Annual Assessment 0% 23 days Tue 9/1/15 Thu 10/1/15
474 |y Monthly data files through secure file transfer system  100% 23 days Tue 9/1/15 Thu 10/1/15
475 |E Adhoc reporting including cost, utilization and risk 50% 23 days Tue 9/1/15 Thu 10/1/15
476 |« Provide flexible spending account files to NDPERS ADP  100% 23 days Tue 9/1/15 Thu 10/1/15
477 |E Manage & Report NDPERS risk sharing arrangement 0% 23 days Tue 9/1/15 Thu 10/1/15
478 | Manage & Report NDPERS Cash Reserve Account 0% 23 days Tue 9/1/15 Thu 10/1/15
479 |E Process payments for NDPERS value added programs 0% 23 days Tue 9/1/15 Thu 10/1/15
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task , Manual Task T R Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary p=——=====1 Manual Summary ™=  Manual Progress
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ID Task Name % Complete Duration Start Finish Predecessor{Resource Names ’
480 | Billing 0% 23 days Tue 9/1/15 Thu 10/1/15
481 | Supporting documentation for auditors, claims recap 0% 23 days Tue 9/1/15 Thu 10/1/15
482 |E All funds in the NDPERS account at SHP get interest paid 0% 23 days Tue 9/1/15 Thu 10/1/15
483 |E Risk Sharing arrangement and return of funds if claims 0% 23 days Tue 9/1/15 Thu 10/1/15
484 |4 Enrollment discrepancy reports for medical and HSA 100% 23 days Tue 9/1/15 Thu 10/1/15
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task Manual Task I W Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary p=—————======1 Manual Summary ===  Manual Progress
Page 16
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o
Notes 9,14  |Dec14,14  [Jan18,15  |Feb22,15  [Mar29,'15  |May3,15  |wun7, 115 |ul 12, 15 Aug 16,15 |Se;; Q.
wltlelslsimlrlwlrtlelslsimlrlwlrtlels|s|ImlrT
Version 5 (3/26/15) |
|
o ,:5 s = ,
NPERS Notifies finalist of intententto i NDPERS
Contract negotiated sss====s== SHP/NDPERS
Completed on 1/19/15.... i SHP/NDPERS
Discuss Timelines, Introduce i SHP/NDPERS
4
OPS Managers Meeting to discuss internal i SHP
Ongoing throughout the implementation i SHP/NDPERS
’ ‘ e I 1
o . ]
e — - - e . NDFERS
_— NDFERS
. : - ssse NDFERS
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task T | Manual Task IS Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary 1 Manual Summary [=——==""""""" Manual Progress
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Notes

Jan18,'15  |Feb22,'15  |Mar29,'15

9,14  |Dec14,14
s Iml 1 lwlT]lcF

May 3, '15
wlTtlFrls

|jun7,'15 | jul 12,15

Aug 16, '15
Pl s s | ™

| Sep
T

o34

Planning needs to start early.

wlTtTlFrlslsim][rT

I
|
1

—Jennie/Jimmy
s Jennie
s Jennie/Brandi

[ Jennie/Tammy

Jennie/Tammy

e Jennie

‘ :

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem
Date: Tue 7/14/15

Task Manual Task I Sl Progress

Summary Manual Summary F——1 Manual Progress
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Notes

9,'14
W

T

| Dec 14, 14

Jan18,°15  |Feb22,15  |Mar29,15  |May3,15  |wun7,115
s imltlwlrtlrelslslimlrtlwlrT

F |l s

Aug16,15 |sep|(Q)
s | m | 7

| jul 12,115
gl s

== Tammy
e Marley
e
—
P——
E—————sssss Jenniel/Jimmy
. SHP/NDPERS
| 1
————= Tammy/Mark
Eeeessessssassese—" Lisa/NDPERS
e LiS2/NDPERS

e e e e s 1AM /G

=== Lasermark
=== Tammy

e TaMMy
S e—— Tammy

I
ﬁ
=== IT/Finance
s |T/Finance

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem
Date: Tue 7/14/15

Task

Summary

NN Manual Task I Progress

=== Manual Summary [——""""""""] Manual Progress
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Notes 9,14  |Dec14,14  |Jan18,15  |Feb22,15  |[Mar29,15  |May3,'15  [Jun7, 115 | ul 12,15 Aug16,15  |Sep
wltlelslsimlrlwlrlelsls|imlrlwlrtlels|s|Imlrt
s IT/Finance ;
== |T/Finance :
 p—
s |T/Finance |
s IT/Finance ,
s |IT/Finance "
s |T/Finance 5
| ?
@ IT/Finance L
== IT/Finance ;
ESI build does not have to be complete; it [ 1 ’
——— = W IT/Finance
=== |T/Finance ‘
| 1 1
- IT/Finance ‘[
= e IT/Finance 1‘
e e == IT/Finance |
— IT/Finance 1
s |T/IFinance :
s IT/Finance %
Much of the Lasermark prep/setup can I 1 :
. IT/Comm {
sy ITICOmMmM :
- — s [T/Comm ‘
— | T/Comm J
I 1 Z
i s |T/ICOmm "
— | TICOmMM
e IT/Comm
I 1
| I 1
| ™
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task Manual Task G @l Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary === Manual Summary [====""""""-]  Manual Progress
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Notes |Feb22,'15  |Mar29,15  |May3,'15  |Jun7,'15 |l 12,15 Aug16,'15 |Sep
TlwlTtlerlslsimlTt]w M| T
&= IT/Finance/Enroliment 1

When/how will this be loaded.

Drop dead date is 4/15; ideally 4/1; TAP

(TAP available 4/22)
(Identity team will examine for issues)

(Expect multiple iterations)

Last load before ID Cards — 6/2/2015. First

== IT/Finance/Enroliment
== IT/Finance/Enroliment
== IT/Finance/Enroliment

== IT/Enroliment

s IT/Enroliment

I 1
= IT/Enroliment

s |IT/Enroliment

== IT/Enroliment

w== |T/Enroliment

sy |IT/Enroliment
= IT/Enroliment

|
|
|
|

J
a
|

|
i
|

e |IT/Enrolimen

|
|
|

1

S— ITIEnroIImenﬁ

ﬁ

IT/Enroliment

] |

= IT/Enroliment

0—5 ]

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task
Date: Tue 7/14/15

Manual Task G M Progress

Summary Manual Summary [========""""1  Manual Progress
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9,14  |Dec14,'14
wl 1| F S

Jan 18, '15
s ImltlwlrtlrlslsimlrlwlrtlelslsImlrT

| Mar 29,15 | jun 7,15 | Jul 12,115 Aug16,'15 |Sep

| Feb 22,15 May 3, '15

Next 7/2 (then every 2 weeks)...

Will receive 2 files a month, starting July

Active: 1st working day, bill due 15th.

=== |T/Enroliment

I 1 |
I 1 |
- IT/Enroliment/Claims
]

i ITIEnroIImqntICIaims

s |TIEnrollment/Clajms

e e m— ITIEnro|ImenUCIa§ms

s IT/Enroliment/Clams

s |T/Enroliment/Claims

—y. | TIEnrollment/Clajms

i IT/Enroliment/Claims
I 1 J
ssss= |T/Enrollment/Claims
i IT/E,LroIImenthIaims

i IT/Enroliment/Claims

| ||
s |T/Provider Relations

s |TIProvider Relations

« IT/Provider Relations

s IT/Provider Relations

s Tony T/Lonny
|

— — | T|Finance

i IT/Finance

p 29

. e 1T/Finance
= . | TIFinance
I 1
IT/Flex
I 1
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem Task Manual Task PN Frogrese
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary === Manual Summary [——="""""""" Manual Progress
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Notes 9,14  |Dec14,14  |Jan18,15  |Feb22,115  |[Mar29,15  |May3,'15  |lun7,15 | ul 12,115 Aug16,'15 |Sep
wltlelslsimlrtlwlrtlelslslimlrlwlrlels|s|[ml|lT]
[ESSEEE————————— ) /|5
% IT/Flex
Volume = 148 members? o IT/Flex
| |
7 IT/Flex
| ||
Redacted Standard Claim Extract file IT/Flex
need claims ———— |TIFlex
e [T/FlEX
q IT/Flex
End date is TBD (based on CMS)
End date is TBD (based on CMS)
End date is TBD (based on CMS)
| ||
| L]
1 IT/IFlex
71 IT/Flex
I |}
I 1
(not day-1 requirement; requires 3+ I 1
[hk '\ T‘;»
3 ConTractingIPR
i Con}ractingIPR
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task Manual Task [ Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary === Manual Summary [=============={  Manual Progress
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Aug16,'15  |Sep

Jan18 15  |Feb22,15  |Mar29,'15  |[May3,15  |wun7,'15 | ul 12, 15
s [ m | 1]

s IimlTtlwltlelslslimlrtlwltlels
= — — — , ConFractinglPR

Notes 9,'14 | Dec 14, '14
wltl|Frls|

1
== Contracting/PR

NDPERS to faclitiate receipt of electronic === NDPERS

1
i Contracting/PR

I Contracting/PR
——————————— Con]faCtiHQ/PR

——————= Confracting/PR
s Contracting/PR

SHP to inventory returned contracts and

¥ ] 1

IT Meeting with Operations team
IT and Operations sign-off

CRM Pool for satellite offices. NDPERS

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task i Manual Task ISR Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary ﬁ Manual Summary ﬁ Manual Progress

P 4O
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Notes 9,14  |Dec14,14  |Jan18,15  |Feb22,15  |Mar29,'15  |May3,15  |wun7,15 [ul 12,115 Aug16,°15  |Sep| Q)
wltlrelslsimlrtlwlrtlrlslsimlrtlwlrtlelslslImlrt]
|
| 1
g SHP/NDPERS
Incumbant Carrier to send electronic e————————————=s=====s5 SHP/NDPERS
Update again on 7/1/15 R, Dr. Crandell
Incumbant Carrier to send electronic e s e res. SHP
|| |}
e SHP
o B .
Initial disruption complete with data to be
Incumbant Carrier to send electronic SHP
———— SHP
SHP
Requires 90 day notice. Soonest 8/1/15; 1 SHP
B ST
|
SHPI/ESI
First meeting on 3/9; plan will be f===== SHP/ESI
Eligibility file to be sent to ESI according to ilT
e T
B ——————— ] Lo S
Ongoing as part of esi implementation plan e e e e
Ongoing as part of esi implementation plan
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem Task N Manual Task I Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary =—===]  Manual Summary [™=============={  Manual Progress
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Notes

9,'14
W

T

Jan18 15  |Feb22,'15  |Mar29,15  |[May3,15  |un7,'15 [ul 12,15 Aug 16, '15

| Dec 14, 14
s Iml Tt lwl Tl elslsimltlwlrtlelsls]|m

Fl s

|Sep
T ]

Ongoing as part of esi implementation plan

Ongoing as part of esi implementation plan

B S
S b= P

2 h (B s
. e pait

Pools, InBaskets, Classifiers/Components

Waiting on BCBS

Members neéd to Ha\ﬁeiﬁﬁeﬁandg 30

B B D R

I 1
s Barb Vandonslear

== Barb Vandonslear

« Barb Vandonslear

nslear

========= Barb Vandonslear

Barb Vandonslear

Barb Vandonslear

b Vandonslear

Barh Vandonslear

Barh) Vandonslear,Rebecca
Barb Vandonslear

Barb Vandonslear,IT

Barb Vandonslear
= Barb Vandonslear

~ Barb Vandonslear
——SSSSSRRRRR,. Barb Vandonslear

: Barb Vandonslear

] |}
e e Kathy

— Jan/Kyle/Trixy

e,Pat

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task
Date: Tue 7/14/15

Summary

Manual Task I Progress
1 Manual Summary 1 Manual Progress
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Notes 9,14  |Dec14,'14  |Jan18 15  [Feb22,'15  |Mar29,15  |May3,15  |jun7,'15 |l 12,15 Aug 16,15 [Sep| ()
wltlelslsimlrlwlrtlelslsimlrtlwlrtlelsls|ImlT]
I
Diane

Ronnette/New Hire

i Kathy,Deb,Rebecca,Brian
s SHP/NDPERS

—
——
————————
Requires 60 days prior notice e SHP
| Rebe N ] I
Timelines dependent on receiving —_—_—————  SHP/NDPERS
e e e SHP
SHP
SHP
SHP
e SHP
SHP

B L L1

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task ISSes Manual Task WA P
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary -1 Manual Summary [——"==""""1 Manual Progress
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Notes 9,14  |Dec14,14  |san18 15  |Feb22,'15  [Mar29,15  |May3,'15  [un7,'15 [l 12,15 Aug16,'15 |sep
wltlrelslsimlrlwlrlels|slimltlwlrlels|ls[m]|r
i
SHP
et SHP
e SHP
e
. SHPINDPERS
SHP to receive list from NDPERS
i SHP/NDPERS
=== SHP
SHP
== SHP/NDPER
Ongoing SHP/NDPER
] L|
e SHP
Get spec of files, identify FTP site, identify e e SHP
e SHP
B 1 | o
e ——————————————— — | SHP
Club keeps e SHF
BCBS conducted this in the fall
— — o— = =
el i S W s 2 G R
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task S Manual Task I Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary p=——=={  Manual Summary ===  Manual Progress
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Notes 9,14  |Dec14,14  |Jan18 15  |Feb22,'15  |Mar29,15  |May3,'15  [Jun7,'15 | Jul 12,115 Aug16,15  |Sep
wltlelslsimlrlwlrtlelslsimlrlwlrtlels|ls|mlrT
T R YT g e o R f‘ii 1
A A R e Gt e !
i
i
K
b
ws== Dr. Crandell
) Tammy G
B SHP
1 SHP
« Barb Vandonslear
| 1
e "’i' ok | 1
B - o : ] 1
Office space secured i Kurt BlJeff S
Available space comes furnished and = Mike E
Network Timeline: 3 weeks... Todd M
45 day lead to order and install ——————= Todd M
4-6 weeks for furniture order... — Justin S
45 day lead to order
45 day lead to order
3-4 week order timeline...
Office space yet to be secured.
Dependent on details of office space yet to
Network Timeline: 3 weeks...
45 day lead to order and install
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task i | Manual Task IS  Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary f=———-=1 Manual Summary [==========={  Manual Progress
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Notes 9,14  |Dec14,14  [jan18 15 [Feb22,15  |Mar29,15  |May3,15 wun7,15 (w1215 |Aug16,15  [sep
wltlelslsimlrlwlrlels|[slimltlwlrlels|ls[mler
4-6 weeks for furniture order... ——————— Justin S {
45 day lead to order s Todd M 3
45 day lead to order s, Todd M ‘
3-4 week order timeline... . Todd M ’
[r— :'
Additional office space secured:... i Jason H ?
Network Timeline: 3 weeks... ——— WyattY }
45 day lead to order and install? — Wyatt Y |
4 weeks for furniture order... e Justin S ‘
45 day lead to order s Wyatt Y i
45 day lead to order e———S WyattY [
!
! |
| HR |
i HR t
i HR :
M 1
= HR %
= HR !
# HR |
= HR \
- .
= HR :
= HR
= HR ?
= HR ’
= HR E
| a
== HR 1
g HR
s HR ‘
' |
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task S Manual Task Bt Ml Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary [  Manual Summary [  Manual Progress
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Notes 9,14  |Dec14,'14  [Jan18 15  |Feb22,'15  |Mar29,'15  |May3,15  |wun7,115 | Jul 12,115 Aug16,°15  |Sep
wltlelslsimlrtlwlrtlelslslimlrlwlrlelsls|[mlT]
i HR
Date TBD i HR
(i.e., Concordia, Jamestown College,
(]
HR
i HR
i HR
I 1
eSS Chris RI/Kyle F
———RRRRSSs. Chris R/IKyle F
————————— KYle| F
r 1
—_— KyleF
s e KYl€ F
7 R LR r 1
o S Debbie H
e e . CeeCly Tucker
Stacey D
s e e ——————— Sarah D
=== SarahD
f'lr i il P o 7",. i y !
e ———
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task I Manual Task I Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary =——========1  Manual Summary [============]  Manual Progress
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Notes

9, '14

W
Create monthly premium billings and group

| Dec 14, '14

Jan18,'15  |Feb22,'15  |Mar29,'15  |May3, 15
T |l Fls

s Iml Tt lwlTtlels]|s

| Jun7,'15 | Jul 12,115

Review by June or July

ImM Tt lwltlelsls|m

| |1 |

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task iz Manual Task e Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary ﬁ Manual Summary ﬁ Manual Progress
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20,15 |oct2515  |Nov29,15  |Jan3,'16 |Feb 7,16 ‘Mar13,‘16 |Apr17,16  |[May22,16  |wun2616  [Jui31,16  |sep4, 16 Oct 9, '16 | Nov
wltlelslsimlrtlwlrlels|slImlrlwlrtlels|s{mlrlwlrtlelslslImlrt

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task AN Manual Task NENENNEN  Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary ﬁ Manual Summary ﬁ Manual Progress
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un26,16  |Jul31,16  |Sep4,'16 Oct 9, '16 | Nov

20,'15 | Oct 25,15 Nov29,'15  |Jan3,'16 |Feb 7,16 Mar13,'16  |Apr17,16  |May22,'16
s I mltlwltlelslsImlrt

wlTtlrelslsimltlwltlrelslsImlrtlwlt!|lels

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem Task Manual Tass I Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary === Manual Summary [=———=========== Manual Progress
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2015 |oct2515  |Nov29,15  |Jan3,116 |Feb 7,16 ‘Mar13, 16 |Apr17,16  |May22,16  |Jun26,16  |wi31,16  |Sep4,'16 ’Oct9, 16 | Nov
wltlerlslsimltiwlrtlelslsimlrlwlrlelsls mltlwlrlelslslImlr

ST

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | ~ Task s Manual Task 1 Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary p========1  Manual Summary Manual Progress
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Jun26,16  |Jul31,16  |Sep4,'16 Oct 9, '16 | Nov

20,'15 | Oct 25,15 Nov29,'15  |Jan3,'16 |Feb 7,16 Mar13,'16  |Apr17,'16  |May22,'16
s I Iml 1T lwltlelslslimler

wltlrerlslslimlrtlwltlelsl]sim|lrlwltlels

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task Manual Task IR Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary ===  Manual Summary [=============={  Manual Progress
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20,15 | Oct25,'15 ‘Nov29, 15 |Jan3,'16 |Feb 7,16 Mar13,'16  |Apr17,16  |May22,16 |wn2616  |Jui31,16  |sep4, 116 Oct 9, '16 | Nov]
wltlelslsimlrlwlrtlelslslimlrlwlrtlelsls{mlrtlwlrtlels|slImlert
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task I Manual Task ISR Progress

Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary p=—=======1 Manual Summary [============{  Manual Progress
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20,15 | Oct 25,15 Nov29,'15  |Jan3,'16 |Feb 7,16 Mar13,'16  |Apr17,'16  |May22,16 |Jun26,'16  [JuI31,'16  |Sep4,'16 Oct9,'16 | Nov )
wltlrerlslsimlrliwlrtlelslsimlrlwlrlelsls{mlrtlwlrlels|slImlrT
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task Manual Task IR Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary p=——=====1 Manual Summary [™========{  Manual Progress
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\
20,15 |Oct25,15  |Nov29,15  |an3,'16 |Feb 7,16 ‘MarlS,'lG |Apr17,'16  |May22,16  |wun26,16  |ul31,'16  [sep4,'16 Oct9,'16 | Nov
wltlelsls|m riwltlrlslsimlriwlrlelslsimlrlwlrlelslslimlr |
¢ IT/Flex
CITIFIex
| IT/IFlex
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task 5 T Manual Task IR  Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary === Manual Summary ===  Manual Progress
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20,15 |oct25,°15  |Nov29,'15  [san3,16  [Feb7,'16 Mar13,16 |Apr17,16  |May22,'16 [wn2616  [iui31,16  [Seps, 16 [Oct9,'16  |Nov
wltlelslsimlrlwlrlels|sImlrtlwlrtlels|s[mltlwlrtl[rls|sImlrt
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | Task LA Manual Task P Progress

Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary p=========] Manual Summary ™"  Manual Progress

Page 40




< @ I,
20,15 |Oct 25,15 ‘Nov29,‘15 |Jan 3,16 |Feb 7,16 Mar13,'16  |Apr17,'16  |May22,'16 |un26'16  |Jul31,'16  |Sep4,'16 ‘Oct9, 16 lNon
wltlelslsimlrliwlrtlelslsimlrlwlrlelslsimlrtlwlrtlelsls|Imlert
I1 Dr. Crandell
]
SR L B Rh AR SHP/ES
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task W Manual Task NN Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary === Manual Summary ===  Manual Progress
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20,15 | Oct 25,15 Nov29,'15  |Jan3,'16 |Feb 7,16 Mar13,'16  |Apr17,'16  |May22,16 |Jun26,16  |Jui31,'16  |Sep4,'16 Oct 9, '16 INon'__
wlTtlelslsimlrtlwlrtlelslsIimlrlwlt|lelsls{mltlwltlelsls|lmlert
T O T i ek SHP/ES!
e T OSeEaEy  SHP/ES!
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | T2ask Manual Task W Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary f========1 Manual Summary [™======1  Manual Progress
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2015 |oct25,15  |Nov29,15  |Jan3,'16 |Feb 7,16 ’Mar13,'16 |Apri17,'16  |May22,'16  |wn26,16  |Jul31,'16  [seps, 16 ‘OctQ,'lG INov| )
wlTtlerlslsimlrtiwltlels|simlrlwlrtlels|s{mlrlwlrtlels|slImlTrt

i SHP

| SHP

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem Task I, Manual Task W Progress

Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary 1 Manual Summary [==""""""" Manual Progress
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RS

Lisa C

20,15 |Oct2515  |Nov29,'15  |Jan3,'16 |Feb 7,16 Mar13,'16  |Apr17,'16  |May22,'16 |jun26'16  |Jul31,16  |Sep4,'16 Oct9,'16 | Nov
wltlelslsimlriwlrtlelslsImlrlwlrtlels|s{mlrlwlrtlrlsl|lslImleT
1
i SHP
4 SHP/NDPERS

LisaC
Project: ND Public Employees Retirem | T3Sk S Manual Task N Progress
Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary [——— Manual Summary [ Manual Progress
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20,15  |oct2515  |Nov29,15  |Jan3,'16 |Feb 7,16 ‘Mar13,'16 |Apr17,'16  |May22,16  |wn26,16  |Jul31,'16  [sep4, 116 ‘Oct9,'16 | Nov
wltlerlslsimlrlwlrtlelslsimlrliwlrlels|ls{mlrlwlrlels|s|Imler

Project: ND Public Employees Retirem| Task I Manual Task RN Progress

Date: Tue 7/14/15 Summary p======={  Manual Summary [=============]  Manual Progress
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20,'15 | Oct 25,15 Nov29,'15  |Jan3, '16 |Feb 7,16 Mar13,'16  |Apr17,'16  |May22,'16 |un26'16  |Jul31, 16 | Sep 4,16 Oct 9,16 [ Nov]
wltlelslsimlrtiwlrtlelslsimlrtlwlrtlelslsimltlwltlelslslImlrT
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Industry, Business, and Labor Committee Hearing
Rep. George J. Keiser, Chairman
March 14, 2017

Chairman Keiser, members of the IB&L Committee, I am Lisa Carlson, Senior Director of
Market Strategy at Sanford Health Plan. I appear before you to oppose HB 1436 as we believe it
amounts to an unconstitutional impairment of an existing contract.

Sanford Health Plan takes a neutral position on whether or not the state wants to self-insure. In
fact, as a carrier operating in four states, its commonplace for states to self-insure their public
employee plans. Sanford Health Plan provided both a fully-insured and a self-insured proposal
to the North Dakota PERS in the 2015 bidding cycle. Consequently, Sanford Health Plan would
gladly bid on a self-insured PERS’ request for proposal - but only after the expiration of our
current contract.

After meeting prescribed performance guarantees and satisfaction standards, Sanford Health
Plan completed its initial two-year term of the contract. As stated in the contract,
renegotiations began in August 2016 and concluded in September 2016, and Sanford Health
Plan and the PERS Board have already agreed to renew the contract for a second, two-year term
beginning July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2019. Likewise, Sanford Health Plan and the PERS Board
have another option to renew the contract that would take effect July 1, 2019, through June 30,
2021.

If this bill is passed in its current form, Sanford Health Plan believes Section 5 of the bill will
unconstitutionally impair Sanford Health Plan’s existing contract with PERS. However, we
would understand, and would actively participate in, a self-insured request for proposal for the
2021 biennium - if the state so chooses.

Thank you for your time and consideration.
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Proposed Amendment to HB1436

Page 6-Line 17-23
Section 54-52.1-04.3 Self-Insurance-Contingency Reserve Fund-Continuing appropriation Bank of North

Dakota line of Credit

3. The Bank of North Dakota shall extend to the board a line of credit not to exceed fifty million dollars

at an annual rate nette-exceed-oneand-three—guarterspereent of one point five percent over the

three month libor rate. The board shall repay the line of credit from health insurance premium revenue

or from other funds, as appropriated by the legislative assembly. The board may access the line of

credit, as necessary, to provide adequate reserve funds, to purchase stop — loss coverage, and to defray

other expenditures of administration of the self — insurance plan.
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Amendment to House Bill 1436

The Bank of North Dakota shall extend to the board a line of credit not to exceed fifty million dollars at
an annual rate not to exceed three percent for a two year term or four percent for a five year term. The
board shall repay the line of credit from health insurance premium revenue or from other funds, as
appropriated by the legislative assembly. The board may access the line of credit, as necessary, to
provide adequate reserve funds, to purchase stop-loss coverage, and to defray other expenditures of
administration of the self-insurance plan.
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CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

THIS CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into
as of November 13, 2015, by and between EXPRESS SCRIPTS, INC., a Delaware corporation
(“ESI”), and the State of North Dakota acting through its Public Employees Retirement System
(“Company”).

RECITALS

A. ESI, either directly or through its subsidiaries, engages in a variety of health care
businesses, including, among other things, pharmacy benefit management, disease and demand
management, specialty pharmaceutical distribution, administration of patient assistance
programs for the distribution of pharmaceutical products, and medical information
management.

B. The parties are interested in discussing a potential business relationship (the “Potential
Relationship”).
= In connection with the foregoing, it is necessary for the parties to provide each other

with certain Confidential Information (as defined below).

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties
hereto agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
i Definitions.
a. Confidential Information. As used in this Agreement, the term

“Confidential Information” shall mean all information communicated by the Provider to
the Recipient (each as defined in Section 1.b. below) relating to either party’s services,
operations, systems, programs, inventions, techniques, suppliers, customers and
prospective customers, contractors, cost and pricing data, trade secrets, know-how,
processes, plans, designs and any other information of or relating to either party’s
business, including its therapeutic and disecase management programs that has been
previously identified as Confidential Information by a party to this Agreement and
constitutes Confidential Information under a specific exception to the North Dakota
public records law as determined by Company in its sole discretion or is otherwise
protected as Confidential Information under federal Jaw; provided, however, that the
term "Confidential Information" shall not include information which (i) is or becomes
generally available to the public other than as a result of a disclosure by the Recipient or
any of its Representatives (as defined below) in violation of this Agreement, (ii) was
within the Recipient's possession or knowledge prior to its being furnished to the
Recipient pursuant to this Agreement, provided that the source of such information was
not known by the Recipient to be bound by a confidentiality agreement with or similar
obligation to the Provider with respect to such information, (iii) becomes available to the
Recipient on a non-confidential basis from a source other than the Provider, provided
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that, to the Recipient's knowledge, such source is not bound by a confidentiality
agreement with or similar obligation to the Provider with respect to such information,
(iv) is independently developed by the Recipient under circumstances not involving a
breach of this Agreement by Recipient (v) or is public information under either federal
or North Dakota public records law.

b. Provider and Recipient. Each of ESI, Company, and their respective
affiliates and subsidiaries, shall, (i) in its capacity as the party disclosing or providing
Confidential Information, be referred to as a “Provider;” and (ii) in its capacity as the
party receiving Confidential Information, be referred to as a “Recipient.”

¢, Representatives. As used in this Agreement, the term “Representatives”
shall mean, with respect to any party, such party’s directors, officers, employees, agents,
counsel, consultants or other representatives,

2, Proprietary Nature and Use of Confidential Information. FEach Recipient
acknowledges the confidential and proprietary nature of the Confidential Information of a
Provider which is disclosed to a Recipient. The Recipient agrees that the Confidential
Information of a Provider which is disclosed to the Recipient will be held by the Recipient in
strictest confidence at all times and will only be used by the Recipient and its Representatives
for the sole purpose of evaluating the Potential Relationship. The Confidential Information of
the Provider will not be disclosed or divulged by the Recipient to anyone except as otherwise
permitted by this Agreement.

3 Disclosure_and Confidentiality of Confidential Information. Each Recipient
agrees that without the express written consent of the Provider, the Recipient will not, at any
time, (a) divulge, furnish, disclose or make accessible to any person, firm, organization or
corporation, in any manner whatsoever, any Confidential Information, or (b) use any
Confidential Information for the Recipient’s own benefit or for the benefit of any third party.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Recipient may disclose Confidential Information to those of its
Representatives who are directly involved in the evaluation of the Potential Relationship;
provided that each such Representative is required to protect and otherwise not disclose or use
the Confidential Information except as provided in this Agreement, and is advised of the
confidential nature of the Confidential Information and agrees to be bound by the provisions of
this Agreement.

In the event that the Recipient or any of its Representatives are requested or required by
any court of competent jurisdiction, government or governmental agency or authority or
otherwise required under applicable law to disclose any of the Confidential Information, the
Recipient will notify the Provider promptly in writing so that Provider may seek a protective
order or other appropriate remedy or, in its sole discretion, waive compliance with the terms of
this Agreement. The Recipient agrees not to oppose any action by the Provider to obtain a
protective order or other appropriate remedy. In the event that no such protective order or
other remedy is obtained, or that the Provider waives compliance with the terms of this
Agreement, the Recipient will furnish only that portion of the Confidential Information which it
is advised by counsel is legally required and will exercise its reasonable best efforts to obtain
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reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the Confidential Information
disclosed.

4, Reports Generated from Confidential Information. Any reports or other
documents, in whatever form or medium, which result from the mutual efforts of the parties
hereto in connection with the discussions contemplated by this Agreement, shall be governed
by the same terms and conditions of this Agreement respecting confidentiality and use as is the
Confidential Information itself.

g, Ownership and Return of Information. All Confidential Information of a
Provider hereunder shall be and remain the property of such Provider. A Recipient shall not
obtain any rights in or to any Cenfidential Information disclosed to such Recipient as a result of
such disclosure. In the event either party elects not to proceed with the Potential Relationship,
or upon the written request of the Provider, the Recipient shall destroy or return promptly to
the Provider, without retaining any copies, all Confidential Information received under this
Agreement, unless such retention is required under applicable law. Upon the Provider’s
request, each requested Recipient or Representative shall certify to the Provider that all
Confidential Information has been destroyed or returned to the Provider. Notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, one copy of all Confidential Information may be retained by
counsel for the Recipient for evidentiary purposes or as required by applicable law and the
terms of this Agreement shall continue to apply to any Confidential Information so retained.

6. Restrictions under Securities Laws. Each Recipient acknowledges that it is
aware, and will advise any Representatives who are informed as to the matters which are the
subject of this Agreement, that federal and state securities laws may prohibit any person who
has received from an issuer of securities material, non-public information concerning such
issuer or the matters which are the subject of this Agreement from purchasing or selling
securities of such issuer or from communicating such information to any other person under
circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such person is likely to purchasc or sell
such securities.

#s Non-Binding Nature of Discussions. The parties hereto agree that this
Agreement is not intended to, and does not, obligate either party, or any other party, to enter
into further agreements or to proceed with any potential relationship or transaction. The
parties hereto agree that unless and until a definitive agreement with respect to the Potential
Relationship has been executed and delivered, neither of the parties will be under any legal
obligation of any kind whatsoever with respect to such a relationship by virtue of this or any
written or oral expression with respect to such a relationship by any of their respective
Representatives except, in the case of this Agreement, for the matters specifically agreed to
herein. The parties further acknowledge and agree that, prior to the execution of this
Agreement and prior to any of the discussions described herein, each of the parties has
discussed, developed and/or implemented other business relationships similar to the Potential
Relationship, and that this Agreement shall not restrict either party from continuing to discuss,
develop and/or implement arrangements similar to the Potential Relationship with other
parties provided that neither party discloses Confidential Information received from the other

party.
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8. Remedies. Each Recipient acknowledges that the Confidential Information to be
received in the course of the discussions referred to herein is of such character as to render the
same unique and therefore agrees that disclosure or use thereof, or the failure to return
Confidential Information upon request, in violation of any of the terms of this Agreement, may
cause irreparable damage to the Provider and be in violation of applicable law. The parties
agree that the Provider’s remedies for any breach of this Agreement by the Recipient shall be
cumulative, and the seeking or obtainment of injunctive relief and/or specific performance shall
not preclude a claim or award for damages or other relief.

9. Complete Agreement. This Agreement contains the complete understanding
between ESI and Company with respect to the treatment of Confidential Information as defined
herein and may not be varied or terminated otherwise than in accordance with its terms, except
by written agreement by the parties.

10. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in
accordance with, the internal laws of the State of North Dakota, without regard to the rules of
conflict of laws thereof.

11. Non-Assignability. Neither party shall assign its rights under this Agreement
without the prior written consent of the other party.

12. Waiver. Failure by either party to insist upon strict compliance with any of the
terms, covenants or conditions hereof shall not be deemed a waiver of such terms, covenants or
conditions, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any right or power hereunder at any one
time or more times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of such right or power at any other
time or times,

13 Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are divisible; if any such
provision shall be deemed invalid or unenforceable, as to any periods of time, territory, or
business activities, such provision shall be deemed limited to the extent necessary to render it
valid and enforceable.

14, Counterparts, This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterpart
copies, cach of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall together be deemed to
constitute one agreement. Facsimile execution and delivery of this Agreement is legal, valid
and binding execution and delivery for all purposes.

15, Term of Agreement. This Agreement will commence on the date all parties
signatures are obtained and continue until either the effective date of any agreement between
the parties superseding this Agreement and formalizing the Potential Relationship between the
parties or until either party elects not to proceed with the Potential Relationship and provides
written notice to the other party terminating this Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their
duly-authorized representatives as of the day and year first above written.

EXPRESS SCRIPTS, INC.

Steven Webp

Name: -
mercial Division

Title:

13568002

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA ACTING

THROUGH ITS PUBLIC EMPLOYEES
RETIREMENT SYSTEM

ff(‘/”
Byéj (bt

Mﬁe: Sparb Collins

_ Executive Director
Title:




Business Associate Agreement
(Revised 10-2013)

This Business Associate Agreement, which is an addendum to the underlying contract,
is entered into by and between, the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System
("NDPERS") and Express Scripts, Inc. (“ESI"), a Delaware corporation.

1. Definitions

a. Terms used, but not otherwise defined, in this Agreement have
the same meaning as those terms in the HIPAA Privacy Rule, 45
C.F.R. Part 160 and Part 164, Subparts A and E, and the HIPAA
Security rule, 45 C.F.R., pt. 164, subpart C.

b. Business Associate. “Business Associate” means ESI

c. Covered Entity. “Covered Entity” means the North Dakota Public
Employees Retirement System Health Plans.

d. PHI! and ePHI. "PHI" means Protected Health Information; "ePHI"
means Electronic Protected Health information.

2. Obligations of Business Associate.

2.1. The Business Associate agrees:

a.

b.

To use or disclose PHI and ePHI! only as permitted or required by this Agreement
or as Required by Law.

To use appropriate safeguards and security measures to prevent use or
disclosure of the PHI and ePHI other than as provided for by this Agreement, and
to comply with all security requirements of the HIPAA Security rule.

To implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably
and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of ePHI that
it creates, receives, maintains or transmits on behalf of the Covered Entity as
required by the HIPAA Security rule.

To mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to
Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI or ePHI by Business Associate
in violation of the requirements of this Agreement.

To report to Covered Entity (1) any use or disclosure of the PHI not provided for
by this Agreement, including any Breach of Unsecured PHI, as defined in 45
CFR 164.402, and (2) any “security incident” as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 164.304
involving ePHI, of which it becomes aware without unreasonable delay and in
any case within thirty (30) days from the date after discovery and provide the
Covered Entity with a written notification that complies with 45 C.F.R. § 164.410
which shall include the following information:

i. to the extent possible, the identification of each individual whose
Unsecured Protected Health Information has been, or is reasonably
believed by the Business Associate to have been, accessed, acquired
or disclosed during the Breach;

ii.  a brief description of what happened,;

ii.  the date of discovery of the Breach and date of the Breach;
iv.  the nature of the Protected Health Information that was involved;
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v. identify of any person who received the non-permitted Protected
Health Information;

vi.  any steps individuals should take to protect themselves from potential
harm resuiting from the Breach;

vii. a brief description of what the Business Associate is doing to
investigate the breach, to mitigate harm to individuals, and to protect
against any further breaches; and

vii.  any other available information that the Covered Entity is required to
include in notification to an individual under 45 C.F.R. § 164.404(c) at
the time of the notification to the State required by this subsection or
promptly thereafter as information becomes available.

f.  With respect to any use or disclosure of Unsecured Protected Health Information
not permitted by the Privacy Rule that is caused by the Business Associate's
failure to comply with one or more of its obligations under this Agreement, the
Business Associate agrees to reimburse Covered Entity for its costs associated
with providing Breach notifications under the HIPAA Rules and any other
applicable security breach notification laws;

g. Ensure that any agent or subcontractor that creates, receives, maintains, or
transmits electronic PHI on behalf of the Business Associate agree in writing to
comply with at least the same restrictions and conditions that apply through this
Agreement to the Business Associate.

h. To make available to the Secretary of Health and Human Services the Business
Associate’s internal practices, books, and records, including policies and
procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI and ePHI received from, or
created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, for the
purpose of determining the Covered Entity’s compliance with the HIPAA Prlvacy
Rule, subject to any applicable legal privileges.

i. To document the disclosure of PHI related to any disclosure of PHI as would be
required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an Individual for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.528.

j.  To provide to Covered Entity within 15 days of a written notice from Covered
Entity, information necessary to permit the Covered Entity to respond to a
request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance
with 45 C.F.R. § 164.528.

k. To provide, within 10 days of receiving a written request, information necessary
for the Covered Entity to respond to an Individual’s request for access to PHI
about himself or herself, in the event that PHI in the Business Associate’s
possession constitutes a Designated Record Set.

I.  Make amendments(s) to PHI in a designated record set as directed or agreed by
the Covered Entity pursuant to 45 C.F.R. § 164.526 or take other measures as
necessary to satisfy the covered entity’s obligations under that section of law.

3. Permitted Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate

3.1. General Use and Disclosure Provisions

Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may Use or Disclose
PHI and ePHI to perform functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf of, Covered
Entity, specifically, confidential information for health care operations, provided that such
use or disclosure would not violate the Privacy Rule or the Security Rule if done by
Covered Entity or the minimum necessary policies and procedures of the Business
Associate which shall at all times comply with applicable HIPAA regulations.

2
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3.2. Specific Use and Disclosure Provisions

Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use PHI and
ePHI:

a. Forthe proper management and administration of the Business Associate,
provided that disclosures are Required By Law, or Business Associate obtains
reasonable assurances from the person to whom the information is disclosed that
it will remain confidential and used or further disclosed only as Required By Law
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the person, and the person
notifies the Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the
confidentiality of the information has been breached.

b. To provide Data Aggregation services to Covered Entity as permitted by 45
C.F.R. § 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B).

c. To report violations of law to appropriate Federal and State authorities,
consistent with 45 C.F.R. §§ 164.304 and 164.502(j)(1).

4. Obligations of Covered Entity

4.1, Provisions for Covered Entity to Inform Business Associate of Privacy Practices and
Restrictions

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of:

a. Any limitation(s) in its notice of privacy practices of Covered Entity in accordance
with 45 C.F.R. § 164.520, to the extent that any such limitation may affect
Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Any changes in, or revocation of, permission by an Individual to use or disclose
PHI, to the extent that any such changes may affect Business Associate's use or
disclosure of PHI.

c. Any restriction to the use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to
in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.522, to the extent that any such restriction
may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

4.2. Additional Obligations of Covered Entity. Covered Entity agrees that it:

a. Has included, and will include, in the Covered Entity’s Notice of Privacy
Practices required by the Privacy Rule that the Covered Entity may disclose PHI
for Health Care Operations purposes.

b. Has obtained, and will obtain, from Individuals any consents, authorizations
and other permissions necessary or required by laws applicable to the Covered
Entity for Business Associate and the Covered Entity to fulfill their obligations
under the Underlying Agreement and this Agreement.

c. Will promptly notify Business Associate in writing of any restrictions on the Use
and Disclosure of PHI about Individuals that the Covered Entity has agreed to
that may affect Business Associate’s ability to perform its obligations under the
Underlying Agreement or this Agreement.

3
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d. Will promptly notify Business Associate in writing of any change in, or revocation
of, permission by an Individual to Use or Disclose PHI, if the change or
revocation may affect Business Associate’s ability to perform its obligations
under the Underlying Agreement or this Agreement.

4.2 Permissible Requests by Covered Entity

Covered Entity may not request Business Associate to use or disclose PHI in any
manner that would not be permissible under the Privacy Rule or the Security Rule if
done by Covered Entity, except that the Business Associate may use or disclose PHI
and ePHI for management and administrative activities of Business Associate.

5. Term and Termination

a. Term. The Term of this Agreement shall be effective as of November 13, 2015,
and shall terminate when all of the PHI and ePHI provided by Covered Entity to
Business Associate, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of
Covered Entity, is destroyed or returned to Covered Entity, or, if it is infeasible to
return or destroy PHI and ePHI, protections are extended to any such
information, in accordance with the termination provisions in this Section.

b. Automatic Termination. This Agreement will automatically terminate upon the

termination or expiration of the Underlying Agreement.
c. Termination for Cause. Upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a material breach by

Business Associate, Covered Entity shall either:

1.

3.

Provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the breach or end
the violation and terminate this Agreement and the Underlying Agreement
if Business Associate does not cure the breach or end the violation within
the time specified by Covered Entity;

Immediately terminate this Agreement and the Underlying Agreement if
Business Associate has breached a material term of this Agreement and
cure is not possible; or

If neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

d. Effect of Termination.

SLC-7757546-2

1.

Except as provided in paragraph (2) of this subsection, upon termination
of this Agreement, for any reason, Business Associate shall return or
destroy all PHI received from Covered Entity, or created or received by
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity. This provision shall
apply to PHI and ePHI that is in the possession of subcontractors or
agents of Business Associate. Business Associate shall retain no copies
of the PHI or ePHI.

In the event that Business Associate determines that returning or
destroying the PHI or ePHl is not feasible, Business Associate shall
provide to Covered Entity notification of the conditions that make return or
destruction infeasible and shall extend the protections of this Agreement
to that PHI and ePHI and limit further uses and disclosures of any such
PHI and ePHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction
infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains that PHI or ePHI.



6. Miscellaneous

a. Regulatory References. A reference in this Agreement to a section in the HIPAA
Privacy or Security Rule means the section as in effect or as amended.

b. Amendment. The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this
Agreement from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with
the requirements of the Privacy Rule, the Security Rule, and the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104-191.

c. Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under
Section 5.c, related to “Effect of Termination,” of this Agreement shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

d. [Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with the Privacy and Security Rules.

e. No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing express or implied in this Agreement is
intended to confer, nor shall anything this Agreement confer, upon any person
other than the parties and their respective successors or assigns, any rights,
remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever.

f. Applicable Law and Venue. This Business Associate Agreement is governed by
and construed in accordance with the governing law provision of the Medicare
part D Employer/Union-Only Sponsored Group Waiver Plan Prescription Drug
Services Agreement between Covered Entity and Business Associate.

g. Business Associate agrees to comply with all the requirements imposed on a
business associate under Title Xlll of the American Recovery and Reinvestment
Act of 2009, the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
(HI-TECH) Act, and, at the request of NDPERS, to agree to any reasonable
modification of this agreement required to conform the agreement to any Model
Business Associate Agreement published by the Department of Health and
Human Services.

7. Entire Agreement

This Agreement contains all of the agreements and understandings between the parties
with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. No agreement or other
understanding in any way modifying the terms of this Agreement will be binding unless
made in writing as a modification or amendment to this Agreement and executed by both

parties.
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IN WITNESS OF THIS, NDPERS [CE] and ESI [BA] agree to and intend to be legally
bound by all terms and conditions set forth above and hereby execute this Agreement as

of the effective date set forth above.

For Covered Entity: For Business Associate:

g *-—F-_
Spggi} ( 2,5%4?1 ?ML{L’&/-
Sparb Collins, Executive Direcfor Signature

ND Public Employees Retirement System
oold - Tox

Printed Name

Treadent, keoln Plon Dividom

Title
9\// / /e z(<lte
Date Date
6
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192-2017-01

ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT FOR MEDICARE PART D EMPLOYER-ONLY
SPONSORED GROUP WAIVER PLAN
PRESCRIPTION DRUG SERVICES
BETWEEN
NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
AND
MEDCO CONTAINMENT LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

This Addendum is made and entered into this 17" day of November 2016, by and between the
State of North Dakota, acting through its North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System
(Client) and Medco Containment Life Insurance Company (MCLIC). This agreement is an
Addendum to the Agreement for Medicare Part D Employer-Only Sponsored Group Waiver Plan
Prescription Drug Services (Agreement) between the parties executed on December 30, 2015,
and is made in accordance with Section 8.1 and Section 9.5 of the Agreement. All provisions of
the Agreement remain in full force and effect except as otherwise noted in this Addendum.

Whereas, the Section 8.1 and Section 9.5 of the Agreement executed between the parties
permit Client to renew the Agreement for the term of January 1, 2017 through December 31,
2017; and

Whereas, the Client expressed its intent to renew the Agreement by executing Document
192-2017-01 attached hereto as Exhibit A and dated September 15, 2016; now,

Therefore, the parties in consideration of the mutual agreements and undertakings set
forth in the Agreement hereby agree as follows:

1.  That the Agreement between the parties executed on December 30, 2015 shall continue
to be effective for the term of January 1, 2017 through December 30, 2017; and,

2. That in the event a conflict exists between the terms of the Agreement and the terms of
Exhibit A to this Addendum, Exhibit A shall control; and

3.  That this Addendum shall not be effective until fully executed by both parties.

MEDCO CONTAINMENT LIFE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
INSURANCE COMPANY Acting through its ND Public

,,,,,,, ~ o Employees Retlrem‘em S/;tém
By: T Ralt 5 75 By:

Title: Ronald K. Fox Title: Board Chairman

Date: _12/29/2016 Date: // /‘/ "kf’jf




Dear North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System,

192-2017-01

EXPRESS SCRIPTS®

Medco Containment Life Insurance Company and Medco Containment Insurance Company of New York {(hereinafter
referred to as "Express Scripts Medicare") is pleased to continue offering the Medicare Part D Employer Group Waiver Plan
(EGWP) for 2017 as described below.

Please check mark your intention below, sign and return to Express Scripts Medicare by 8/15/2016.

Plan Design:

_Retail Pharmacy }\i_é_twmk--

‘Retail Maintenance Drug |

- Express Scripts Home

. 3 i ~Program (MDP) Pharmacy | Delivery
Day Supply Up to 31 day Up to 90 day Up to 90 day
e | éenéﬂc-' $5 covay plus 15% $5 copay pius 15% $5 copay plus 15%
; | coinsurance coinsurance coinsurance
Preferfed'l?;fand $15 copay plus 25% $15 copay plus 25% ?15 copay plus 25%
_ : coinsurance coinsurance

cainsurance

Member |-
Pa { : 3
CoThy Non-Preferred

$25 copay plus 50%

coinsurance

$25 copay plus 50%
coinsurance

$25 copay pius 50%
coinsurance

| Specialty

1 $15 covay plus 25%

$15 copay plus 25%

$15 copay plus 25%

| coinsurance coinsurance cQinsurance
Deductible No Deductible
Coverage Gap. No Coverage Gap; Mamber Co-pays above apply.

ATrOOP)

- Member True Out of Pocket -

$4,950

i Qataétriiphlc_-cw&agg s

; | Member cost share post-TrOCP ($4,950) is the greater of 5% or §3.30 per generic or praferrad |
mulli-source drugs and the greater of 5% or $8.25 per all other brands

Generics Policy

Voluntary

“Formulary Medicare Premier Access
Non Part D D:rugs‘ Mirror current covarage within CMS guidelines |
Part B Drugs’ Not Coverad I

Utilization Manngme'nt' '

Al Approved Standard Part D

Program :
Federal Poverty Limits

tandard Federal Poverty Limit (FPL) guidelines apply

‘Some states require coverage for certam Non Part 12 and Pan B drugs Express Seripts will comply with all state requirements on your behail.



This group Medicare Part D plan has additional benefits to enhance the Medicare Part D coverage, as required by the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), Per CMS regulations, the benefit enhancements are considerad other
health benefits and require filing with and approval by the state department of insurance. Express Scripts Medicare will
offer this product in conjunction with Sanford Health Plan. The premium consists of twe distinct components that will be
outlined on your invoice as follows:

Employer Group Waiver Plan Premium - offered by [
Exprass Soripts Medicare through its contracts with the : $73.67 |
‘Centers for Medicare and Madicaid Services, |
Additional enhanced insurance - offered above ang $16.65 |
beyond the CMS defined standard benefit Premiurn el
Total Premium Per Member Per Month* (PMPM) $90.32 |

These premiums are based on group enroliment with member option to opt out and a minimum enroliment of 3,000 in the
selected plan by 1/1/2017. If minimum enroliment thresholds are not met, Express Scripts Medicare reserves the right to
adjust the premium accordingly.

*The illustrated premium is subject to change in the event of CMS guidance and rate changes.

X] | elect to offer the plan design as described to my Members effective 81/01/2017 — 12/31/2017 pursuant to my
agreement with Express Scripts Medicare.

[ 1 do not elect the above EGWP and will notify Express Scripts Medicare of my intentions in accordance to our
agreement by the timeframe required within our agreement.

Gm—n 5[//'/'%
Print Name fé"/(.é‘/ e CJgnaﬁ'e

Please be aware that if you do not complete above election and notify Express Scripts Medicare by 9/15/2018,
attempts to confirm your intentions for the 2017 plan year will be made. If we are unable to confirm intentions for the 2017
plan year, the group disenroliment process may be initiated and your retirees will be notified that they need to seek
coverage elsewhere or under alternative plans that you may offer.

ate

Sincerely,

Express Scripts, Inc.

Client Contracting Department
One Express Way

St. Louis, MO 63121

FAX: 1-800-287-0359



MEDICARE PART D
EMPLOYER/UNION-ONLY SPONSORED GROUP WAIVER PLAN
PRESCRIPTION DRUG SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS MEDICARE PART D EMPLOYER-ONLY SPONSORED GROUP WAIVER PLAN PRESCRIPTION
DRUG SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), made as of the date of execution as set forth on the signature
page (the “Execution Date”), is entered into by and between Medco Containment Life Insurance Company, a
Pennsylvania corporation ("MCLIC") (an affiliate of Express Scripts, Inc.) and NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM, on its own behalf and on behalf of the Client Group Health Plan (as defined
below) (“Client”).

RECITALS

A. MCLIC has received approval from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS") to
serve as a Prescription Drug Plan Sponsor (a “PDP Sponsor”) and to provide prescription drug coverage that meets
the requirements of, and pursuant to, the Voluntary Prescription Drug Benefit Program set forth in Part D of the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003, 42 U.S.C. §1395w-101 through 42
U.S.C. §1395w-152 (the “Act”’) and all applicable and related rules and regulations promulgated, issued or adopted
by CMS or other governmental agencies with jurisdiction over enforcement of the Act, including, but not limited to,
42 C.F.R. §423.1 through 42 C.F.R. §423.910 (with the exception of Subparts Q, R, and S), and the terms of any
PDP Sponsor contract between CMS and MCLIC (collectively, the “Medicare Drug Rules”); and

B. Pursuant to the waivers granted by CMS under 42 U.S.C. §1395w-132(b), MCLIC offers
employer/union-only sponsored group waiver plans (‘EGWPs") to employers/unions that wish to provide
prescription drug benefits to their Part D Eligible Retirees (as defined below) in accordance with the Medicare Drug
Rules; and

C. Client desires to contract with MCLIC to offer a prescription drug benefit to Client's Part D Eligible
Retirees pursuant to an EGWP (the “EGWP Benefit") (as further defined below) as part of Client's group welfare
benefit plan (the “Client Group Health Plan"); and

E! Provided that the EGWP Benefit meets the actuarial equivalence standards of the Medicare Drug
Rules, as more fully described below, MCLIC desires to offer the EGWP Benefit to Client's Part D Eligible Retirees
in accordance with the Medicare Drug Rules and pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual representations, warranties and covenants herein
contained, and pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions set forth below, MCLIC and Client hereby agree
as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

ARTICLE | - DEFINITIONS

Terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement shall have the meanings ascribed to themas set forth below, oras
defined in the Medicare Drug Rules.

“Affiliate” means, with respect to MCLIC, individually or collectively, any other individual, corporation, partnership,
limited liability company, trust, joint venture or other enterprise or entity directly or indirectly controlling (including
without limitation all directors and executive officers of such entity), controlled by or under direct or indirect common
control of or with MCLIC.

“Ancillary Supplies, Equipment, and Services” or “ASES” means ancillary supplies, equipment, and services
provided or coordinated by ESI Specialty Pharmacy in connection with ESI Specialty Pharmacy's dispensing of
Specialty Products. ASES may include all or some of the following: telephonic and/or in-person training,
nursing/clinical services, in-home infusion and related support, patient monitoring, medication pumps, tubing,
syringes, gauze pads, sharps containers, lancets, test strips, other supplies, and durable medical equipment. The
aforementioned list is illustrative only (not exhaustive) and may include other supplies, equipment, and services



based on the patient's needs, prescriber instructions, payer requirements, and/or the Specialty Product
manufacturer’'s requirements.

“Commercial Agreement” means that certain Pharmacy Benefit Management Agreement, dated January 1, 2014,
by and between Express Scripts, Inc. (‘ESI”) and Sanford Health Plan and Sanford Health Plan of Minnesota
(collectively “Sanford”), as amended from time to time (the “Commercial Agreement”). Client contracts with Sanford
to receive pharmacy benefit services for its non-EGWP members.

“Copayment” or “Copay” means that portion of the charge for each Covered Drug dispensed to an EGWP Enrollee
that is the responsibility of such EGWP Enrollee (e.g., copayment, coinsurance, cost sharing, and/or deductibles
under initial coverage limits and up to annual out-of-pocket thresholds) as provided under the EGWP Benefit and
shown on Exhibit A.

“Coverage Gap” means the stage of the benefit between the initial coverage limit and the catastrophic coverage
threshold, as described in the Medicare Part D prescription drug program administered by the United States federal
government.

“Coverage Gap Discount” means the manufacturer discounts available to eligible Medicare beneficiaries receiving
applicable, covered Medicare Part D drugs, while in the Coverage Gap.

“Coverage Gap Discount Program” means the Medicare program that makes manufacturer discounts available to
eligible Medicare beneficiaries receiving applicable, covered Medicare Part D drugs, while in the Coverage Gap.

“Covered Drug(s)" means those prescription drugs, supplies, Specialty Products and other items that are covered
under the EGWP Benefit, or treated as covered pursuant to a coverage determination or appeal.

"EGWP Benefit” means the prescription drug benefit to be administered by MCLIC under this Agreement, as
defined in the Recitals above and as further described in the Client Group Health Plan document, its summary plan
description, and its summary of benefits, the latter of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, as may be amended
from time to time in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

“EGWP Enrollee” means each Part D Eligible Retiree who is enrolled in the EGWP Benefit in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement.

“EGWP Enrollee Submitted Claim” means (a) a claim submitted by an EGWP Enrollee for Covered Drugs
dispensed by a pharmacy other than a Participating Pharmacy, or (b) a claim for Covered Drugs filled at a
Participating Pharmacy for which the EGWP Enrollee paid the entire cost of the Covered Drug.

“Enrollment File" means the list(s) submitted by Client to MCLIC, in accordance with Article Il, indicating the Part D
Eligible Retirees that Client has submitted for enroliment in the EGWP Benefit, as verified by MCLIC through CMS
eligibility files.

“ESI Specialty Pharmacy” means CuraScript, Inc., Accredo Health Group, Inc., Express Scripts Specialty
Distribution Services, Inc., or another pharmacy or home health agency wholly-owned or operated by MCLIC or one
or more of its affiliates that primarily dispenses Specialty Products or provides services related thereto; provided,
however, that when the Mail Service Pharmacy dispenses a Specialty Product, it shall be considered an ESI
Specialty Pharmacy hereunder.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended, and the regulations
promulgated thereunder.

“Ineligible Enrollee” means an EGWP Enrollee who Client or MCLIC determines will no longer be eligible to
participate as an EGWP Enrollee in the EGWP Benefit, in accordance with the EGWP Benefit's eligibility
requirements and/or the Medicare Drug Rules.

"Late Enrollment Penalty" or “LEP” means the financial penalty incurred under the Medicare Drug Rules by

Medicare Part D beneficiaries who have had a continued gap in creditable coverage of sixty-three (63) days or
more after the end of the beneficiary’s initial election period, adjusted from time to time by CMS.
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“Mail Service Pharmacy” means a duly licensed pharmacy wholly owned or operated by MCLIC or one or more of
its Affiliates, other than ESI Specialty Pharmacy, where prescriptions are filled and delivered to EGWP Enrollees
via mail or other delivery service.

“Manufacturer Administrative Fees” means those administrative fees of up to 3.5% of the AWP of certain Covered
Drugs paid by pharmaceutical manufacturers to, or otherwise retained by, MCLIC or its Affiliate pursuant to a
contract between MCLIC or its Affiliate and the manufacturer and directly in connection with MCLIC or its Affiliate
administering, invoicing, allocating and collecting the Rebates for the EGWP Benefit under the Medicare Rebate
Program.

“Medicare Formulary” means the list of prescription drugs and supplies developed, implemented and maintained in
accordance with the Medicare Drug Rules for the EGWP Benefit.

“Medicare Rebate Program” means MCLIC’s or its Affiliate’s manufacturer rebate program under which MCLIC or
its Affiliate contracts with pharmaceutical manufacturers for Rebates payable on selected Covered Drugs that are
reimbursed, in whole or in part, through Medicare Part D, as such program may change from time to time.

"Part D" or “Medicare Part D" means the Voluntary Prescription Drug Benefit Program set forth in Part D of the Act

“Part D Eligible Retiree” means an individual who is (a) eligible for Part D in accordance with the Medicare Drug
Rules, (b) not enrolled in a Part D plan (other than the EGWP Benefit), and (c) eligible to participate in Client’s
Current Benefit.

“Participating Pharmacy” means any licensed retail pharmacy, including retail, long-term care, home infusion, I/T/U
pharmacies, with which MCLIC or one or more of its Affiliates has executed an agreement to provide Covered
Drugs to EGWP Enrollees. These shall not include any mail order or specialty pharmacy affiliated with any such
Participating Pharmacy.

“Pharmacy” or “Pharmacies” refers from time to time to any or all Participating Pharmacies, Mail Service Pharmacy,
or ESI Specialty Pharmacy as the context of the provision dictates.

“Prescription Drug Claim” means an EGWP Enrollee Submitted Claim or claim for payment of a Covered Drug
submitted to MCLIC by a Pharmacy.

"Prescription Drug Plan" or “PDP" shall have the meaning set forth in the Medicare Drug Rules

“PHI” means protected health information as defined under HIPAA

“Rebates” means retrospective formulary rebates that are paid to MCLIC or its Affiliate, pursuant to the terms of a
formulary rebate contract negotiated independently by MCLIC or its Affiliate and directly attributable to the
utilization of certain Covered Drugs by EGWP Enrollees under the EGWP Benefit. For sake of clarity, Rebates do
not include, for example, Manufacturer Administrative Fees, product discounts or fees related to the procurement of
prescription drug inventories by or on behalf of MCLIC or its Affiliates owned and operated specialty or mail order
pharmacies; as more fully described in Exhibit D; fees received by MCLIC from manufacturers for care
management or other services provided in connection with the dispensing of Specialty Products; or other fee-for-
service arrangements whereby pharmaceutical manufacturers generally report the fees paid to MCLIC, its Affiliates
or wholly-owned subsidiaries for services rendered as “bona fide service fees” pursuant to federal laws and
regulations, including, but not limited to the Medicaid “Best Price” rule (collectively, “Other Pharma Revenue”).
Such laws and regulations, as well as MCLIC's contracts with pharmaceutical manufacturers, generally prohibit
MCLIC from sharing any such “bona fide service fees” earned by MCLIC, whether wholely or in part, with any
MCLIC client.

“Specialty Product List” means the standard list of Specialty Products and their reimbursement rates applicable to
Client and available to EGWP Enrollees as part of the EGWP Benefit provided to Client with this Agreement and as
updated from time to time. MCLIC or its Affiliate will provide additional and/or updated Specialty Product Lists any
time upon request from Client.



“Specialty Products” means those injectable and non-injectable drugs on the Specialty Product List. Specialty
Products typically have one or more of several key characteristics, including: frequent dosing adjustments and
intensive clinical monitoring to decrease the potential for drug toxicity and increase the probability for beneficial
treatment outcomes; intensive patient training and compliance assistance to facilitate therapeutic goals; limited or
exclusive product availability and distribution; specialized product handling and/or administration requirements
and/or cost in excess of $500 for a 30 day supply. Specialty Products elected for coverage shall be considered
“Covered Drugs” as defined in the Agreement.

“True Out-of-Pocket Costs” or “TrOOP” means costs incurred by an EGWP Enrollee or by another person on behalf
of an EGWP Enrollee, such as a deductible or other cost-sharing amount, with respect to Covered Drugs, as further
defined in the Medicare Drug Rules.

“UM Company” means MCMC, LLC or other independent third party utilization management company
contracted by MCLIC, subject to and as further described herein.

ARTICLE Il — PLAN STATUS UNDER APPLICABLE LAWS; ENROLLMENT AND DISENROLLMENT IN THE
EGWP BENEFIT

2.1 Medicare Part D. Client and MCLIC acknowledge and agree as follows:

(a) Under the Medicare Drug Rules, the EGWP Benefit will be deemed to be an EGWP administered
by MCLIC and each EGWP Enrollee will be deemed to be a Part D enrollee of MCLIC who is covered by the
EGWP Benefit.

(b) The design of and administration of the EGWP Benefit is subject to the applicable requirements of
the Medicare Drug Rules. Client shall cooperate with MCLIC and, upon MCLIC’s request, do, execute,
acknowledge, deliver, and provide such further acts, reports, information, and instruments as may be reasonably
required or appropriate to administer the EGWP Benefit in compliance with the Medicare Drug Rules, applicable
state insurance laws and other applicable laws. MCLIC shall provide reasonable guidance to Client regarding the
requirements of the performance necessary for Client to meet its obligation under this section.

(¢) In the event any Federal or State authority imposes any changes to plan design, plan benefits or
other mandate affecting the Plan that results in the number of Client's Part D Eligible Retirees being materially
reduced or eliminated for any reason, MCLIC and Client shall reasonably cooperate to anticipate material increased
expenses or other material effects and negotiate in good faith to incorporate consequent program pricing terms. In
the event the parties are unable to reach agreement, either party may terminate this Agreement pursuant to 7.1
hereof. MCLIC reserves the right to adjust the program pricing terms hereunder to reflect the reduction or
elimination of the number of Part D Eligible Retirees, with a 90-day notice, or when mandates imposed by State or
Federal legislative action or NDPERS mandate become effective.

2.2 HIPAA.

(a) Each of Client, the Client Group Health Plan and MCLIC agrees to take reasonable and necessary
actions to safeguard the privacy and security of information that identifies a particular EGWP Enrollee in
accordance with state and federal privacy and security requirements, including HIPAA and the confidentiality and
security provisions stated in 42 C.F.R. §423.136. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the parties
acknowledge that, for the purposes of HIPAA compliance, each of MCLIC and the Client Group Health Plan is a
Covered Entity, and that, with respect to the EGWP Benefit, MCLIC and the Client Group Health Plan shall be
deemed to be an Organized Health Care Arrangement. MCLIC and the Client Group Health Plan may transmit and
receive PHI as necessary for the operation of the EGWP Benefit. In addition, MCLIC may transmit PHI to the Client
Group Health Plan for payment purposes and any other purpose permitted by HIPAA. Client hereby represents
and warrants that: (i) the Client Group Health Plan’s documents have been amended to meet the specification
requirements set forth at 45 C.F.R. §164.504(f); (ii) Client will use and disclose PHI solely in accordance with these
provisions; and (iii) accordingly, MCLIC, at the direction of the Client Group Health Plan, may disclose PHI to Client
consistent with the terms of this Section 2.2. The parties shall take reasonable steps to ensure that all uses and
disclosures of PHI by MCLIC, the Client Group Health Plan and Client only include information that is minimally
necessary to accomplish the purpose(s) of the use or disclosure. Capitalized terms used in this Section 2.2 and not
otherwise defined in this Agreement shall have the meaning set forth in HIPAA. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
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parties acknowledge that in providing services to EGWP Enrollees, ESI Specialty Pharmacy and the Mail Service
Pharmacy are acting as separate health care provider covered entities under HIPAA and not as business
associates to the Plan covered by the Business Associate Agreement. In providing services, ESI Specialty
Pharmacy and the Mail Services Pharmacy shall abide by all HIPAA requirements applicable to covered entities
and shall safeguard, use and disclose EGWP Enrollee PHI accordingly.

23 Group Enroliment. Subject to each individual's right to opt out, as described below, Client shall enroll Part
D Eligible Retirees in the EGWP Benefit through a group enrollment process, as further described in and permitted
under the Medicare Drug Rules. Client agrees that it will comply with all applicable requirements for group
enroliment in EGWPs as set forth in the Medicare Drug Rules and related CMS guidance, and as described and
required by MCLIC’s policies and procedures. Client's performance under this Section 2.3 shall be a condition
precedent to MCLIC’s performance under this Agreement. MCLIC shall provide reasonable guidance to Client
regarding the requirements of the performance necessary for Client to meet its obligation under this section.

2.4 Enroliment File. No later than thirty (30) days prior to the Effective Date (unless otherwise agreed to by the
parties) and the first day of each EGWP Benefit enroliment period thereafter, so long as this Agreement is in effect,
Client, or its authorized representative, shall provide an Enrollment File to MCLIC via on-line or other
communication medium reasonably requested by MCLIC that lists those Part D Eligible Retirees for whom Client
intends to make application for enroliment in the EGWP Benefit (i.e., those Part D Eligible Retirees who have not
opted out of the group enrollment process) for that contract year. Client shall communicate all new enroliments,
requested retroactive enroliments of Part D Eligible Retirees, and disenroliments from the EGWP Benefit via the
communication medium reasonably requested by MCLIC. MCLIC agrees to process retroactive enroliment
requests pursuant to the requirements of the Medicare Drug Rules. Client acknowledges and agrees that the
requested effective date for any such retroactive enrollment may not be prior to the date that the enroliment request
was completed by the individual, and that the effective date of enroliment may be adjusted by no greater than
ninety (90) days. Client represents and warrants that the Enroliment File provided to MCLIC pursuant to this
Section 2.4, and all retroactive additions thereto, shall only include those individuals eligible for enroliment under
the Client Group Health Plan, and which have elected to participate in the EGWP Benefit. Client's performance
under this Section 2.4 shall be a condition precedent to MCLIC's performance under this Agreement.

2.5 Implementation.

(a) MCLIC’s Responsibilities. MCLIC shall implement the Enrollment File following confirmation of the
eligibility of the Part D Eligible Retirees listed on the Enroliment File with CMS eligibility files. A Part D Eligible
Retiree will not be enrolled in the EGWP Benefit unless such individual is listed on both the Enroliment File
submitted by Client and the CMS eligibility files. MCLIC will seek from CMS verification of eligibility for all Part D
Eligible Retirees whose names are listed in the Enrollment File. If an individual is listed on the Enroliment File
provided by Client, but is not eligible for participation according to CMS eligibility files, then MCLIC shall notify
Client in a timely manner regarding such individual's ineligibility. MCLIC will work with Client to determine if such
individual has been rejected due to an administrative or clerical error (e.g., data field standards errors, rejections
related to information input by MCLIC related to the EGWP Benefit into the CMS system, etc.), or an error requiring
individual retiree contact, and if so in either case, MCLIC will take appropriate action and attempt to correct such
error and resubmit the individual through the CMS system. Client acknowledges and agrees that MCLIC may
update in the Enrollment File any and all information concerning Part D Eligible Retirees upon receipt of corrected
information from CMS, and MCLIC may use such corrected information to obtain a Part D Eligible Retiree’s
enroliment in the EGWP Benefit. For all Part D Eligible Retirees that have been included by Client in the
Enroliment File, but who are ultimately determined to be ineligible for participation in the EGWP Benefit, MCLIC or
its Affiliate shall notify the individual of his or her ineligibility in the EGWP Benefit and take all other action as
required by applicable law. MCLIC shall communicate to Client any changes to a Part D Eligible Retiree’s
information in the Enroliment File based upon updates or corrections received from CMS.

(b) Incomplete Enrollment File Information. Client acknowledges that its submission to MCLIC of an
inaccurate or incomplete Enrollment File (e.g., missing date of birth, last name, first name, etc.) or otherwise of
incomplete information with respect to any individual Part D Eligible Retiree, may result in a rejection of the Part D
Eligible Retiree's enrollment in the EGWP Benefit. MCLIC will provide Client with regular reports providing the
details of all such incomplete information needed to enroll Part D Eligible Retirees. Upon Client’'s request, MCLIC
will perform research and may initiate contact and communication with all such Part D Eligible Retirees to obtain all
missing information needed to complete enroliment of the Part D Eligible Retirees in the EGWP Benefit. Client




acknowledges and agrees that MCLIC may contact Client's Part D Eligible Retirees to obtain the information
required hereunder, and that MCLIC will update the Enrollment File on Client's behalf to reflect additional
information needed to complete enroliment of the Part D Eligible Retirees in the EGWP Benefit. MCLIC shall
provide to Client all such updated information through the regular reports provided hereunder. After obtaining all
information needed to complete enroliment of the Part D Eligible Retirees in the EGWP Benefit, MCLIC shall
complete such enroliment including verification with CMS; provided, however, that if MCLIC, using reasonable
efforts, is not able to obtain all missing information from a Part D Eligible Retiree within twenty-one (21) days after
receiving Client’s initial request for enrollment of the Part D Eligible Retiree in the EGWP Benefit, then Client's
request shall be deemed cancelled and MCLIC or its Affiliate shall notify the individual of his or her non-enroliment
in the EGWP Benefit and shall take all other action as required by applicable law.

(c) Effective Date of Application for Enroliment into EGWP Benefit. Notwithstanding any provision of
this Agreement to the contrary, the effective date of the application for any Part D Eligible Retiree who MCLIC
seeks to enroll in the EGWP Benefit hereunder shall be the date on which the application for enrollment is entered
by MCLIC into its enroliment system, subject however to any adjustments that MCLIC may make for retroactive
enroliments as necessary to enroll the Part D Eligible Retiree in the EGWP Benefit.

(d) Client's Responsibilities. The parties agree that Sanford will be providing certain services on behalf
of Client with respect to Client's obligations under this Agreement. Client shall bind Sanford for obligations Sanford
performs on its behalf, and references in the Agreement to “Client” in performing a function shall be construed to
include Sanford to the extent applicable. Further, Client shall require Sanford to comply with all applicable laws and
the Medicare Drug Rules. The services provided by Sanford on behalf of client include, but may not be limited to
the following:

Help coordination of communication pieces between ESI and Client;

Assisting Client with renewals or other contract negotiations with ESI;

Helping to provide technical advice to Client on pharmacy issues;

Assist Client/ESI with EGWP Enrollee appeals and general complaints;

Assist Client/ESI with problem resolution;

Assist EGWP Enrollees with appeals on formulary, network & other issues;

Assist Client/ESI with general EGWP Enrollee inquiries related to their prescription drug plan

2.6 Individual Disenrollment. If Client or MCLIC determines that an EGWP Enrollee will be an Ineligible
Enrollee, in accordance with the EGWP Benefit's eligibility requirements and/or the Medicare Drug Rules, then the
following procedures shall be implemented as applicable:

(a) Upon Client's determination, Client shall notify MCLIC no earlier than sixty (60) days prior to the
effective date of such Ineligible Enrollee’s ineligibility, in a manner and format agreed upon by the parties;

MCLIC shall send a letter / notification to the Ineligible Enrollee alerting the Ineligible Enrollee that
she is no longer eligible to participate in the EGWP Benefit;

(c) Client shall provide all information to MCLIC that is required for MCLIC to submit a complete
disenrollment request transaction to CMS, as set forth in the Medicare Drug Rules; and

(d) MCLIC shall submit the disenroliment request transaction to CMS in accordance with the Medicare
Drug Rules.

2.7 Group Disenroliment. If, upon the expiration of the then current term of this Agreement, or as otherwise
provided in Section 8.2, Client plans to disenroll its EGWP Enrollees from the EGWP Benefit using a group
disenroliment process, then Client shall implement the following procedures:

(a) Notification to EGWP Enrollees. Client shall provide at least twenty-one (21) days (or such other
minimum days’ notice as required by the Medicare Drug Rules) prior written notice to each EGWP Enrollee that
Client plans to disenroll him or her from the EGWP Benefit and shall include with such written notification an
explanation as to how the EGWP Enrollee may contact CMS for information on other Medicare Part D options that
might be available to the EGWP Enrollee; and
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(b) Information to MCLIC. Client shall provide all the information to MCLIC that is required for MCLIC
to submit a complete disenroliment request transaction to CMS, as set forth in the Medicare Drug Rules.

2.8 Voluntary Disenroliment. If an EGWP Enrollee makes a voluntary request to be disenrolled from the
EGWP Benefit (the “Voluntary Disenrollee”) to Client, then Client shall notify MCLIC no earlier than sixty (60) days
prior to the effective date of such Voluntary Disenrollee’s disenroliment, in a manner and format agreed upon by the
parties. If Client does not timely notify MCLIC of such Voluntary Disenrollee’s disenroliment in the EGWP Benefit,
then MCLIC shall submit a retroactive disenroliment request to CMS. Client acknowledges that CMS may only
grant up to a ninety (90) day retroactive disenroliment in such instances. If the Voluntary Disenrollee makes his or
her request directly to MCLIC, then MCLIC shall direct the Voluntary Disenrollee to initiate the disenroliment with
the Client.

2.9 Responsibility for Claims After Loss of Eligibility or Disenrollment. Client represents and warrants that all
information that Client, or its authorized representative, provides to MCLIC in the Enroliment File will be complete
and correct. Except for Prescription Drug Claims that are paid due to MCLIC’s negligence, Client shall be
responsible for reimbursing MCLIC pursuant to Section 5.1 for all Prescription Drug Claims processed by MCLIC
(a) with respect to an Ineligible Enrollee, as determined by Client, during any period in which the Enroliment File
indicated that such Ineligible Enrollee was eligible and (b) with respect to a Voluntary Disenrollee, in the event
Client did not provide timely notice to MCLIC of such disenroliment as set forth in this Article Il.

2.10  General Support Services. In addition to any other Client obligation under this Article Il or elsewhere in this
Agreement, Client shall be responsible for providing general support services to EGWP Enrollees throughout the
enroliment process, including, but not limited to, EGWP Enrollee education concerning the EGWP Benefit,
communicating information concerning premiums, providing information concerning alternative benefit options
offered by Client, if any, and answering on-going inquiries related to the payment of the applicable EGWP Enrollee
premium.

2.1 Effect On / Effect Of Commercial Agreement. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, the parties
acknowledge that MCLIC shall have no obligations under the Commercial Agreement with respect to the Client
Group Health Plan, and that Client shall be solely responsible for determining the eligibility of members covered by
the prescription drug benefit administered pursuant to the Commercial Agreement (the “Commercial Benefit").
Upon a member's enroliment as an EGWP Enrollee in the EGWP Benefit, such EGWP Enrollee’s eligibility as a
member in the Commercial Benefit shall immediately terminate. An EGWP Enrollee may not have dual coverage
under the EGWP Benefit and the Commercial Benefit; and therefore, after any EGWP Enrollee’s enroliment in the
EGWP Benefit, all Prescription Drug Claims and member submitted claims submitted to ESI under the Commercial
Agreement shall be treated as Prescription Drug Claims under this Agreement and shall be processed by MCLIC in
accordance with the EGWP Benefit. Any Prescription Drug Claim or member submitted claim processed under the
Commercial Agreement and the Commercial Benefit after the date of an EGWP Enrollee’s enrollment in the EGWP
Benefit shall be reversed and shall be re-processed under the EGWP Benefit. Client acknowledges that
termination of a member's coverage under the Commercial Benefit prior to such member’s enroliment as an EGWP
Enrollee in the EGWP Benefit may result in a loss of prescription drug benefit coverage for such member; provided,
however, notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that a member’'s prescription drug
benefit coverage under the Commercial Benefit shall be solely determined by Client and not by MCLIC or any of its
Affiliates, including without limitation ESI.

ARTICLE Ill - PRESCRIPTION DRUG SERVICES

3.1 Exclusivity. Client acknowledges and agrees that, in the event Client offers its Part D Eligible Retirees
more than one Part D benefit option, the eligibility determinations, enroliment and disenroliment and other
administration of such Part D options will require extensive coordination with the administration of the EGWP
Benefit. For these reasons, Client agrees that Client shall use MCLIC as Client’s exclusive provider of all Medicare
Part D services for its Part D Eligible Retirees during the term of this Agreement unless otherwise requested by
Client and agreed to by MCLIC in writing. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the parties agree that Retiree Health
Insurance Credit benefits received by Part D Eligible Retirees does not violate or implicate this section. The terms
and conditions of Client’'s and MCLIC’s arrangements for Part D options other than the EGWP Benefit shall be set
forth in separate agreements.

Prescription Drug Services N €xchange for Client's payment to MCLIC of the amounts set forth in Section
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5.2, MCLIC will offer the EGWP Benefit to EGWP Enrollees in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. In its capacity as a PDP Sponsor with respect to the EGWP Benefit, MCLIC will be responsible for
pharmacy network contracting; Mail Service Pharmacy and Specialty Products services; Prescription Drug Claim
processing; Formulary and Rebate administration; Medication Therapy Management, and related services
(collectively, “Prescription Drug Services”), as further described in this Agreement. All Prescription Drug Services
shall be provided by MCLIC in accordance with the Medicare Drug Rules and the terms of the EGWP Benefit.
Client acknowledges and agrees that MCLIC may provide Prescription Drug Services under this Agreement
through one or more of its Affiliates. MCLIC represents and warrants that it will have written agreements with each
Affiliate that will perform services on behalf of MCLIC in connection with the EGWP Benefit that meet the
requirements the Medicare Drug Rules for subcontractors of PDP Sponsors.

3.3 Compliance with Medicare Drug Rules and State Insurance Laws. Under the Medicare Drug Rules, MCLIC
is required to maintain licensure under applicable state insurance laws or to obtain appropriate waivers from CMS
of such requirements. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Agreement, MCLIC shall not be
obligated to take any action or omit to take any action with respect to the EGWP Benefit that is not in compliance
with the Medicare Drug Rules, applicable state insurance laws or other applicable laws.

3.4 The EGWP Benefit. The EGWP Benefit will satisfy all actuarial equivalence standards set forth in the
Medicare Drug Rules. Client hereby agrees to cooperate with MCLIC to perform the necessary actuarial
equivalence calculations to determine whether the EGWP Benefit meets the foregoing actuarial equivalence
standards prior to the Effective Date. If MCLIC determines that the EGWP Benefit does not meet the actuarial
equivalence standards, then Client shall cooperate with MCLIC to make necessary adjustments to the EGWP
Benefit design to meet the actuarial equivalence standards.

3.5 Changes to the EGWP Benefit. Client shall have the right to request changes to the terms of the EGWP
Benefit from time to time by providing written notice to MCLIC. Any such changes shall be subject to the following
requirements: (a) all changes to the EGWP Benefit must be consistent with the Medicare Drug Rules; (b) the
EGWP Benefit, after implementation of such changes, must continue to meet the actuarial equivalence standards
referenced in Section 3.4 above; (c) EGWP Benefit changes may be implemented only at times and in the manner
permitted by the Medicare Drug Rules; and (d) any requested change that would increase MCLIC’s costs of
administering the EGWP Benefit without an equivalent increase in the PMPM Fees (as defined in Section 5.2
below) paid to MCLIC from Client shall not be implemented unless and until Client and MCLIC agree in writing upon
a corresponding adjustment to the PMPM Fees.

3.6 EGWP Enrollee Communications. All standard EGWP Enrollee communications concerning the EGWP
Benefit (i.e., summary plan description, evidence of coverage, etc.) shall be mutually developed by MCLIC and the
Client pursuant to the Medicare Drug Rules, including the CMS Marketing Guidelines contained therein. MCLIC
shall be responsible, with assistance from Client, in completing EGWP Enrollee communications and distributing
them to EGWP Enrollees as appropriate. Pursuant to the Medicare Drug Rules, Client acknowledges and agrees
that MCLIC must provide all such EGWP Enrollee communications, whether created and/or distributed by MCLIC
or Client, to CMS for review. If CMS notifies MCLIC that any such EGWP Enrollee communication is deficient,
Client agrees to assist MCLIC to make necessary revisions to such EGWP Enrollee communication to correct such
deficiency.

3.7 Network Access and Service Area Requirements. At least thirty (30) days prior to the Effective Date, Client
shall provide MCLIC de-identified aggregate information concerning where: (A) all Part D Eligible Retirees reside;
and (B) all of Client's employees reside, as necessary for MCLIC to determine whether MCLIC's network of
Participating Pharmacies is sufficient to meet the needs of such individuals. Client represents and warrants that all
such information shall be accurate and complete. Client's performance under this Section 3.7 shall be a condition
precedent to MCLIC’s performance under this Agreement. If MCLIC determines that its network of Participating
Pharmacies is not sufficient to meet the needs of individuals eligible to participate in the EGWP Benefit, then
MCLIC shall use its best efforts to address such deficiencies. If MCLIC is not able to satisfactorily address such
deficiencies prior to the Effective Date, then MCLIC shall provide written notice to Client prior to the Effective Date
and this Agreement shall automatically terminate.

3.8 Pharmacy Network. Subject to the terms of Section 3.7 above, MCLIC shall develop and maintain a
Participating Pharmacy network that, at a minimum, is sufficient to meet the needs of the EGWP Enrollees, as
provided in the CMS waiver guidance concerning network access under Medicare Drug Rules.
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(a) Pharmacy Credentialing. MCLIC agrees to comply with all applicable Medicare Drug Rules
regarding credentialing requirements. MCLIC shall require Participating Pharmacies, MCLIC Mail Service
Pharmacy and ESI Specialty Pharmacy to meet MCLIC's and the Medicare Drug Rules’ credentialing requirements,
including but not limited to licensure, insurance and provider agreement requirements.

(b) Independent Contractors. Neither MCLIC nor its Affiliate directs or exercises any control over the
professional judgment exercised by any pharmacist in dispensing prescriptions or otherwise providing
pharmaceutical related services at a Participating Pharmacy. Participating Pharmacies are independent
contractors of MCLIC or its Affiliate, and neither MCLIC nor its Affiliate shall have any liability to Client, any EGWP
Enrollee or any other person or entity for any act or omission of any Participating Pharmacy or its agents or
employees.

(c) Pharmacy Help Desk. MCLIC will provide 24-hour a day, 7-days a week toll-free telephone support
and Internet web site to assist Participating Pharmacies with EGWP Enrollee eligibility verification and questions
regarding reimbursement, and Covered Drug benefits under the EGWP Benefit.

3.9 Audits of Participating Pharmacies; Fraud and Abuse. MCLIC shall periodically audit Participating
Pharmacies to determine compliance with their agreements with MCLIC or its Affiliate and in order to meet the anti-
fraud provisions of the Medicare Drug Rules applicable to PDPs. MCLIC also shall perform fraud and abuse
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